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HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“Hopson” or “Hopson
Development” or the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) was founded in 1992, and its shares have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”) since 1998 (Stock code: 00754). Hopson Development is a
major property group that specialises in the development of medium-to-
high-end large-scale residential properties. In terms of land bank, it is one
of the largest property developers in The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

Since 1995, Hopson Development has started to establish its brand on a
nationwide scale through deploying appropriate corporate strategy and
business model. The principal focus is on three Core Economic Zones,
namely Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai area and Yangtze River Delta, with
Guangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai as the core cities. In
Guangzhou and Beijing, the brands such as “Regal Riviera”, “Gallopade”
and “Fairview” have been established to cover a range of businesses
including product designs, customer services and facilities; and to
accommodate different community cultures and different operating
models. Each property project is featured with a unique theme to
demonstrate the strength of our corporate branding. Strong brand
recognition at project level enhances the positioning and marketability of
the corporate branding.

Major investments were made in the first-tier cities such as Guangzhou,
Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai over the past few years.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

CHU Mang Yee (Chairman)

CHU Kut Yung (Deputy Chairman)

AU Wai Kin

LIAO Ruo Qing (Resigned on 29th December 2017)
XIE Bao Xin (Chief Financial Officer)

BAO Wenge

Independent Non-executive Directors

LEE Tsung Hei, David
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron
CHING Yu Lung

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

LEE Tsung Hei, David
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron
CHING Yu Lung

(Chairman)

Nomination Committee

CHU Mang Yee

CHU Kut Yung

LEE Tsung Hei, David
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron
CHING Yu Lung

(Chairman)

Company Secretary

MOK Wai Kun, Barbara, solicitor

Authorised Representatives

AU Wai Kin
XIE Bao Xin

Independent Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong
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Cowpomfe and Lisfinq Information (continued)
TERETER @

Legal Advisor

As to Hong Kong Law
Minter Ellison

Level 25, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of East Asia

China CITIC Bank

China Construction Bank

Hang Seng Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Standard Chartered Bank

Branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Registered Office

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Principal Office

Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

Representative Offices

Guangzhou — 16th Floor, South Tower
Zhujiang Investment Building
421 Zhujiang East Road

Zhujiang New City, Guangzhou

Beijing —  Hopson Office Building
23A West Dawang Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing

Shanghai —  19th Floor, Block 3
No. 695 Lingshi Road
Zhabei District, Shanghai

Tianjin — No. 1 Zhujiang South Road

Jingjin New Town
Baodi District, Tianjin
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Coppomfe and Lisfinq Information (continued)
TERETER @

Shareholders’ Calendar

Register of Shareholders

Closure of Register
For Annual General Meeting:
12th June 2018 to 15th June 2018 (both days inclusive)

For Final Dividend:
22nd June 2018 to 26th June 2018 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting

15th June 2018

Dividend (Per Share)

Proposed final dividend HK20 cents
Payable on 6th July 2018

Listing Information

Shares Listing

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code

00754

Corporate Bonds Listing

The Company’s 4.95% corporate bonds listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(trading restricted among certain qualified investors)

Asset-backed Securities Listing

The Company’s 5.30% to 5.75% asset-backed securities listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(trading restricted among certain qualified institutional investors)

Asset-backed Securities Listing

The Company’s 3.95% to 4.30% asset-backed securities listed on

the Shanghai Stock Exchange

(trading restricted among certain qualified institutional investors and
suspended as at the date of the report)
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—T-=F —T-lF —T-RF ZE—RF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET FHET FET
Revenues = 15,648,207 17,044,862 12,845,184 16,255,697 13,823,946
Profit before taxation B B AT 4 6,309,673 4,995,193 2,839,305 5,628,305 8,745,804
Taxation ®E| (2,475,187) (2,067,257) (1,257,267) (1,785,631) (2,933,984)
Profit for the year FE&EF 3,834,486 2,927,936 1,682,038 3,842,674 5,811,820
Non-controlling interests JEPR )M HE 2 (17,587) (19,365) (63,904) (25,759) 15,435
Profit attributable to equity holders M5 A A% T 3,852,073 2,947,301 1,645,942 3,868,433 5,796,385
Profit attributable to equity holders A& 15 5 A FE Ak 4 F
(excluding the effect of revaluation (RetEmpE
and other non-recurring income) REMIELEEWAN) 2,059,948 2,026,973 700,738 2,039,664 1,996,502
Earnings per share BRAF
— Basic —EXK HK210 cents 1l HK131 cents i#{ll HK74 cents 11l HK174 cents 11l HK260 cents &l
— Diluted — HK210 cents il HK131 cents LI HK74 cents 1l HK174 cents 711l HK260 cents &4l
Dividends per share FRARE - - HK10 cents 11l HK10 cents 11l HK20 cents &l
Net assets value per share BRAEAEFE HK$24.56 # 7T HK$25.84 #7T HK$25.30 7T HK$25.34 7T HK$29.76 &7t
Revenues Profit attributable to equity holders
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Mr. Chu Mang Yee, Chairman
KREMREE  £E

In 2017, the Chinese government adopted the regulation direction of implementing
different policies according to specific situation of different cities with respect to the real
estate market. Facing with the new round of regulation and control, based on the market
trend, the Group continuously enlarged the proportion of residential properties targeting
at rigid demand and improvement demand in the entire residential segment so as to
optimise the product structure of our residential segment. At the same time, the Group
also enhanced the comfort level and satisfaction of property owners by increasing the
investment on the ancillary facilities and property management services. For the
commercial segment, the Group committed to the opening and development of mega
shopping centres, premium office buildings and hotel projects while continuously
optimising the tenant structure of its investment properties, thereby boosting sustainable

rental income growth.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EERE @

Market Environment and Operation Analysis

National Market

1.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Overview of the Economic Environment

In 2017, authorities in different regions across China fully
implemented the decisions and arrangements of the Central
Committee of the Communist Party of China and the State Council.
Adhering to the general principle of achieving progress amidst
stability and the new development concept, and centring on the
supply-side structural reform, the structural optimisation,
momentum transition and quality enhancement had been facilitated,
resulting in a positive domestic economy amidst stability with
better-than-expected growth. With the continuous release of
economic vitality, momentum and potential, the economic stability,
coordination and sustainability had been significantly enhanced,
thus realising stable and healthy economic development. The gross
domestic product for the year was RMB82,712.2 billion, which
grew by 6.9% as compared to that of last year. Disposable income
per capita of urban households was RMB36,396, representing a
growth of 6.5% from the same period last year.

Overview of Real Estate Market

In 2017, the Chinese government has commenced a new round of
regulation and control policies on real estate, which focused on
keeping housing price under control against risks in first-tier cities
and popular second-tier cities and reducing real estate inventories
in third-and-fourth-tier cities. Such round of regulation and control
adopted the direction of giving category-based guidance and
implementing different policies according to specific situation of
different cities. Under such circumstances, various regulation and
control measures, such as purchase restrictions, loan restrictions
and selling restrictions, had been adopted in first-tier cities and
popular second-tier cities. Hence, there was a slight dip in the
growth of real estate investment in first-tier cities and popular
second-tier cities.

In 2017, the investment in real estate development nationwide
amounted to RMB10,979.9 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 7.0%; the paid-in investment of real estate developers
was RMB15,605.3 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of
8.2%; the sales area of commercial residential buildings sold
nationwide reached 1,694.08 million sg.m., representing a year-on-
year increase of 7.7%; the sales of commercial residential buildings
nationwide amounted to RMB13,370.1 billion, representing a year-
on-year increase of 13.7%; the area of land purchased by real
estate developers was 255.08 million sq.m., representing a year-
on-year increase of 15.84%.

Annual Report 2017
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Choir’man’s Sfofemenf (continued)
ERBE @

Regional Markets

1.

Eastern China

For the year of 2017, Shanghai’s economy was progressing
steadily, with GDP of the city amounting to RMB3,013.386 billion,
which grew by 6.9% in comparable prices; disposable income per
capita of urban and rural permanent residents increased by 8.5%
and 9.0% respectively as compared to 2016. Shanghai has long
been an influential world-class city with stable commodity prices,
employment rate, economic growth and market sales. Shanghai
Hopson One, a large-scale commercial complex of the Group
located in Wuijiaochang, Shanghai under the Shanghai Hopson
International Plaza project, gradually becomes a commercial
landmark in the region by offering consumers with a wide range of
shop choices and excellent shopping experiences, thereby
contributing returns to the Group. In 2017, centring on the prime
projects within core urban areas in Shanghai, the Group actively
developed projects in surrounding areas and proactively adjusted
product positioning, thus successfully sold a huge number of
projects in Cixi and other regions. In 2017, 24% of the Group’s
revenues were attributable to Eastern China.

Northern China

In 2017, Beijing’s economy developed steadily, with GDP
amounting to RMB2,800.04 billion, representing an increase of 6.7%
in comparable prices; disposable income per capita of urban
households grew by 9.0% to RMB62,406 as compared to the
same period last year. Beijing Hopson One, the latest commercial
flagship complex of the Group, commenced its operation in 2017.
Beijing Hopson One is committed to providing trendy shopping
experiences for consumers, and has become one of the hottest
shopping spots within the commercial district in Chaoyang District,
Beijing.

The Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei urban agglomeration has been one of the
most important developing regions of the Group. Moreover, the
Group’s headquarters is also located in Beijing. The integration of
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei proceeded along with the gradual
implementation of national strategic plans. The value of the whole
region had further unleashed. While steadily developing high-end
properties in major cities, the Group also strategically expanded its
land reserve in areas surrounding Huanbohai Economic Rim so as
to lay a solid foundation for further development within the region.
In 2017, 24% of the Group’s revenues were attributable to Northern
China.
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Choir’mon’s Sfafemenf (continued)
ER®E @

3. Southern China

Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area is one of the
most liberal and dynamic economies in China. The overall market
development trend is positive. Within the Greater Bay Area, the
Group continued to deepen its development in Guangzhou and
Huizhou, its two major value sectors. The Group also leveraged its
advanced investment management strategy to participate in quality
urban renewal projects within the region. In 2017, the Group’s
projects including Guangzhou Hopson Regal Riviera, Zhongshan
Hopson Xijing Garden and Huizhou Hopson International New City
continued to record good sales. In 2017, 55% of the Group’s
revenues were attributable to Southern China.

Prospects of China’s Real Estate Sector

China’s Central Economic Work Conference placed focus on the real
estate industry, and pointed out that the State will accelerate the
establishment of a housing system which offers multi-agent supply and
multi-channel protection while encouraging both housing purchase and
renting. The conference specifically pointed out that, there is a need to
develop the real estate leasing market, especially for long-term leasing,
protect the legitimate rights of leasing stakeholders, and support the
development of professional and organised real estate leasing
enterprises. At the same time, the conference also pointed out that, the
State will optimise the sustainable mechanism for promoting steady and
healthy development in the real estate market, maintain the continuity
and stability of regulatory policies in the real estate market, differentiate
the powers of the central government and local authorities, and
implement differential control. In view of a series of measures in the real
estate market in different regions throughout 2017, coupled with the
differentiated land supply policy proposed earlier this year and the
continuous promotion of public housing construction such as rental
housing and joint ownership housing, and followed by the reiteration of
policy focuses of “housing is for living in, not for speculation” and
“encouraging both housing purchase and renting” at the 19th National
Congress of the Communist Party of China, the Group is of the opinion
that a sustainable mechanism established by the State for promoting
steady and healthy development in the real estate market is ready to
come. The Group expects that the overall development of the PRC real
estate market will become more mature and stable in 2018, which will be
a good opportunity to promote the diversified development in the real
estate market.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EERE @

Future Prospects of the Group

Responding to the in-depth changes and industry differentiation of the
PRC real estate market and the new positioning of “housing is for living
in, not for speculation” and “encouraging both housing purchase and
renting” initiated by the government, the Group will continue to make the
best use of the circumstances and formulate the strategic principle of
“following the guidance of the State’s policies while adapting itself to the
market trends”, and adhere to the ultimate goal of maximising
shareholders’ value. To this end, the Group will fully leverage the
advantages of its proactive and solid financial and operational strategies
and diversified financing channels. The Group will also build on its core
assets to enhance management and make continuous efforts to optimise
its investment and financial control system, so as to promote its strategic
transformation of business diversification.

Capturing Market Opportunities and Expanding the
Group’s Development

As a long-standing regulatory mechanism regarding the real estate
market has gradually been established, the Group will continue to adhere
to its development strategy of progressing in a prudent manner. We will
actively respond to the challenges brought by the transformation of the
real estate industry and adapt to the development trend of real estate
under the New Norm. At the same time, we will seize the favourable
opportunities brought about by the deepening economic reforms and the
rising consumption standard to provide more tailor-made products for
the market and in response to central government’s policies to foster the
long-term development and expand the development of the Group.

Promoting Diversified Strategies and Enriching
Development in Different Sectors

Adapting to market changes, the Group will unswervingly commit itself to
long-term and sustainable development, and proactively explore the
potential of value chain-related industries in the future. The Group will, on
the one hand, ensure the sustainable and stable development of
residential properties and commercial properties, and at the same time,
significantly edges up its efforts on the infrastructure of industrial
properties and property management, so as to expand its diversified
operating income and achieve the steady growth of the Group’s overall
profit.

SEARRZRE
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EFEHE @0

Improving Quality Control and Adapting to the Supply-
side Reform

China’s economic growth mode has been transformed into a quality-
based mode combining supply-side reform and appropriate demand-
side stimulus. Therefore, the Group will continue to maintain strict control
over product quality and implement refined management, so as to
provide property owners with premium products and peripheral services.
By offering products with additional value, the Group will gain greater
recognition from property owners and markets, and thus expand the
width and depth of the Group’s corporate brand value and strengthen
the Group’s core competitiveness.

Strengthening the Construction of Informatisationed
System and Perfecting the Management and Control
System

The Group is determined to promote the construction of informatisationed
system and will push our operation towards a more standardised,
digitalised, automated and intelligent direction by applying different
technologies. Such measures help to optimise corporate structure and
shorten business approval process, and in turn enhance corporate
operation and management.
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Choipman’s Sfofemenf (continued)
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Acknowledgement

The Group shall persist in employing the spirit of mutualism with integrity
and innovation as its corporate culture, insist on the corporate strategic
guideline of “enjoying high-quality lifestyle”, work together to create a win-
win situation, insist on providing market and customers with quality
products and services that further enhance the Company’s development,
ensure the Group’s healthy and sustainable development, and maximize
investors’ interest.

CHU Mang Yee
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th March 2018
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Depullq Chaipman,s Sjlajlemenjl
Bl EFEHRE

In 2018, responding to the in-depth changes and industry differentiation of the PRC real
estate market and the new positioning of “housing is for living in, not for speculation” and
“encouraging both housing purchase and renting” initiated by the government, the Group
will continue to make the best use of the circumstances and formulate the strategic
principle of “following the guidance of the State’s policies while adapting itself to the
market trends”, and optimise the product structure of our residential segment by
enlarging the proportion of residential properties targeting at rigid demand and
improvement demand in the entire residential segment and promoting the development
of long-term leasing residential projects. The Group will also strive to enhance property
management services to propel the Group’s strategy on the balanced development of
light and heavy assets.

HEFEFEHETSNRBEZLLNTEI L UREERFIFEFRAREN  T2A
RHWIMEBYRE NHEEN FER-F-/\FREFRZINE  ERIUBERHK
RREQ EETSBZ NERLTH FEANAKFERXZEEIEREEESRA
MEE UREEFERMEERENRE UELEERANERES KEEKF
BERAZIRAVEEERY U EESEEEEEY S RRAEK-
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Depufq Chairman’s Statement (continued)
Bl EFEHE @

Faced with the development in the PRC real estate market in 2017, the
Group unwaveringly insisted on developing residential property projects
targeting at rigid demand and improvement demand in first-and-second-
tier cities based on the market trend, while steadily promoting the
development of medium-to-high-end commercial projects in core areas
of cities. For the residential segment, the Group continuously enlarged
the proportion of residential properties targeting at rigid demand and
improvement demand in the entire residential segment so as to optimise
the respective product structure. The Group also strived to enhance the
comfort level and satisfaction of property owners by allocating more
resources to residential ancillary facilities and property management
services. For the commercial segment, the Group accelerated the
implementation of its strategic layout, and committed to the opening and
development of mega shopping centres, premium office buildings and
hotel projects while continuously optimising the tenant structure of its
investment properties, thereby boosting sustainable rental income
growth.

1. 2017 Result Overview

2017 major operating results figures:

Y —_ZF-—LFFEEHETSNERNAR
SEEREY BEBRFRN — —GUTEE
MELLNENEEER  LARSEERD
OB NT  SEAEEEER NEER
BHH SEFENARFTEEHZREEN
BEETERBOLE  KEBLETRRNE®R
e WEBREZERIEEERERBLRDE
BRERE NRKEREAEZIFEENNE
B RBERREIE SENREEGE 2
WRARBEDHL SABFERBEEER XN
MERER IREBLCREEMENELAE
B AMERSWANARFELER -

1. ZE-—tEXEHE

TELFEIEREER:

Unit 2017 2016 Year-on-Year
Results Figures KERE By —E—tE Z—ZE—KE Bkt
Turnover SESL PN HKS$ million 13,824 16,256 -15%
BEETT
Gross floor area (‘GFA”) FRNETREEERE  sqm.
completed during the year ([ZEmE]) K 1,090,803 1,511,115 -28%
CEAREEERATE —E—tEFR
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Depufq Chairman’s Statement (continued)
B EFEHRE @

(1)

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Business Review 2. ¥¥KMOE
The central government continued to implement its regulatory —E—tF PR AEREERAE
measures in 2017, aiming to establish a sustainable mechanism for B WEREVEEREMETISHNREAE
regulating the property market. During the year, the Group HloEXN EBEEESEBRERER— &M
continued to push forward the sound development of residential THEEHE MEREME ST TEAOKRE
properties in first-and-second-tier cities, and also substantially HEEBMBENDRAHETK - SEHKE N
completed the strategic investment layout in the commercial real MEZEZEMBERLLIER19% > 22 A
estate sector. The GFA of the Group’s investment properties [B] L 18 R 32% o & B it 52 /P {3 2 4 &= e 3%
increased by 19% year-on-year, with turnover increased by 32% EmZ o b hER B EL R KA -
year-on-year. The Group’s transformation from solely focusing on
residential property development to engaging in diversified property
development had shown preliminary results.
Turnover (1) EEWA
Turnover by geographical locations: BREREE S ZEERA
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-REF

HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Region it & BEAETT L Bl (%) BEETT Lt 51 (%)
Southern China E el 7,661 55 5,520 34
Northern China A @ 15 2,900 21 7,324 45
Eastern China EHR I 3,263 24 3,412 21
Total &5t 13,824 100 16,256 100
During the reporting period, the Group continued to have its base WREBRAN EBEBEYENHK =B &3
in the three core economic zones in Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai BCREZAZAKER  ZHZOHT
and Yangtze River Delta, made in-depth development in core cities PRESEDE T EFEE- FEE
and explored surrounding potential cities. Southern China, Northern HEZEREHSHER T76.61EB T
China and Eastern China contributed revenues of HK$7,661 million, 29.0018 7 7T & 32.63 188 L Ky I 5 ©
HK$2,900 million and HK$3,263 million respectively.
Turnover by business segments: REBOHE D 2 EERWA

2017 2016
ZB—tF —E-RF

HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Business Segment E 3o BEBAT Lt Bl (%) BEAT Lt 511 (%)
Property development V¥R 11,126 80 14,143 87
Property investment MEKRE 1,354 10 1,023 6
Property management MEER 936 7 843 5
Hotel operations o JE & E 408 3 247 2
Total A&t 13,824 100 16,256 100
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Depufq Choipman’s \Sllafemenjf (continued)
Bl E R 8| E @

Business Review (Continued) 2. XXKEE®@
Turnover (Continued) (1) EZX£WA @
During the reporting period, the Group’s strategy to optimise mMEBRRN EEELLAGE  ENgE
income structure and diversify various sources of income had WAR BN ERED — T2 —F—+
proven to be successful. In 2017, income from property FYEBRRERIRABGIII260ERB T MES
development was HK$11,126 million, income from property U A AISBIEBIL MEKREWANE
management was HK$936 million, income from property B U A D Bl AB13.541E 7 T K 4.081E
investment and income from hotel operations were HK$1,354 B TT o
million and HK$408 million respectively.
Turnover by major projects: REZHBE D 2EFEWA
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Region & BEBTT Lt 45l (%) BEBTT 31 (%)
Guangzhou Hopson Regal Riviera EIMNA 4L K/I® & 1,574 11% 146 1%
Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa B EMILBERER 1,302 9% 373 2%
Nanhai Hopson Belvedere Bay HEEEESRE 867 6% 762 5%
Hopson No. 8 Royal Park AHETEKSH 767 6% 469 3%
Hopson International New City B H B R ET 681 5% 1,025 6%
The Town of Hangzhou Bay B AN B R T 639 5% 214 1%
Hopson Asset Seascape Residence & 481 = /8 = A 6 628 5% 608 4%
Hopson Yijing Mingyuan AEBEEER 582 4% — 0%
Hopson Regal Villa aEBHE LM 418 3% 88 1%
Hopson Yujing Bay AERMSE 362 3% 73 0%
Others =) 6,004 43% 12,498 77%
13,824 100% 16,256 100%
EEAIREBERAT T —tFFR
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Depufq Clmipman,s Sf(]femen]l (continued)
BEE®HRE@®

2. Business Review (Continued)

(1) Turnover (Continued)

Contracted sales by major projects:

2. FEKEEEum
(1) EF2WA @

BERRBEDZANHEE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Region &= BEETT t 45 (%) BEABTT Lt 51 (%)
The Town of Hangzhou Bay G AN B R T A 2,012 19% 236 3%
Hopson No. 8 Royal Park A ETERKSHR 966 9% 880 9%
Hopson Dongjiao Villa BERIHIE 807 8% 159 2%
Guangzhou Hopson Regal Riviera B M & £ 2L 5 2 799 7% 565 6%
Hopson Asset Seascape EEVEBEAH
Residence 661 6% 816 9%
Kunshan Hopson International B [ & 4 BB 1E
Garden 528 5% 191 2%
Hopson International New City & 4= B &% %7 45k 499 5% 915 10%
Hopson Yujing Bay EERESE 480 5% 137 1%
Hopson Xijing Garden AEEEET 413 4% — 0%
Hopson Xiaogui Bay B E N EE 408 4% 698 7%
Others Hib 3,087 28% 4,742 51%
10,660 100% 9,339 100%

(2) Project Completion Volume

Completed area in 2017:

2 IREIE
—E L ERNETIER:

2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
Area Ratio (%) Area Ratio (%)
[ Lt 51 (%) [k L 51 (%)
(sq.m.) (sg.m.)
Region it E (A 3K) (75 2K)
Southern China #Em 2 4 651,184 60 811,732 54
Northern China #E b [& 15 129,971 12 337,677 22
Eastern China = [ i 309,648 28 361,706 24
Total = 1,090,803 100 1,511,115 100
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Depufq Chairman’s Statement (continued)
Bl EFEHE @

2.

Business Review (Continued)

2. X6 EE @

Project Completion Volume (Continued) 2 IREIE @

Property development completed area (projected): WERZE T TIEE(FEE) :
2018 2019 2020 2021 and after
Completed Area Completed Area Completed Area Completed Area
—E2-N\fF ZE-hF ZEC-B2F ZB--FRUNE
Project Name EEEW TIEE RIEE EIEE EIEE
(sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sg.m.)
(FRK) (EFRK) (EF7K) (FFRK)
Beijing Hopson Regal Riviera EtREEKITR — — 175,766 73,077
Hopson No.8 Royal Park BETERSHR 53,371 53,442 183,371 247912
Hopson Dreams World BEHRN 103,744 - 24,154 24,870
Yuhe Project EMIEE - 10,000 - -
Hopson Regal Park BEEITS - - - 57,926
Hopson Regal Court EERBRTS - 79,607 58,414 -
Beijing Miyun Project I REEER 12,327 - - -
Makeyan Project ERIFIER - - - 615,305
Hopson Regal BAEFE - - - 126,312
Jingjin New Town ROEFH 75,488 168,458 191,837 3,085,060
Tianjin Hopson Belvedere Bay REEEERE 33,760 - - -
Tianjin Hopson International Tower KEEEBBKRE 95,999 101,591 — —
Tianjin Hopson International Mansion KEAHBBRAE 144,880 - - -
Dongli Lake Project REBHIEE - - - 1,130,000
Hopson Regal Seashore BETILGS 14,999 118,207 - 221,674
Taiyuan Hopson International City KERE LB — 113,476 80,000 158,984
Hopson Seasky Villa BEREN 38,318 - - 1,214,049
Hopson Town & £ B 727 - - -
Hopson Sheshan Dongziyuan EEAINEE 18,005 - - -
Hopson Guangfuhui EEEEE - 82,598 26,478 -
Hopson Asset Seascape Residence BENEEELOE - - 13,368 51,025
Shanghai Tea Factory Project FERERIEER - - - 37,366
Kunshan Hopson International Garden EILE AR - 18,659 103,089 289,484
The Town of Hangzhou Bay B ETMNE BB - - 46,126 2,532,618
Hopson Sea Block AHEHE - - - 223,479
Hopson Gallopade Park BERSI - - - 439,529
Hopson Pleasant View Garden EEBRER 7,639 - - 30,047
Hopson Huanan New City AHERFTH - - 15,825 129,590
Hopson Gallopade Park-South Court BERSEMN - - 46,945 —
Guangzhou Hopson Regal Riviera EMNAERITS - - 66,600 432,828
Hopson Regal Villa AEmsILE — — — 63,649
Guangzhou Hopson Belvedere Bay EMNEEERE - - 182,783 —
Hopson Xijing Banshan BEESFI - 35,856 108,949 286,385
Zhujiang Technology Innovation Park KIREEE — - — 193,513
Hopson Hushan Guoiji Villa B I B 50,699 118,536 387,049 508,264
Qianjin Road Project AIERIER - - - 244,300
Hopson TIT International Industrial Park & 4 TITEI 8 2= % - 19,322 30,112 325,900
TIT Project (International Park) TTER (RIZE) - - 132,078 656,347
Hopson Yijing Mingyuan EHEESER 34,707 - - 1,269,002
Hopson Yujing Bay BERRE - - 269,007 1,320,415
Hospson Regal Bay BEWRE - - - 113,070
Hopson International New City B HEBBEIH - - 416,934 49,308
Zhujiang New Industry Innovation Park WIFEEXEE — — — 1,383,667
Shidai City Project BAHIER - - 221,569 1,269,679
Hopson Xiaogui Bay BHENEE - - 144,341 1,411,134
Hopson Seaside Garden BHEBETE - - 96,427 —
Hopson Xiing Garden BHEERT - 66,007 43,484 260,438
Zhongshan Rainbow Project LA B - - - 445,684
Shenzhen Wilcon Industrial Park TR T¥ - — - 59,998
Total A5t 684,663 985,759 3,064,706 20,981,888
EEAIREEERAT ZE—tFFR
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Depufg Chairman’s Statement (continued)
B EFEHRE @

2. Business Review (Continued)

(3) Land Bank

The Group possesses adequate land banks in the first-tier cities,
such as Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou, with excellent quality
and at lower costs. This is also one of the Group’s core competitive
strengths to sustain persistent corporate growth. The Group
balanced the need of long-term and current development and
acquired new lands prudently. As at 31st December 2017, the land
bank of the Group was 29.33 million sg.m., which is sufficient for
the rapid development of the Group in the future.

Usage and Location

5% 0 B m)

T it B

SEAELER LB BME-GWTHEAE
AREBEEXRAREN LB &1
ERFBARAFEZERORLOBEFES 2
— EEVHREZRBEEAMERNT
E - FEHMWHEIH BE_T—LF
TZA=+T—B AEEHELHFE
29338 F K BHmEEBEARKRE
BRI -

RERkitE

Saleable Area (million sg.m.)

AHEERR(BEFHXK)

Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing Tianjin Shanghai  Ningbo Total

BN =M = RE s R Bt

Residential F= 4.36 5.76 3.16 4.88 3.27 0.03 21.46

Shopping arcade [k 1.09 0.25 0.42 0.15 0.20 0.02 213

Office /NS 0.68 0.42 0.27 0.25 0.15 — 1.77

Car parks [EX=:8 1.30 0.62 0.55 0.16 0.45 - 3.08

Hotels B JE 0.21 0.11 0.22 0.18 0.17 - 0.89

Total FEE 7.64 7.16 4.62 5.62 4.24 0.05 29.33
Development Status and Location BREMRRKRMHE

Saleable Area (million sg.m.)

AHEEAR(BBF I XK)

Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing Tianjin Shanghai Ningbo Total

BN =M EI7p- b= L& B et

Completed properties 2 & i 1) % 0.94 0.46 0.76 0.60 0.80 0.05 3.61
Properties under BERYE

development 0.83 0.85 1.26 0.70 1.00 — 4.64
Properties to be FERME

developed 5.87 5.85 2.60 4.32 2.44 — 21.08

Total HET 7.64 7.16 4.62 5.62 4.24 0.05 29.33
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Depufq C|1C|ir>man’s \Sllafemenjf (continued)

Bl ERE |/ E @
2. Business Review (Continued) 2. ¥KEE@m
(3) Land Bank (Continued) (3) L ihfEME @
Development Status and Usage BRANK AR
Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
AHHEEEBR(BEE S K)
Shopping
Residential Arcade Office  Car Parks Hotels Total
] & WAZE EEG BIE et
Completed properties BEIEKE 1.17 0.78 0.38 0.89 0.39 3.61
Properties under BERBME
development 3.42 0.32 0.29 0.57 0.04 4.64
Properties to be developed #F 3 R ¥ % 16.87 1.03 1.10 1.62 0.46 21.08
Total BEr 21.46 213 1.77 3.08 0.89 29.33
Title Status and Location BB REAROR K it &
Saleable Area (million sg.m.)
AHEERR(BETHK)
Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing  Tianjin Shanghai Ningbo Total
B M BEM = RE LB B/ wEt
Land use rights certificates 2 BU/S 1 #1{F F 1.73 1.18 2.21 0.50 1.32 0.05 6.99
and construction works FEREHIRE

planning permits obtained ~ #8 & &F A &

Land use rights certificates 2 B /& + #{ /7 3.32 4.60 1.65 1.92 1.59 - 13.08
obtained but without BERMEE
construction works HIRREET
planning permits Al &8

Construction land use ERGERBH 1.30 - 0.35 0.03 - - 1.68

planning permits obtained #7215 7] &5 {8
but without land use rights R EUE + b

certificates &

Grant of major approvalsand AFF EH X K 1.29 1.38 0.41 3.17 1.33 — 7.58
certificates pending FEHH

Total HBET 7.64 7.16 4.62 5.62 4.24 0.05 29.33

AERIREEARAT T LFFR 23



24

Depufq Chairman’s Statement (continued)
B EFEHRE @

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Business Review (Continued)

Discloseable Transaction in Relation to Framework
Agreement

On 26th July 2017, Huizhou City Yonghua Holdings Limited* (S2/!
MKEBEEARAR) (“Huizhou Yonghua®) and Guangdong
Hopson Dijing Real Estate Co. Ltd. (ERA&4m=EHEARE A R)
(*Hopson Dijing”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a cooperation framework agreement whereby, among
other things, Hopson Dijing agreed (i) to co-operate with Huizhou
Yonghua, a Huizhou Court-approved participant and the initial
investor in the Consolidated Reorganisation (i.e. the bankruptcy
reorganisation of the Distressed Companies (being Huizhou City
Chuangcheng Development Limited* (S f &8I ZEBR A 7)),
Huizhou City Bailitong Real Estate Co. Ltd.* (EM T EFBEES
FR A ), Huizhou City Andun Security Technology Limited* (B4
ZEBHRFEARAET) and Huizhou City Xinghua Holdings
Limited* (MM EZEE 2GR /AF]) through the restructuring of
their indebtedness, assets and ownership pursuant to the orders of
the Huizhou Court made on 27th February 2017 and (i) to facilitate
the implementation of the Restructuring Plan (i.e. the restructuring
plan prepared by the Distressed Companies’ administrator of
bankruptcy reorganisation in respect of the Consolidated
Reorganisation which was approved by the Huizhou Court on 31st
August 2017). Pursuant to the cooperation framework agreement
mentioned above, Hopson Dijing agreed to make the acquisition of
the Distressed Assets (i.e. the rights to collect nine non-performing
loans in the aggregate amount of approximately RMB1,910,668,145
(comprising the outstanding principal, interest and default penalty
owed and/or guaranteed by, among others, the Distressed
Companies) together with the rights and security interests in
pledges over the relevant collaterals) for and on behalf of Huizhou
Yonghua and finance the said acquisition by providing a loan of
RMB1,188 million to Huizhou Yonghua and, subject to the
conclusion of definitive agreement(s), acquire the sale shares (being
equity interest in one of the Distressed Companies) pursuant to the
Restructuring Plan. The transaction contemplated by the agreement
described above constituted a discloseable transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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Depufq Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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3. Risk Management 3. EkER

The changes and risks faced by the PRC real estate market in 2017
included: in view of the adoption of the direction of giving category-
based guidance and implementing different policies according to
specific situation of different cities in the national regulation and
control policies, the sales growth of the area of commercial
residential buildings in first-tier cities declined year-on-year,
whereas the sales growth of the area of commercial residential
buildings in third-and-fourth-tier cities recorded general rise year-
on-year. Meanwhile, the government promoted the establishment
of a sustainable mechanism. Heavy emphasis was placed on
developing the rental housing market. A real estate policy that
encouraged both housing purchase and renting was implemented.
The issues of narrowing financing channels in China were also
addressed. These risks, which may have particular impact on
particular segment of the real estate market in particular
geographical locations, may or may not have an overall material
impact on the Group’s business operations and financial condition
given that the Group is engaging in diversified property
development projects with principal focus spanning across Pearl
River Delta, Huanbohai and Yangtze River Delta economic zones.
The Group will continue to implement prudent operational and
financial policies in seeking to address the impact of these
uncertain factors.

In response to the national policy of giving category-based
guidance and implementing different policies according to specific
situation of different cities, the Group continuously optimised the
product structure of the residential segment and enlarged the
supply proportion of residential properties targeting at rigid demand
and improvement demand in the entire residential segment, so as
to expand the customer base qualified for home purchases under
the regulation and control measures. The Group also continued to
prudently observe the investment potential of the peripheral cities
surrounding three major economic regions that are enjoying
consistent economic growth and net inflow of population, so as to
enrich its land bank at the appropriate time.
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Depufg Chairman’s Statement (continued)
B EFEHRE @

(1)

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Risk Management (Continued)

During the year, the Group also responded to the national housing
policy that encourages both leasing and purchasing. During the
year, the Group cooperated with InterContinental Hotels Group to
transform 108 suites of Hopson No. 8 Royal Park into executive
apartments. In addition, the Group is also committed to optimising
the facilities and services in its property management segment and
propel the Group’s direction on a diversified and balanced
development of light and heavy assets.

Faced with the problem of narrowing financing channels in China,
the Group continued to facilitate the issuance of onshore and
offshore bonds during the year for the sake of broadening the
Group’s channels of acquiring low-cost financing both at home and
abroad and continue to sustain the advantage of controlling finance
cost.

For further risk management measures of the Group, please refer
to “Risk Management and Internal Controls” under the section
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 101 to 103 of the report.

Principal Operating Strategies and
Arrangements of the Group in 2018

Strengthening Products and Services and Building
a Brand for the Group

In respect of residential properties, the Group will refer to
standardised construction cycle and other indicators to conduct
quality and acceptance management. In respect of commercial
properties, the Group will devote more innovative technologies with
artificial intelligence to the customer services applicable to
commercial projects, so as to enhance the competitiveness of
commercial projects. The Group expects to build a trustworthy
brand for customers with high-quality products and services.

Annual Report 2017
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Depufq Chaipman’s Sfofemenjf (continued)
BERE®HRE@®

Principal Operating Strategies and
Arrangements of the Group in 2018 (Continued)

Reinforcing the Projects in the Three Major
Economic Zones and Building Strategic Land Bank

The Group will further reinforce its projects in the three major
economic zones in Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai and Yangtze River
Delta. At the same time, the Group will also play an active role in
“Urban Renewal and Redevelopment” projects in first-tier cities. In
addition, the Group will put more effort into the development
projects located at the peripheral cities of the three major economic
zones and strategically build up its land bank.

Optimsing Residential Segment Product Structure
and Enhancing Property Management Services

On top of developing high-end products, the Group will continue to
optimise its product structure for residential segment by enlarging
the proportion of residential properties targeting at rigid demand
and improvement demand in the entire residential segment. The
Group will also strive to increase the ancillary facilities of residential
products and enhance property management services to propel
the Group’s strategy on the balanced development of light and
heavy assets.

Promoting Professional Management and
Establishing Excellent Corporate Culture

The Group attaches great importance to corporate culture
development. In addition to the promotion of professional and
standardised administration management by conducting various
human resources trainings at work, the Group will also organise a
variety of activities after work to discover employees’ talents in
various aspects and forge an active and progressive corporate
culture among employees.

Appreciation

| would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our management
and all staff members for their hard work and contributions.

CHU Kut Yung
Deputy Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th March 2018
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Hopson Regal Riviera s S84 3I %S
23A, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
1t T ERF5 [& 78 K 22 35 23 5% (1 A 100% #E 25)

5K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 71,850
R AT B 52 T Construction to be completed
- -TF in 2020 175,766
B —FER%E in 2021 and after 73,077
R=ZZT—tF+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+—HztmFEE 31st December 2017 320,693

Hopson Citta Eterna s 84X B E = E
107, Chaoyang North Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
b RS 2 55 30 BE 107 5% (¥ B 100% fE 2= )

VN
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 15,945
R=ZZF—t&F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—Hz:iFHEE 31st December 2017 15,945

Hopson International Garden ¢ &4 BB 6 E
31, Guanggumenwai Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
1t REARS @ B 2R P Ih R B731 5% (B 100% 1 &)

5K
Sqg.m.
BxL Construction completed 3,025
R=ZZF—t&F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztHEE 31st December 2017 3,025
Hopson No. 8 Royal Park ® 54 B EK85%
8, Xiaoyun Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (80% owned)
It ReAGE T EKET (WA 80% L)
K
Sqg.m.
G Construction completed 101,780
AR TR T T Construction to be completed
-—ZE—N\F in 2018 53,371
-—E-NF in 2019 53,442
_—E-TENIE in 2020 and after 431,283
R=ZZF—t&F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HztHEE 31st December 2017 639,876

Dongfangwenhua Art Centre o 3R 75 3 F £ 4ff # /0
West Side of the East Second Ring Road, Dongcheng District, Beijing (97% owned)
ERREHMER - IRE A (EE 7% E )

5K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 141,343
R_T—t&+=A Land bank as at
=+—RBZ i 31st December 2017 141,343

AERIREEARAT T LFFR
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Beijing Hopson Desheng Building * it &4k KE
No. 11 Deshengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing (100% owned)
36 R P I 1E B PI AN K11 5% (B 100% 7 53)

5K
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 53,542
R=ZZT—tF+=A8 Land bank as at
Zt+—HzxmFEE 31st December 2017 53,542
Hopson Kylin Zone o & 4 BB+t
Interchange of Wangjing Futong West Avenue and Wangjing Street,
Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
I RFGERE RS MANENE R ER (HEE100%# %)
75K
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 47,672
RZZE—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzLHHE 31st December 2017 47,672

Hopson Dreams World ¢ & 4 it &4

500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1, Majugiao, Majugiao Town,
Liangshui River South, Yizhuang, Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)

30 7B M & IR SR KR S B0 4 8RS B0 4% 1 55 18 R 500K (¥ A 100% #E 25 )

AR
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 112,193
HERIA TR T Construction to be completed
-ZE-N\F in 2018 103,744
-ZE-ZTFRUE in 2020 and after 49,024
RZZE—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztiEE 31st December 2017 264,961
Yuhe Project  E5A18H B
Plot 11, Southern District of Yuhe Wenbao Area, Dongcheng District,
Beijing (100% owned)
b R Rk & R SR %6 B A g R 11 5% b 38 (BB 100% #E 2 )
TR
Sqg.m.
R TRMTI Construction to be completed
-ZE-NHF in 2019 10,000
RZZE—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—Hz i E 31st December 2017 10,000

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Hopson World Garden ¢ &4ttt R IEE

500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1 Majugiao, Yizhuang, Tongzhou District,
Beijing (100% owned)

16 7@ N [ 75 5E 5 B 5 1 5% 78 B 500K (% A 100% 1 25

5K
Sqg.m.
B 52 T Construction completed 24,436
R=ZZF—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—Hz:HEE 31st December 2017 24,436

Hopson Regal Park e 4B/ 1% S
Qiaozhuang Village, Yongshun Town, Tongzhou District, Beiing (100% owned)
1k 8 N (& ok IR S HEAY (A 100% #E &%)

5K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 55,041
BRATERES T Construction to be completed
——E-—FERBAIE in 2021 and after 57,926
RZZTE—tF+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+—BztifEE 31st December 2017 112,967

Hopson Regal Court ¢ &4 BERFS

Xin Tian Jia Yuan South Zone, No. 21, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing (100% owned)

I RBEEARNEK21RTRNFEE R (EHF100% % 5)

75K
Sqg.m.
R TRMETIT Construction to be completed
-ZE-NHF in 2019 79,607
By o5 in 2020 58,414
RZZE—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HztFEE 31st December 2017 138,021
Beijing Miyun Project » dt WZEIE B
East of Shanzi Reservoir, Bulaotun Village Miyun County (100% owned)
BEZRNEZHEILFKERA (BH100%E =)
75K
Sg.m.
NV RN Construction to be completed
-ZE—N\&F in 2018 12,327
RZZE—+tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HztFEE 31st December 2017 12,327

AERIREEARAT T LFFR
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Makeyan Project ¢ ERHf1EH

Plot A (Southern Region) and Plot D (Southern Region) of Scientific Research
Site of National Environmental Protection Industrial Park, Tongzhou District,
Beijing (100% owned)

Itr@EMNERRRREZEREBHAMAIREE RDH IR =

(% B 100% #E 25)
5K
Sg.m.
N S Construction to be completed
B —ERE in 2021 and after 615,305
R—Z—tF+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+—BztHERE 31st December 2017 615,305
Hopson Regal Fortune Plaza « 84 % S/ E &5 15
Building 223, No. 28 Guangqu Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing (100% owned)
1t R EA R [ 2 R K 28 57 223 5% 12 (HE B 100% HE 25 )
oK
Sqg.m.
B 52T Construction completed 23,864
R=ZZT—tF+=A4 Land bank as at
=t+—HZ i HEE 31st December 2017 23,864

Hopson Regal e 84 %5
East of Wenquan East Road, North of National Highway 102,
Dachang Hui Autonomous County, Langfang City,
Hebei Province (90.91% owned)
A b4 BB 4 T KRR Bl ik B 08 5 102 Bl 5& 4t 8 R 3R 8% R A (% 5 90.91% #E &)

TR
Sqg.m.
HERIATEMTT Construction to be completed
- —FRE in 2021 and after 126,312
RZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzL:iEE 31st December 2017 126,312

34 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



. Jingjin New Town
TR
. Hopson Belvedere Bay

BEERE

. Tianjin Hopson International
Tower
REEEBEBRANE Baodi District

EiK &
. Tianjin Hopson International

Mansion Tianjin
REGEHBEASE .
laal=] /I ) 9&)%

. Dongli Lake Project
REMIEER

Heping District
ATE

Nankai District
EHB /

Jingjin New Town * ZUEH

No. 1, Zhujiang South Road, Zhouliangzhuang Town, Baodi District, Tianjin
(92.3% owned)

REEHRERARFHEKIEE 5% (HH2.3% %)

AR
Sqg.m.
Bl Construction completed 373,853
HRATRETT Construction to be completed
_—E_N\& in 2018 75,488
-ZT-NF in 2019 168,458
BT in 2020 191,837
-—EBE-—FERE in 2021 and after 3,085,060
N-_ZT—+F+—-H Land bank as at
=t+—HztwFEE 31st December 2017 3,894,696

AERIREEARAT T LFFR
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Hopson Belvedere Bay « &4 & 58

Interchange of Donghai Road and No. 1 Shipcanal, Tanggu Development Zone,
Tianjin (100% owned)

RBEEFAEEAE BHERBERRO (FEH100%#E %)

7R
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 21,762
R TRMETT Construction to be completed
-—ZT—-N\F in 2018 33,760
RZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
=+—BziEE 31st December 2017 55,522

Tianjin Hopson International Tower ® X3Z& 4B KA E

Interchange of Fuan Main Street and Xingan Road, Heping District,
Tianjin (at Beian Bridge) (98.9% owned)

RKEMFEELAFRBALERIAO QL LERHE) (#EH8.9%E i)

IR
Sg.m.
R TRMETIT Construction to be completed
-—ZT—-N\F in 2018 95,999
-—ZT—NF in 2019 101,591
RZZF—tF+=H Land bank as at
=t+—Hz T HEHE 31st December 2017 197,590

Tianjin Hopson International Mansion ¢ K254 BB A E

Interchange of Weijin South Road and Shuishang North Road, Nankai District,
Tianjin (100% owned)

R A (& A £ K K FERE R O (B 100% 42 %3 )

7oK
Sqg.m.
HERIATEBTT Construction to be completed
- —E—N\%F in 2018 144,880
RZZE—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BzLHFEE 31st December 2017 144,880

Dongli Lake Project « RE;HER

Dongli Lake West, Dongli Avenue North, East Chitu of Chitu Town, Dongli District,
Tianjin (100% owned)

RERBEATEREINE  RERBLALL - REHIAT (HEH100%E5)

5K
Sqg.m.
R TR TT Construction to be completed
- E-—FERE in 2021 and after 1,130,000
R=ZZF—t&F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HztFEE 31st December 2017 1,130,000

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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22. Hopson Regal Seashore
BETIILFS

(
J

/# Dalian City Centre

o Lvshunkou Station RETE
e JE A 3k
Huang Hai
=8

Hopson Regal Seashore e 84T ILFS
808, Yanbei Road, Tieshan Town, Lvshunkou District, Dalian (100% owned)
AR B O [ 8 L $E B b B 808 5% (¥ B 100% )

TR
Sqg.m.
BERXEL Construction completed 19,485
HERATEREBET Construction to be completed
-ZE—N\F in 2018 14,999
-ZT-NF in 2019 118,207
B —FRLAE in 2021 and after 221,674
R-ZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztifEE 31st December 2017 374,365

AERIREEARAT T LFFR
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Taiquan
KR

P'ovmmal Government

BB
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HE
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\ — Yingpan Street
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Changfeng Street & &
Shanxi University [y
Ba
Xuefu Street £ fF 1 WEAR

Hopson International City ® & 4 Bl B3

West of Bingzhou Road, East of Tiyu Road and North of Eryingpan Street,

Taiyuan, Shanxi (100% owned)

WA SR FF M B& DATE - B8 B BRIASR -

ZEBHENE (B 100% )

75K

Sg.m.

BEL Construction completed 64,617
R TRMTI Construction to be completed

-—ZE—NF in 2019 118,476

-ZT-FTF in 2020 80,000

- ZE-—FER% in 2021 and after 158,984

RZZE—tF+= Land bank as at
=+—H Ziiﬂ%ﬁ% 31st December 2017 417,077

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017

23

23. Hopson International City
& A BRI,




24. Hopson Seasky Villa
B ERET

Hopson Seasky Villa ® &4 X &1

Intersection of Hebei and Liaoning Provinces, Northwestern coast of
Liaodong Bay (51% owned)

FEREAILE  EEMERAE HEBS1%ER)

750K
Sg.m.
ElEas Construction completed 19,467
BRUATEMTT Construction to be completed
-—E—N\F in 2018 38,318
- ZE-—FE R in 2021 and after 1,214,049
RZZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztHEE 31st December 2017 1,271,834
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Hopson Town

B EF W

Hopson Golf Mansion
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& AT — 5%

Hopson Asset Seascape Residence
ALMESRDR

Shanghai Tea Factory Project
GZRERIE R




Hopson Town e & 4 3 FB 34
518, Anning Road, Minhang District, Shanghai (100% owned)
EERITEZEKS5185% (A 100% # 55)

AR
Sg.m.
BERXEL Construction completed 23,517
HERATEBET Construction to be completed
-ZZET—)N\F in 2018 727
RZT—t&+=R Land bank as at
=t+t—HztHHE 31st December 2017 24,244
Hopson Golf Mansion e 84 5B XA E
1095, Jiangpu Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
S5 & TR R 109558 (A 100% 4 %)
75K
Sqg.m.
Ean Construction completed 892
RZZE—tF+=A Land bank as at
=+t—Hz T MFEE 31st December 2017 892
Hopson Sheshan Dongziyuan ® &4 &1L R EE
1189, Linhu Road, Shanghai Sheshan National Holiday Resort,
Shanghai (100% owned)
8 A 1L B SR R 40 MR I MO % 1189 5% (¥ 5 100% #E 21 )
TR
Sqg.m.
B 52 T Construction completed 69,013
HRATEBEL Construction to be completed
-ZE—N\F in 2018 18,005
RZZE—tF+=A Land bank as at
=+t—Bz I MEFEE 31st December 2017 87,018
Hopson Lantern Villa e &4 BEE
199 Nong, Zhenle Road, Zhaoxiang New City, Qingpu District,
Shanghai (100% owned)
B E RS IR K 1997 (A 100% 1 %5)
5K
Sqg.m.
BExL Construction completed 4,150
R—ZZE—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HztHHE 31st December 2017 4,150
Hopson International Garden » &4 BB EE
1290, Changxing East Road, Dongjing, Songjiang District,
Shanghai (94% owned)
BB HOT (& SRR & L B 1290 55% (¥ 94% 1 =)
TR
Sqg.m.
BExT Construction completed 5,858
R=ZZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzLREE 31st December 2017 5,858
BEAREEBRAR ZE—tFFR
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Hopson Dongjiao Villa ® &4 R %85I £

7, 699 Nong, Cuibai Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai (100% owned)

FEHREEFERAK699F 7R (A 100%#25)

5K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 31,497
R—ZE—tF+=-A4 Land bank as at
:+—EIZ:ti1£f§%1% 31st December 2017 31,497

Hopson Yuting Garden ¢ &£ £ E

99, Xiangju Road, Zhaoxiang Town, Qingpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)

LEEREMEESERK9WR (FEH100%HE )

75K
Sqg.m.
Ean Construction completed 6,469
RZZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzL:iEE 31st December 2017 6,469
Hopson International Plaza « &4 B &5
292 Jiefang, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
EE5EE20247 5 (A 100% 4 &)
750K
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 345,944
RZZE—+E+=-A4 Land bank as at
Zt+—BztFEE 31st December 2017 345,944
Hopson Fortune Plaza « &4 8 E &S
488, Feihong Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai (100% owned)
BT O [ TR UL P8 483 5% (k5 100% 1 25)
K
Sqg.m.
Ean Construction completed 51,200
RZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
=+—BHzL:iEE 31st December 2017 51,200

Hopson Guangfuhui * 84 EEE

Lot Nos. 2-5, Guang Fu Lin, Songjiang District, Shanghai (100% owned)

EERTREEEMNFE2ES (A 100%E25)

5K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 8,910
R TRMTIT Construction to be completed
- -NF in 2019 82,598
-—ETF in 2020 26,478
R=_ZF—tF+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+t—HztH#E 31st December 2017 117,986
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Hopson Times Garden ¢ &£ 57 —5%

Lot A14-1, Sanlin Ji Town, Sanlin Town, Pudong New District,
Shanghai (100% owned)

EBHERE R = ME = MR EA14-1 (BEHF 100% 7 25)

5K
Sg.m.
S Construction completed 7,310
R-BE—+F+=-A4 Land bank as at
=t+—BztifEE 31st December 2017 7,310

Hopson Asset Seascape Residence * &4 B BB S A E
Lot E25, New District, Hangzhou Bay Avenue, Longsheng Road, Jinshan,
Shanghai (100% owned)

G 1L BE B B A N VB KB T 1R E25 (HE B 100% 4 25 )

750K
Sg.m.
B 55T Construction completed 53,295
Hﬁ/\ LA T BT T Construction to be completed
- E_ETF in 2020 13,368
—:E:—E&L‘Mﬁ in 2021 and after 51,025
RZZF—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzLHHE 31st December 2017 117,688
Shanghai Tea Factory Project ¢ L3R E I8 H
No. 1300 Jungong Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
LM R E T 13005 (A 100%#E 25)
oK
Sg.m.
BRATEBRET Construction to be completed
- —FERBE in 2021 and after 37,366
RZZT—tF+=A Lank bank as at
=t+—BztHEE 31st December 2017 37,366
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\ =7 \ 38. Hopson World Trade Centre
M & EBRE O
13 < ’
2 ‘:Eé; %g%\\ r Municipal Governme\
FERE O T PEE
’ \
o
\ \ \
\ Y ——] \
/ 51@ "-} Provincial Government )
r / 0% # BT
O \
-— - o o%“a
2
"\E Zhejiang University
I KRE
A
Yaxh ﬂoadﬁ?&

Hopson World Trade Centre ¢ #ii & 4Bl & i
No. 327, Tianmushan Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou (95% owned)
N TR K B L B 327 5% (M B 95% =)

75K
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 87,456
R=ZZF—t&F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HztmFEE 31st December 2017 87,456
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39. Hopson International Garden
& EBRIER

39 Hopson International Garden ¢ &4 BIE 1
Yingzhou Road and south of Xintang River, Zhoushi Town, Kunshan City
(100% owned)

B2 1L 7 J& i 4830 J) R PR 55 B 3T 9 0T DA R (A 100% 48 & )

75K
Sqg.m.
BERXEL Construction completed 37,448
HRATEBEL Construction to be completed
-ZE—NF in 2019 18,659
- B -THF in 2020 103,089
- ZE-—FE R in 2021 and after 289,484
R-ZZE—tF+=A Land bank as at
=+t—Bz T mFEE 31st December 2017 448,680
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40. Hopson International City
4 & BB
2 Jiangbei District
b
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&2 Shey
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S 1;(\00
s‘ B
’ | Znonggue®
¥ Ningbo Universi
1 ingl niversity
@@ﬁ% BRAS
N
o
ngpu Pal
{@a&’k
Hopson International City ¢ & 4= BB 4
No. 1, Zhongbao Road, Zhenhai New City, Ningbo (100% owned)
RGN E B IR 159% (A 100% 4 &)
AR
Sqg.m.
BEXEL Construction completed 48,312
R-TE—+F+=-A Land bank as at
=t+—BztifEE 31st December 2017 48,312
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41. The Town of Hangzhou Bay
BN BRI

The Town of Hangzhou Bay e & 4 471N & B BR #7345

Northwestern region of Hangzhou Bay New District, Cixi (100% owned)
RORMUM = P AL 3 (B A 100% #E 2 )

SR
Sqg.m.
BEXT Construction completed 66,808
BRATERBTT Construction to be completed
- E-EHF in 2020 46,126
B —FE KA in 2021 and after 2,532,618
RZZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzLHHE 31st December 2017 2,645,552

GHEAREEERLAT T tLFEH 47



—Takanq
A}

42. Hopson Sea Block
A RS

Liujiagang Town

Hopson Sea Block ® & 4 3
No. 588, Longjiang Road, Taicang (100% owned)

KB BT 3868855 ( A 100% 1 &5 )

75K
Sqg.m.
N S Construction to be completed
——E-—FE KB in 2021 and after 223,479
RZZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztiEE 31st December 2017 223,479
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Hopson Gallopade Park
BERSEE

Hopson Pleasant View Garden Huadu Dit %

BEBRSE THE

Hopson Huanan New City

BEERMNW 60

Hopson Gallopade Park — South
Court

Luogang District

SBERREE BEE
T\Opson\RegalgRNlera \ Baiyun District
SERIIHR K HEE
Guangshen Express
Tianhe District BORE R

Hopson Regal Palace N—
BETBRED

Guangsan Express

Foshan
#lm

Huangbu District

S
’i X/

Nanhai District

Hopson Yijing Huayuan BEE

BERRER

Hopson Zhuijiang International Tower

& HER BRARE

Hopson Yunshan Xijing
(=] = R s
e Ti " : Guangzhou
x ; ianhe Railway Station N "
. B = o E3=pmpet Science City (5%
. Hopson Regal Villa my;ﬂg; ric L = ] BN
- e e
= = Tidhhe District "—'t,—t{}c
o AE 7 = S
Hopson Belvedere Bay e 3 rf [ S
A He E = Yuexiu District I‘ “—l*'i
= e
= #EE [ \ ) .
% Metro Line No.5
Hopson Plaza Dongshan District \ LR 46|
& EES RS v R,

Hopson Xijing Banshan
BEERFI

. Zhujiang Technology Innovation Park 4

N e 57 o

Ek L ﬁl’ EZ /E‘J SN . Haizhu District
BHRE

Hopson Regal International B o Guangzhou
BEFBRER : BN
& & R B '
Metro Line No.3 ‘I Guangzhou
HAVA letro Line No. . " -
Hopson Hushan Guaji Villa E University City

; HB=HE EMNARH
A A9 L B R
Panyu District ll

o . EEE 3
. Qianjin Road Project
Al E IS TE B

Hopson TIT International Industrial
Park
A HETITE R 2 % B

. TIT Project (International Park)
TTEE (BHEE)

Hopson Yijing Mingyuan
SEBERZR
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Hopson Gallopade Park « &4 8BS E
No. 190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)

J& N 2R [ AR LU K58 190 5% (7 7B 95% HE 25 )

75K
Sqg.m.
B 5E Construction completed 2,044
BRATERTT Construction to be completed
- T —FRNE in 2021 and after 439,529
R=ZZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HztFEE 31st December 2017 441,573
Hopson Pleasant View Garden ¢ 84 ®& S 2F
No. 1028 Guangzhou Avenue South, Haizhu District,
Guangzhou (94.98% owned)
JBE M 7 2K [ FE M K 38 R 1028 55 (% 5 94.98% 1 71 )
75K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 23,397
R TRMTI Construction to be completed
-—E-)N\#F in 2018 7,639
- —ERE in 2021 and after 30,047
RZT—t&+=A Land bank as at
=t+t— Bz LG 31st December 2017 61,083
Hopson Huanan New City ® &4 3 & # i
Xingnan Avenue, Panyu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BN 25 5 [ B g K 7B (HE B 100% 7 2 )
TR
Sqg.m.
BEL Construction completed 95,677
BRATEBRET Construction to be completed
- B _TE in 2020 15,825
-—_ - —F K& in 2021 and after 129,590
R=ZZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HztFEE 31st December 2017 241,092

Hopson Gallopade Park - South Court « &4 B S /%8
No. 190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)
J& )W 2R 0A] [ AR L K 38 190557 (HE B 95% 1 2 )

750K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 39,767
BRI TREZT Construction to be completed
- -TF in 2020 46,945
R=ZZF—t&F+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzLHHE 31st December 2017 86,712
Hopson Regal Riviera e 84 351 % 5
No. 1, Haojing Street, Yizhou Road, Haizhu District,
Guangzhou (99.5% owned)
B IR E N R R 815 (B 99.5% %)
750K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 130,952
HERIA T EE T Construction to be completed
- T HE in 2020 66,600
- —E-—FER% in 2021 and after 432,828
RZZF—tF+=H Land bank as at
=t+—BztHFEE 31st December 2017 630,380

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017
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Hopson Regal Palace » &4 % =%

Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)

JE 38 2K 12 7% feel E M K48 (BE 5 100% #E 25)

5 oK
Sqg.m.
BEL Construction completed 4,707
RZZTE—tF+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+—BztHEE 31st December 2017 4,707
Hopson Yijing Huayuan « &4 B2 %5
Dongxiao South Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BN /8 TR [ BR R R B (B B 100% #E 25)
5K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 20,841
R=ZZT—tF+=A4 Land bank as at
Zt+—BztiFEE 31st December 2017 20,841

Hopson Zhujiang International Tower » &£ BT BB X B
No. 114-116 Yuehua Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)

BEINES RS ER 114211658 (A 100% #25)

750K
Sqg.m.
BE7xL Construction completed 95,746
R=ZF—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t— Bz LHhFEE 31st December 2017 95,746
Hopson Yunshan Xijing e 84 ZILES
Guangzhou Avenue North, Baiyun District, Guangzhou (70% owned)
BMBEREREMNKEIL(HEH70%E =)
75K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 8,149
RZZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
Zt+—BztiFEE 31st December 2017 8,149
Hopson Regal Villa e 4 & &1L H
Aoti Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
JB& N 2R [ BB g8 B (#E75 100% HE %)
75K
Sqg.m.
BEREL Construction completed 20,165
75 5 DA TR B RS 52 T Construction to be completed
—_—E-—FENIE in 2021 and after 63,649
RZZF—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztifEE 31st December 2017 83,814
EEAIREEERAT ZE—tFFR
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Hopson Belvedere Bay * &4 & =&
Huangai Beicun Avenue, Dali, Nanhai District, Foshan,
Guangzhou (100% owned)
BN LS @ KB = LA K8 (B 100% # 25)

75K
Sqg.m.
BET Construction completed 89,250
R AT EET T Construction to be completed
-—E-TF in 2020 182,783
R=ZZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
=+t—BzLMRFEE 31st December 2017 272,033

Hopson Plaza ® 54 &5

Interchange of Guangzhou Avenue South and Diejing Road (opposite to
the governmental office of Haizhu District), Haizhu District, Guangzhou
(100% owned)

BN/ IRIE M KB B R ER (8 K& BT # ) (%5 100% # &)

AR
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 188,245
R-_ZE—+FE+—-H8 Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiREE 31st December 2017 188,245
Hopson Xijing Banshan » §4£E R ¥ 1
Hongbenggang Reservoir, Shiling Town, Huadu District, Guangzhou
(95.5% owned)
JB& N i P [ 440 48 4EL AT BA = 2K BB (5 95.5% 1 7)) ok
Sqg.m.
HE R A T e 52 T Construction to be completed
:T j1,¢ in 2019 35,856
- E_ETF in 2020 108,949
_—E-—FERE in 2021 and after 286,385
RZZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HztmFEE 31st December 2017 431,190
Zhujiang Technology Innovation Park * BIRH &I EE
Machao Industry Estate, Jiufo Town, Guangzhou (65% owned)
J& M LB $EL 55 8 T3 AT (M 5 55% R 51)
75K
Sqg.m.
R A TR T Construction to be completed
B —FRKLAE in 2021 and after 193,513
RZT—t&+=HR Land bank as at
=t+—BztHEE 31st December 2017 193,513

Hopson Regal International » & 4 7 S B
No. 188, Changgang Mid Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BB ERE S = B 1885% (A 100% 1 25 )

5K
Sqg.m.
2xT Construction completed 28,712
R=ZF—tF+=A8 Land bank as at
:—i——ElZitﬂgf%%{% 31st December 2017 28,712
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Hopson Hushan Guoiji Villa ® & 4 3 1L Bl B
Yuanzhang Avenue, Xintang Town, Zengcheng City (100% owned)

BT EEREANE (EH100%E5)

75 oK
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 3,032
BRATEBRET Construction to be completed
-ZT—N\F in 2018 50,699
-—T—NF in 2019 118,536
_—E-THF in 2020 387,049
B —E K% in 2021 and after 508,264
R=ZZF—t&F+=A Land bank as at
Zt+—BztiFEE 31st December 2017 1,067,580
Qianjin Road Project * A IEHR
South of Qianjin Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BN /S BRI AT BS DA R (HE B 100% A )
75K
Sqg.m.
BHRATEBTET Construction to be completed
- —E-—FE KA in 2021 and after 244,300
RZZE—tF+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+—BztHEE 31st December 2017 244,300

Hopson TIT International Industrial Park ¢ S4£TITEFREXE
Dawo Village, Tanbu Village, Huadu District, Guangzhou (65% owned)
JB& N B [ ik 2P A SR AR A (B 65% fE 7 )

75K
Sqg.m.
BRATEBRET Construction to be completed
-ZE—NF in 2019 19,322
-—ZT-TF in 2020 30,112
S —E-—ER% in 2021 and after 325,900
RZZE—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzLHHE 31st December 2017 375,334

TIT Project (International Park) e TITE B (R E &)
No. 489 Xingang Mid Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (65% owned)
JB& N T 8 2K [ 377 AP B 489 5% (5 65% HE 7 )

7oK
Sqg.m.
HERIA TR E T T Construction to be completed
- EFEHF in 2020 132,078
_—E-—FER%E in 2021 and after 656,347
RZZE—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HztHHE 31st December 2017 788,425

Hopson Yijing Mingyuan e 84 E £ & %t

Adjacent to the Family Healthcare Hospital of the Province, Xingnan Avenue,
Panyu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)

BMEBEEEANEE G ERS (HEH100%E )

5K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 15,484
BRATEBRET Construction to be completed
-—EF—N\F in 2018 34,707
—_—E-—FENBE in 2021 and after 1,269,002
R=_ZT—tF+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+—HztiHEE 31st December 2017 1,319,193
CEAREEERATE —E—tEFR
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rhﬂzhou
=M

Huizhou
=N

)
Q‘dﬁﬁ
X Dongjia'ng ‘\\S\?ir\;‘@;
o Industrial ‘e\\‘)\e %)

>

Zengcheng  Huizhou Municipal
8 355 Government
FNH B

Hopson Yujing Bay » &4 1S
No. 1, Longhe East Road, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)
M TR O 3B 3R BR 1 5% (B 100% #E 71 )

5K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 108,525
R IA T8 T Construction to be completed
B -TF in 2020 269,007
_—E-—FE R in 2021 and after 1,320,415
R=ZZF—t&F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztHEE 31st December 2017 1,697,947

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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. Hopson Seaside Garden

& HERIEE




Hopson Regal Bay « 84 % &8
No 2, Wenchangyi Road, Jiangbei District, Huizhou (100% owned)
BN TITAE R X 8 —#&25% (BB 100% # &)

5 oK
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 63,325
75 5 DA TR B RS 52 T Construction to be completed
—_—E-—FENIE in 2021 and after 113,070
R=_ZT—tF+=-A8 Land bank as at
=t+t—HztH#E 31st December 2017 176,395

Hopson International New City o & 4 B B 5 45
The Corner of Sanhuan East Road, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)

BMKORNEZIRERES (A 100%E55)

75K
Sqg.m.
BExL Construction completed 140,135
BRA TR LT Construction to be completed
B -TF in 2020 416,934
T —ERE in 2021 and after 49,308
R=ZZT—tF+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+—BztHEE 31st December 2017 606,377

Zhujiang New Industry Innovation Park ¢ BT H R EZ A=
Taipingxu, Taiping Village, Licheng Street, Zengcheng City (100% owned)
R TH 7 W K T AR T4 (BB B 100% # 55 )

TR
Sqg.m.
BRATEBET Construction to be completed
—_—E-—FENIE in 2021 and after 1,383,667
R=ZZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztifEE 31st December 2017 1,383,667
Shidai City Project B X158 B
Xiangshuihe South, West side of Daya Bay (100% owned)
X S5 2 7 [ 2 K] 7 B i BR (B 100% 1 25)
5K
Sqg.m.
AT R 58 T Construction to be completed
- —E_EF in 2020 221,569
- —E-—ER%E in 2021 and after 1,269,679
RZZT—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztifEE 31st December 2017 1,491,248

Hopson Xiaogui Bay &4 /N
The West of Holiday Inn, Anhui Avenue, Aotou, Daya Bay Area (100% owned)
Ao R R B R N E R BB S 78 A (B 100% 4 %)

5 K
Sqg.m.
R Construction completed 148,729
HERATEBZET Construction to be completed
B -TF in 2020 144,341
T ERLE in 2021 and after 1,411,134
R_ZE—tF+_=-A8 Land bank as at
=t+t—HzLHHE 31st December 2017 1,704,204

BEAREEERAA

ZE—tFFR
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Hopson Seaside Garden » &4 8= TEE

Land located at Changkeng, Yapojiao, Chuan’ao Village, Renshan Town,
Huizhou City (100% owned)

BN TS L S AR N Z 2 E ARG B (BEH 100% R %)

TR
Sqg.m.
HRATEBTEL Construction to be completed
_—m—=& in 2020 96,427
R=ZZF—tF+=H Land bank as at
=t+—BztHEE 31st December 2017 96,427
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. Hopson Zhongshan Regal Court / , /v Y ; -
BEPILFERE %%
\ .

. Hopson Xijing Garden

= = A7
AR — 3 B
" Rainbow B ge

Q
<.
. Zhongshan Rainbow Project PAAREY 9?9
I IER /L‘ Yixian Lake Park
® miHAE o™ &
o

02 ® &
/ e N %

ZhongshanPark
Rl AE j
Zhongshan
AL
7' /

Hopson Zhongshan Regal Court ¢ &4 # |LF S5
Linggang District, Huoju Development Zone, Zhongshan (100% owned)

R L T AR 2 (R B e [ (M B 100% #E 23)

AR
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 76,580
R-_ZE—+F+_-H8 Land bank as at
=t+—BztEE 31st December 2017 76,580
Hopson Xijing Garden « 84 E£ £ E
Dongkeng, South District, Zhongshan (95% owned)
AL T R [ R T (R 95% 1 25)
AR
Sqg.m.
A TEREET Construction to be completed
— == jLE in 2019 66,007
- -TF in 2020 43,484
- T —FERAE in 2021 and after 260,438
RZZE—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztiEE 31st December 2017 369,929
Zhongshan Rainbow Project ¢ #4118 B
Caihong Planning Zone, West District, Zhongshan (95% owned)
AR LT G [ R AT AR B [ (HE 76 95% 1 4w )
A
Sqg.m.
AR IA T fE 58 T Construction to be completed
—ZE-—ERE in 2021 and after 445,684
RZZE—tF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HztHHE 31st December 2017 445,684

BEARKEEERAR T LEER




\SI’]QI’IZLQI’]

2l

Pingxi Road: 73. Shenzhen Wilcon Industrial Park
s RYBE T XM
\ Longcheng Avenue
REEAE
\
\
\
\
:
Yanlong Avenue Road
HEEAE !
I
I
I
Shenzhen I
wYIH |
I
I
I
I
I
[}
/ Longgang Interchange
V4 [ HEbE
e

L4
»
#  Shuanglong
& ui

Shenzhen Wilcon Industrial Park ¢ ;#YII8% T #£E

No. 53 Xiantian Road, Xin Sheng Village, Longgang Road Office, Longgang
District, Shenzhen (100% owned)

AR I T BE [ [ HE M AT 48 I BT AR AL B B 53 5% (B 100% 4 )

75K

Sqg.m.

HRATEBTEL Construction to be completed

B —ERE in 2021 and after 59,998
R-ZZT—tF+=A Land bank as at

=t+—HztFEE 31st December 2017 59,998
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REWME—EX

Details of the investment properties of the Group as at 31st December =& —

2017 are as follows:

tE+=A=+—8"

EX 7NN

SEREME

Approximate

Group’s interest Existing use gross floor area
Location 1 B SEAiEER B Al A& BHOEEEE
(sq.m.)
(75 3K)
Beijing Hopson Desheng Building AR R BE L R 100% Office/ 57,074
No. 11 Deshengmenwai Street H I = retail and carparking
Xicheng District EREPIINARET 11557 WA=/
Beijing, Mainland China tREEEBAE TEREES
Hopson Kylin Xintiandi AR E K BE L R 100% Commercial/ 48,694
Interchange of Wangjing Futong West LN shop and carparking
Avenue and Wangjing Street PREEmEEAEE GEY
Chaoyang District EREXER HERiEER
Beiiing, Mainland China B BB K
Makeyan Project B A BE 4L R 100% Commercial/ 625,006
Plot A (Southern Region) and BN E office and carparking
Plot D (Southern Region) of RIRREXE R B CE4
Scientific Research Site of A3 AL 58 [ WARRESEE
National Environmental Protection Db 3 & [&
Industrial Park SEER
Tongzhou District
Beijing, Mainland China
Hopson Regal Fortune Plaza AR K BE L R 100% Commercial/ 23,864
Building 223 S5 office and retail
No. 28 Guangqu Road J& 2% % 2857 223 5% 12 EEYE
Chaoyang District EETRUEES MASREE
Beijing, Mainland China
Hopson One Shopping Mall A K B b 100% Commercial, retail 226,899
No. 21 Dawang Road West 5@ and carparking
Chaoyang District i K2R 21 5% Ax-TER
Beijing, Mainland China SHEEREYF L =285
Hopson International Plaza B K RE i 100% Commercial/office/ 313,161
292 Jiefang 158 & retail and carparking
Yangpu District 202154 HEPAE
Shanghai, Mainland China AEBEBRES TERE ﬁ iz
Hopson Fortune Plaza R ARE i 100% Commercial/office/ 53,614
483, Feihong Road 4T O [@ retail and carparking
Hongkou District UL B% 483 5% E N
Shanghai, Mainland China BEMEES ﬁi%é& = ﬁg
Hangzhou Hopson World Trade Centre R KREENTE 95% Commercial/office/ 92,418
No. 327, Tianmushan Road M retail and carparking
Xihu District gl EEYE -4
Hangzhou X B B8 327 5% TEREEE
Zhejiang Province, Mainland China mM4E i B & Ao
Hopson Zhuijiang International Tower R ABEERSE 100% Commercial/office/ 95,378
No. 114-116 Yuehua Road BEM retail and carparking
Yuexiu District WE R BmEMAE
Guangzhou MERRA14ZE 11658 gé&gﬁ%
Guangdong Province, Mainland China BHERIBEBRKE
Hopson Plaza RREAEERSE 100% Commercial/ 163,893
Guangzhou Avenue South BEM retail and carparking
Haizhu District IR [SEVE
Guangzhou BINKER TEREEE
Guangdong Province, Mainland China BEREYS
Hopson Regal International EP B REERE 100% Commercial/ 18,250
No. 188 Changgang Mid Road BEM retail and carparking
Haizhu District BERE o
Guangzhou & i §& 188 5% TEREEE
Guangdong Province, Mainland China AEFTEEK
Hopson Gallopade Plaza REKEERSE 100% Commercial/ 25,739
No. 1138 West of Zhongshan Avenue M retail and carparking
Tianhe District oAl (@ EEYS
Guangzhou LR E 113855 TEREEIE
Guangdong Province, Mainland China BERRES
Shenzhen Wilcon Industrial Park B A BE SR | 100% Office 59,998
No. 53 Xiantian Road BE & N
Xin Sheng Village BE M AT iE
Longgang Road Office A
Longgang District lli FB B& 53 5%
Shenzhen, Mainland China FIRE TEER
BRERIREBEARAR —+EFR 59
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DiPeCJIOPs’ DPol[ile
EEEHN

Executive Directors

HITES

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

CHU Mang Yee, aged 57, has been a director of the Company (the “Director”) since 1997. He is the Chairman of
the Company and one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Chu has over twenty years’ experience in trading,
construction, property investment and development. He is also an Honoured Citizen of Meizhou of Guangdong
Province and the Vice Chairman of Guangdong Research Institute for the Development of Corporate Strategy. Mr.
Chu is the sole director of Sounda Properties Limited. Sounda Properties Limited is a substantial shareholder of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. He is also the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Chu is the father of Ms. Chu Kut Yung, an executive Director and
Deputy Chairman of the board of Directors (the “Board”).

KREMR 575w B NMNEFHEARRESRT(EFR) - RAARALIERAEEME D —AIHMA -
RELEES BE DERENERITAFEA_TFER -RAAEREEBNTRETRMERE
XERRBARRIER -KEERMEEXARRAZE-—ES REZEF BB HERIIEXVEE  #iE
EXERAFARBARAZIERR - BARARBAREZZBEIR AAEERBTESFTHREFE(ES
EHEITEREBRLLZXH -

CHU Kut Yung, aged 30, graduated from the Renmin University of China, majoring in Finance with solid
knowledge in finance principles and comprehensive investment skills. She has been appointed as the Executive
Vice President of the Company since March 2012 and was appointed as an executive Director of the Company in
November 2011. She is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company. She was an intern of the Group in 2007
and 2008, and held the position as Assistant to President from 2009 to 2011. She has worked in areas relating to
financial and human resource management of the Company, and thus accumulated extensive and professional
experience in such areas. She is also a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Chu has been
appointed as Deputy Chairman of the Company since 11th July 2013. Ms. Chu is the daughter of Mr. Chu Mang
Yee, the Chairman of the Board.

KRIERE 305 EERTEARAZCRPEX AEZENCHNERANANR 2 EMAIRE EH KL -
B —_F-_ARBEZERARABHEAGE BR -2 F+ - ARZEIREARANTES - b
HRERARAZHEBRARZES -A_TTLFN _ZZT)\FEEFAEENEELE R_TTNFE_F
— - FEBRARE YOBEARAUE ANTHREIEIE BET - ENUBEENMANERE
BEEXTHEER -RARAARREZEGKE BT =ZF LA+ HE RXIEBZEAAR
FEER RELLREFEITFRBHRAEEZL

AU Wai Kin, aged 61, has been an executive Director since 1997. Mr. Au joined the Group in 1995. He is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Au graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University in Guangzhou and
has over twenty years’ experience in construction of buildings, town planning, real estate investment and property
development.

BER 61 B - MNEFHERTEF BHAEER - ANAFNBAER Y AXAAZHENBEL

AZEF - WREERBMBLAS - BALASTRE MOAE HELARMERRTARM -1
SEEH -
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Directors’ Profile (continued)
EEEHN @

LIAO Ruo Qing (resigned on 29th December 2017), aged 53, has been an executive Director since 21st January
2010. He is also a Vice President of the Group and director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liao
graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University in Guangzhou and obtained a Master degree from the University of
Western Sydney of Australia. Mr. Liao joined the Group in 2003. He worked in government department and
engaged in real estate investment and business management for over ten years and has extensive experience in
working with government departments, legal affairs and investment development.

BEEWR _Z—tF+_A-_t+NLAHME) 8% BT ZFF-A_+ - HBHEEHRTES K
NAEREEBERRARARETHBRARZES BAESEREMNP I ARBIW RN EEE KSR
TEL -BEAR_TZ=_FMEAEE -FEERFHPIEER HEFHERERELEERETE+#
FOBRTEEMNYEBARM ZRFEBRRERETHENERLR-

XIE Bao Xin, aged 37, joined the Group in July 2002 and was the General Manager of Finance and Investment
Management Centre of the Group and the companies of the Group established in the Guangzhou District. He
graduated from the Sun Yat-Sen University Lingnan (University) College and obtained a Bachelor degree in
Economics. He has over ten years of experience in real estate and finance management. Mr. Xie has been
appointed as executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since 11th July 2013. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

HEE 7m R_EE_FLANAREE SEEASEYBERKEDOAERAEEE/MNDE D
AMBRRER LA - REERFILABEB (KB Bk YREKES L EM - FREWERM B
ERTHERATHFLR BT =ZFLtATBE HEERZERLRARNTESTRIBR
B BARARARZETHERAR ZES -

BAO Wenge, aged 40, is a Vice President of the Group and Chairman of business investment department. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from the Tianjin University of Commerce and
obtained a Bachelor degree in Economics. Mr. Bao joined the Group in 2000. He has worked in the real estate
industry for over 17 years and successfully carried out several large-scale real estates projects. He is familiar with
the operation of commercial properties, office buildings, residential projects, and hotel and property management.
He has over 17 years of experience in real estate operation and management, marketing and operation
management. Mr. Bao has been appointed as an executive Director of the Company since 18th November 2014.

BISHE 405 BARAKEAGEREEREAEEREER WARARAETHEARZES - KE
ERNREBEARBYHARBEREZLBM -HEEN _ZZTFNMAREE - RN FHEZE TIER7
FoURDHELZEREFHERR - RAZHEDE BFR FTHEBEZEE URBEERDEE
B-FREHELERER THEHELLEEERRBAIVFER -RE-_F—NF+ AT \BREE
RERTRBATESE -
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Directors’ [>Pofde (continued)
EE/ET @

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BAUFHTES

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

LEE Tsung Hei David, Chris, BBS, JP, aged 68, is an independent non-executive Director. David C Lee is the Chairman
and Managing Director of DH Group Investment Ltd, DH Capital (HK) Ltd, DS Capital Group Co Ltd, DS Transport
Interchange Development Ltd and Guangzhou DHC Investment Advisory Ltd. He is also the Chief Development Officer of
Hong Kong Shanghai Medical Development Ltd. He qualified as a Chartered Valuation Surveyor in 1973 and was
registered as an Authorised Person in 1977. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a Registered
Professional Surveyor, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, an associate of the Incorporated Society of
Valuers and Auctioneers, and an associate of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Lee is a former member of the
Central Policy Unit, which is known as the Government “Think Tank”, a past Chairman of the Hong Kong Housing
Society, a former member of the Supervisory Board of the Hong Kong Housing Society, a former director of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited, a former Council member of Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a former
member of the Land and Building Advisory Committee, and the Steering Committee on review of the Urban Renewal
Strategy. He is currently a member of the Salvation Army Advisory Board and Chairman of the Property Advisory
Committee of the Salvation Army. Mr. Lee has been a member of the Board since 1998. He is also the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee;
and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.

TER WEAEE AFHL 68 BUFPTEZ - FEERREZEEAREARAA KE2EXR
(BB)BRRA  BHEABRAR SERXBEAFHMEHAZERAFAMEMNGZRELZABR QA
IFEROTBEH -FRETABLBEEREBRDAERAE BN - NMEt=ZFREXBEERFHAEM
B YR —NEEFEMARBTAL - RRBEEMNEMBEEREE FEAMBEXNSM FEE
FEEEARTE REMGERNENSZSSERABFINAAZERE FEEEREBBRNT AR
RABIBNERE) Z2AEZE BEFEGRANIE EAFEHSEESNEE FERBEERE
BARZAES FRETIARBINE BFREIHMEREAZEGANZERTREEZRBRANELE
EEMEE WK AREERNEZESZE NN ENEBRBZEG IR TAEB - NAANFRE
Exg((EFG)RE BT ARFARAZLERZES FHZEQGRHERS HMEALRFZES
FiRIREEZREXE -

=
I

(52}

=

TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron, aged 62, has been an independent non-executive Director since 2nd July 2010. Mr.
Tan currently serves as Senior Advisor to a global financial services firm and is also an independent non-executive
director of a local bank. Prior to this, Mr. Tan was the managing director and head of the Hong Kong investment
banking business of Barclays Capital. Mr. Tan holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
Alberta and has obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from City University in the United States of
America. He is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Canadian Bankers. Mr. Tan has over 25 years of experience in
the banking industry in both Canada and Hong Kong. Mr. Tan had held senior positions in several major and
international financial institutions including Citicorp, JP Morgan Chase and HSBC. Mr. Tan has a wide breadth of
experience in corporate and investment banking as well as capital markets. Mr. Tan was formerly the Vice
Chairman of the Hong Kong Capital Markets Association. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee of the Company.

BEEF 625 BT ZHFLA_HREIBUINTEST MAELB A HEREBRBRE AR ZE
MERE N — B A IRITE B IEH1TE = o L BIR % 4 A Barclays Capital 2 & B4 KB R BB R EIRT
7% 2 £F o BRI 45 A University of Alberta i 2 2 4 237 - 3 B 15 3 B City University T 75 & I 18 T 231 o
BAMERBITIRBES LT - MEERNEARE B ZRITEREB25F K5 o BRI 4 L Citicorp
JP Morgan Chase R EL RITEZRALEE S RMEBREISABL REERCERRERTURLE
AMGHEELER S REEBEAEEABTEEAMBRAGZAER BMARARZERZZEES -
MEEe REZESRUERS HMEALRZEZEERE -

CHING Yu Lung, aged 48, has been an independent non-executive Director since 1st July 2015. Mr. Ching currently
serves as a financial consultant. Prior to this, Mr. Ching worked as the chief financial officer and company secretary of
two companies listed on the Stock Exchange. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and an executive master degree in business administration from Tsinghua University
in 1992 and 2006, respectively. Mr. Ching is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has more than 25 years of experience in auditing, corporate finance and accounting. He is also a member of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related
Party Transactions Committee of the Company.

BUE 8 BT hAFtA-BREEBUIFNTES - BEELRTRUBEM - A BE4L
RMEARBZXAETHNABAZERMBERIAME - ONR - WA _FR_ZZNFREELF
XABRTITHERBLRURBEEABTRARIAERR LR -RELRBTRGMMAERRES
HARSHMAGERGR  TAXHEMEMHees -BEENZE CEXRENSFTHIHESR
BBSFEB - BRARARAZEREZES FHEES REZEGRHMERS HWEALXRZEES
KB -
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SREEBEN

ZHENG Yaoqin, aged 56, Vice President of the Group and General Manager of Guangdong Hechuang Construction Company
Limited. Mr. Zheng graduated from Guangdong University of Technology. He is a national first-class registered architect and
senior engineer. He served as the General Manager of Guangdong Hanjian Construction Company Limited (& 58 §% & T 12 484
BAMR A7) and the General Manager of Guangdong Zhujiang Engineering Construction Limited (E R kT T2 42:%& 8 A R A 7).
He joined our Group as Deputy General Manager of Northern China regional office of the Group and the General Manager of
Guangdong Hechuang Construction Company Limited in 2015. Mr. Zheng has extensive experience in real estate development,
engineering management and cost control.

HMES 565 AEHARHRERGA TIRAABARAFAAKEE - BLEEEXNERTIXKRE  BRBEK R
A& SR TEM ERBRNERBETREAEARAFAKE ERWITREAACBERAAALES
B-R _E-—AFNEASEEEASEZEIHERAKLERERCA IRAABARARAKLE BE4LHEE
ENREMEMELR TRREELR RNAEELR-

HE Hui, aged 37, Assistant President of the Group. Ms. He graduated from University of International Business and Economics

with a Bachelor degree. She joined our group in 2004 and has served as Financing Manager, Vice General Manager and then
General Manager of Investment and Financial Management Centre. Ms. He has wide exposure in financial management.

375 AEEMEAR -AXTEXNWINEEEFIAZ BELEU -R_STMENEAEE  LREFE
MEKE REAVKEEPLAAKLENELESR AXIHALENMBERLR -
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Financiol IQeview

Bt %5 Bl R

Turnover

(i)

(ii)

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Recognised Sales

The Group recognised a turnover of HK$13,824 million in 2017,
down 15% comparing to HK$16,256 million of 2016. The overall
GFA delivered by the Group in 2017 was 760,134 square metres
(2016: 993,635 square metres), which mainly included Hopson
Hushan Guoji Villa (& 4 # 1L BIEX) and Hopson Regal Riviera (& 4
KT 8) in Guangzhou, Hopson No. 8 Royal Park (& 4= 5 Z #5855%)
in Beijing, Hopson Asset Seascape Residence (&£ &/8 = A £E)
in Shanghai, and Hopson International New City (& 4 BIFR #13) in
Huizhou.

The overall average selling price in respect of delivered and
completed properties was RMB11,847 (2016: RMB11,815) per
square metre, which was basically the same compared with the
previous year.

Contracted Sales

During the year, the Group recorded a total of RMB9,228 million
contracted sales (2016: RMB8,089 million), up 14%. As affected by
the structure of product sales, the average contracted selling price
increased 16% to RMB12,680 per square metre (2016:
RMB10,975 per square metre).

Nineteen property projects were on sale in Guangdong and the
contracted sales were RMB3,335 million in 2017, representing 36%
of the total contracted sales of the Group. The major projects in
Guangdong were Hopson International New City (& 4= BIER#73),
Hopson Xiing Garden (& 4 & 5 7EE&), Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa (&
AL EIRR), Hopson Yujing Bay (& 415 /&) and Hopson Regal
Riviera (B £ TIH =)

The combined contracted sales of Beijing and Tianjin were
RMB1,909 million, representing 21% of the total contracted sales
of the Group in 2017. Ten projects were on sale in Beijing and
Tianjin, of which Hopson No. 8 Royal Park (&4 & E#&8%%) and
Jingjin New Town (FUZ#73) were the major sales contributors.

There were eight property projects on sale in Shanghai, mainly
comprising Hopson Asset Seascape Residence (& 481 &8 5 A £8)
and The Town of Hangzhou Bay (& 471N /& B[R #3k). Contracted
sales of Shanghai amounted to RMB3,984 million, representing
43% of the total contracted sales of the Group.

Annual Report 2017
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(i)

(ii)
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Financiol Review (continued)
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales included land and construction costs, decoration and
design costs, and capitalised interest. There was a decrease in
recognised sales this year as compared with the previous year and
accordingly, resulted in a decrease of cost of sales by 25.8% to
HK$8,738 million (2016: HK$11,776 million) and a decrease of proportion
to turnover by 9% to 63% (2016: 72%).

Gross Profit

Gross profit margin percentage increased from 27.6% in 2016 to 36.8%
in 2017, which was mainly attributable to the increase in the proportion of
the delivery of projects with relatively higher gross profit margins during
the year, such as Hopson No. 8 Royal Park (& 4 5 £ 15 85%) and Hopson
Regal Riviera (& 43T % &) in Guangzhou.

Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties

Fair value gain on investment properties for 2017 was HK$5,003.2 million
(2016: HK$2,604.1 million), up HK$2,399.1 million or 92%. As at 31st
December 2017, the Group owns 13 (2016: 11) investment properties.

Other Income/Gains, Net

Other net income/gains amounted to HK$207.6 million in 2017 (2016:
HK$84.1 million), which included (1) dividend income of HK$146.9 million
from investment in listed and unlisted securities; (2) grants amounting to
HK$14.4 million in total from government authorities in Mainland China; (3)
fair value gain of HK$47.8 milion from listed securities; (4) gain on
disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of HK$6.8
million; (5) gain on disposal of land of HK$18.7 million; (6) net exchange
loss of HK$26.9 million; and (7) goodwill impairment of HK$0.1 million.

Operating Costs

The operating costs relating to expenses for selling, marketing, general
and administration for 2017 were HK$1,678 million (2016: HK$1,632
million), up 3% from the previous year.

5 & R A

HENABIEL RBERAE  EEMRFK
AREREXREMB -AFHERHEEERLFH
FrNF& - MEFEH - 85 & A A P& 25.8% £8,738
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Financiol Review (continued)
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Finance Costs

Gross interest expense before capitalisation in 2017 decreased to
HK$3,158 million (2016: HK$3,166 million), down HK$8 million or 0.25%,
primarily due to the decline in weighted average interest rate in 2017
compared to the previous year. The effective interest rate in respect of
the Group’s borrowings was approximately 5.8% per annum (2016: 6.4%).

Share of Profit of Joint Ventures

Share of profit of joint ventures represented the Group’s share of profit of
HK$87 million from three joint ventures located in Beijing and Guangzhou.

Taxation

The effective tax rate for 2017 was 33.5%, up 1.8% compared with the
previous year (2016: 31.7%), which was mainly due to the fact that the
land appreciation tax rate applicable to the major projects delivered this
year was higher than that for major projects in the previous year.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Company

Profit attributable to equity holders was HK$5,796 million for 2017 (2016:
HK$3,868 million). Basic earnings per share was HK$2.60 (2016:
HK$1.74). Excluding the effect of the net of tax gain from investment
property revaluation of HK$3,752 million, the net of tax gain on disposal
of land of HK$14 million, the net of tax gain from the investment property
revaluation of two joint ventures of HK$34 million, the net of tax gain on
disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of HK$5
million, adding the cost on early redemption of asset-backed securities of
HK$5 million and the net of tax goodwil impairment of HK$1 million,
underlying profit was HK$1,997 million, down HK$43 million or 2.1% as
compared with the previous year. The overall decrease of the underlying
profit for the year was mainly attributable to the increase in the land
appreciation tax of the major projects contributing revenue from the
properties delivered during the year.

Segment Information

Property development continued to be the Group’s core business activity
(80%). In 2017, the Group continued to develop its business in the three
core economic regions, namely the Huanbohai Area, Pearl River Delta
and Yangtze River Delta. Southern China (including Guangzhou, Huizhou
and Zhongshan) contributed 55% of the total revenue of the Group,
followed by 24% from Eastern China (including Shanghai, Hangzhou,
Kunshan, Ningbo, Cixi and Taicang) and 21% from Northern China
(including Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian, Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao).

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Financial Position

As at 31st December 2017, total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$153,813 million and its total liabilities came to HK$87,576 million,
representing an increase of 16% and 14% respectively as compared to
31st December 2016. Total assets increased was mainly due to the
increase in investment properties and completed properties for sale. Total
liabilities increased was mainly due to the increase in borrowings and
accounts payable.

The Group’s current ratio as at 31st December 2017 was 2.17 (2016: 2.44).
Equity as at 31st December 2017 was HK$66,238 million, up 17%
compared to 31st December 2016, primarily due to the increase in profit
attributable to equity holders during the year. The net asset value (“NAV”)
per share as at 31st December 2017 was HK$29.76.

Liquidity and Financial Position

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and closely monitors its
current and expected liquidity requirements to maintain its rolling cash
flow at a level which is considered adequate by the Group to finance the
Group’s operations according to its cash flow projections and to maintain
sufficient cash to meet its business development requirements.

As at 31st December 2017, the Group’s liability-to-asset ratio (i.e. the
ratio between total liabilities and total assets, excluding non-controlling
interests) was 57% (2016: 58%). The net debt-to-equity ratio (i.e. total
debt less cash and bank deposits over shareholders’ equity) was 72%
(2016: 68%).

As at 31st December 2017, the Group had cash and short-term bank
deposits amounting to HK$5,803 million (2016: HK$6,315 million), of
which approximately HK$3 million (2016: HK$2 million) was charged by
certain banks in respect of the processing of mortgage facilities granted
by the banks to the buyers of the Group’s properties. 94.31% of the cash
and bank deposits were denominated in Renminbi, 3.87% in Hong Kong
dollars, 1.58% in United States dollars and 0.24% in other currencies.

Total borrowings from banks and financial institutions amounted to
HK$47,348 million as at 31st December 2017, representing an increase
of 25% or HK$9,355 million as compared to those as at 31st December
2016. Gearing ratio, measured by net bank and financial institution
borrowings, corporate bonds and asset-backed securities (i.e. total bank
and financial institution borrowings, corporate bonds and asset-backed
securities less cash and bank deposits) as a percentage of shareholders’
equity, was 72%, representing an increase of 4% from 68% as at 31st
December 2016.
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All of the bank and financial institution borrowings were either secured or
covered by guarantees and were substantially denominated in Renminbi
with fixed interest rates.

All of the other borrowings were unsecured, interest-free and substantially
denominated in Renminbi.

The Group’s borrowings repayment profile as at 31st December 2017
was as follows:

FRERITRMBHBEEDREEMNER
BREODAARBFELABEN KFFEHE -

A EMEE S ARER £ RAHHUA
RS -

AEBR _ZT—+F+A=+—HZRBEER
REE T

As at 31st December 2017
R=ZB-—tHF+=ZA=+—H

As at 31st December 2016
RZE—RE+-_A=+—H

Bank and Corporate Bank and Corporate
financial bonds and financial bonds and
institution asset-backed Other institution  asset-backed Other
(HK$ million) borrowings securities borrowings Total borrowings securities  borrowings Total
RITR ~E HRIT R NS
HEKE BHREE WiEHE BFEREE
(B8#ET) BE THESF HttEE E BE XFES HiEE 5t
1 year —F 11,537 4,026 3,439 19,002 (33%) 8,810 728 3,736 13,274 (27%)
1-2 years —FEMF 8,793 1,816 - 10,609 (19%) 11,310 942 - 12,252 (25%)
2-5 years MEERF 21,573 - - 21,573 (38%) 9,202 5,089 — 14,291 (30%)
After 5 years HF® 5,445 - - 5,445 (10%) 8,671 — — 8,671 (18%)
Total @t 47,348 5,842 3,439 56,629 37,993 6,759 3,736 48,488
Less: Cashand i : B4 &
bank deposits RITER (5,803) (6,315)
Net borrowings ~ {& B ;%58 50,826 42,173

As at 31st December 2017, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$91,369 million (2016: HK$104,991 million) for short-
term and long-term bank loans, of which HK$38,179 million (2016:
HK$60,239 million) were unutilised.

Charge on Assets

As at 31st December 2017, certain assets of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$43,377 million (2016: HK$39,522 million)
and the Group’s equity interests in subsidiaries of HK$1,792 million (2016:
HK$962 million) were pledged with banks and financial institutions for
loan facilities used by subsidiaries.

Financial Guarantees

As at 31st December 2017, the Group provided guarantees to banks for
mortgage facilities granted to buyers of the Group’s properties which
amounted to HK$10,040 million (2016: HK$10,295 million).
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Finoncial peview (confinued)
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Commitments

The Group’s commitments as at 31st December 2017 were as follows:

EiE

REBR-ZE—+tF+A=+—HZEEDN
™

As at As at
31st December 31st December
2017 2016

R-—B—t#F RZT—RF
+t=A=+—-8H +ZA=1+—H

HK$ million HK$ million
BB BEBTT
Capital commitments B A
Contracted but not provided for BRI HBREBE
— Acquisition of land and equity interests —WEETRHEELIHER Y
in certain land holding entities + i R AR AN RE RS 1,340 1,753
— Property construction costs B/ ESE DX 1,842 1,338
— Capital contribution to an associate ——ABERARCHE 256 240
3,438 3,331
Property development commitments W) 5 A R AR
Contracted but not provided for BRI B REBE
— Property construction costs E/ESE DX 13,635 15,035
13,635 15,035
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The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of leased
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease are as follows:

AEERZNARBENERZ TAEHEEH
EREMALLEHERE RETAFHELE
HORBARZEEBRNHESABOT

As at As at
31st December 31st December
2017 2016
R-ZE—tHF R —RHF
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-A
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEAER BEAT

Amounts payable TE BN E A 2 I8
— Within one year -——FR 10 4
— Within two to five years —MEERFNAN 10 1
— After five years — hFi& 36 33
56 38

With continuous cash inflow from property sales, the banking facilities
available and the cash on hand, the Group is expected to be in an
adequate liquidity position to meet these on-going commitments by
stages.

Treasury Policies and Capital Structure

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that
are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.
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EEERE

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FEXEK

The Company is an investment holding company. lts subsidiaries, XA & A —BEEEZERAT  ETEHEBLQ
associates and joint ventures are principally engaged in investment F] - E AR RS L AR TERESHE LR -
holding, property development, property investment, property #)¥2%E MEKRE MEETBEKELB/EZL
management and hotel operations. & o

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and their respective contributionsto ARNEEHE T —+E+-_F=+—HILFE
operating profit for the year ended 31st December 2017 by geographical IZih@ 2 H v XM ESEHKEE RN 2B

locations is as follows: BA AT
Contribution to
Turnover operating profit
HEERR
EERE 2 Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Guangzhou &) 6,403,898 2,514,042
Beijing Bl 2,190,502 4,592,616
Shanghai +i8 3,262,606 1,187,425
Tianjin KE 709,331 (158,231)
Huizhou =M 1,257,609 506,990
Others H Aty — (24,823)
13,823,946 8,618,019

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments for the year AXNEEHZ -—Z—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE

ended 31st December 2017 is as follows: BEBOHEDMELBONOT :
Turnover
EEX
HK$'000
FET
Sales of properties ek 11,125,122
Property management income ES=BENL PN 936,085
Income from hotel operations B JE & E A 408,269
Rental income Ha WA 1,354,470
13,823,946
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Deputy Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report.
These discussions form part of this Directors’ report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the five largest customers
of the Group accounted for approximately 28% of the Group’s turnover
while the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
6% of the Group’s purchases. In addition, the largest customer of the
Group accounted for approximately 8% of the Group’s turnover while the
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 2% of the
Group’s purchases.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out in Note
38 to the financial statements, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has a beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December 2017
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 129 of this
annual report.

No interim dividend was declared and paid during the year. The Directors

recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK20 cents per share
for the year ended 31st December 2017.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note
24 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
are set out in Notes 26 and 39 to the financial statements respectively.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda regarding the calculation of the
distributable reserves, the Company’s distributable reserves amounted to
HK$975,675,000 as at 31st December 2017 (2016: HK$1,381,826,000).
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations totalling
HK$4,277,000 (2016: HK$7,646,000) to various charitable organisations.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in properties and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to
the financial statements respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are set out in
Notes 40 and 41 to the financial statements respectively.

BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

Particulars of borrowings as at 31st December 2017 are set out in Note
21 to the financial statements.

For the year ended 31st December 2017, the Group did not issue any
debentures.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 29 to the financial
statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 238 to 240 of this annual
report.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A. Framework Agreement

On 11th May 2012, the Company and Guangdong Hanjiang Construction
Installation Project Limited (BXR e LT E TIEA R A7) (now known
as Guangdong Hanjiang Engineering Construction Limited* (8§ T T
248 B AR A R)) (“Hanjiang”), being the respective holding companies
of the Group and the Hanjiang Group (where referred to in this paragraph,
comprising Hanjiang, its subsidiaries and its associates), entered into a
framework agreement (the “2012 Framework Agreement”) setting out,
among other things, the principal terms in respect of services/leased
premises to be provided to the Group by the Hanjiang Group and of
services/leased premises to be provided by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group. The 2012 Framework Agreement expired on 31st December
2014.

Since the Group intended to continue certain recurring transactions
contemplated under the 2012 Framework Agreement and to enter into
certain new recurring transactions with the Hanjiang Group (where
referred to in this paragraph and below, comprising Hanjiang, its
subsidiaries, its associated companies and its close associates) in the
three financial years ended 31st December 2017, the Company entered
into the new framework agreement (the “New Framework Agreement”)
with Hanjiang on 22nd April 2015. At the special general meeting of the
Company held on 12th June 2015, the New Framework Agreement, the
transactions contemplated therein and the annual caps of the maximum
aggregate annual transaction amount for the transactions were approved
by the independent shareholders (the “Shareholders”) of the Company.
The New Framework Agreement expired on 31st December 2017.
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As at the date of the New Framework Agreement, Hanjiang was directly
held as to 99% by Mr. Chu Yat Hong who is the son of Mr. Chu Mang
Yee (“Mr. Chu”, the controlling Shareholder and Chairman of the Board)
and a brother of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (“Ms. Chu”, an executive Director and
the Deputy Chairman of the Board and daughter of Mr. Chu). In addition,
Mr. Chu Yat Hong also indirectly owned approximately 17.76% of the
shares of the Company. Accordingly, Hanjiang was a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Hence, the transactions
between the Group and the Hanjiang Group as contemplated under the
New Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of such
continuing connected transactions are set out as follows:

Transactions under the New Framework Agreement
(i) Construction

For the three years ended 31st December 2017, the Group was entitled
to appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out construction works for certain
property development projects of the Group. The construction fees
payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group and other terms for carrying
out construction works for the property development projects of the
Group in the PRC were to be determined with reference to the terms
offered by independent third parties for providing similar services and the
latest stipulated standards and guidelines prescribed by Construction
Committee of where the project was located. During the year ended 31st
December 2017, total construction fees paid/payable by the Group to
the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$90,309,000 (2016:
HK$396,719,000).

(i)  Construction supervision

For the three years ended 31st December 2017, the Group was entitled
to appoint the Hanjiang Group to supervise the construction of the
property development projects of the Group. The amount of construction
supervision fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group and other
terms for supervising the construction of property development projects
of the Group were to be determined with reference to the terms offered
by independent third parties for providing similar services and the latest
standards and guidelines prescribed in the PRC. During the year ended
31st December 2017, construction supervision fees paid/payable by the
Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$1,167,000
(2016: HK$506,000).
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(i)  Electricity installation, low voltage system and intelligent building
system installation and consultancy service on budgeting and
cost control for construction work

For the three years ended 31st December 2017, the Group was entitled
to appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out electricity installation, low
voltage system and intelligent building system installation work for the
property development projects of the Group and to provide the Group
with consultancy service on budgeting for tenders and cost control for its
construction work. Low voltage system and intelligent building system
installation works included installation of visual walkie-talkie system,
CCTV system, music broadcast system, security system, car park
automatic management system, telephone system, mobile signal
coverage system, television antenna system and procurement and
installation of the related facilities. Consultancy service on budgeting for
tenders and construction cost control included evaluation and formulation
of the base price for projects that the Group proposes to put up for
public tender, preparation for the Group’s tender invitations and
assistance in the evaluation of the bidders, formulation of the budgets
and formulation of cost control plans for the Group’s property
development projects. The amount of fees payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group and other terms for carrying out electricity installation
works for the property development projects of the Group were to be
determined with reference to the terms offered by independent third
parties for providing similar services and the latest standards and
guidelines prescribed by the relevant governmental authorities of where
the property was located. The amount of fees payable by the Group to
the Hanjiang Group and other terms for carrying out low voltage system
and intelligent building system installation works for the property
development projects of the Group in the PRC were to be determined
with reference to the terms offered by independent third parties for
providing similar services and the latest standards and guidelines
prescribed by the relevant governmental authorities of where the project
is located. For procurement of equipment for the low voltage system and
intelligent building system, a mark-up of 1%-3% on the price of the
equipment procured was to be charged. The amount of fees payable by
the Group to the Hanjiang Group for the consultancy fee and other terms
for compiling budgets for tenders and construction cost control were to
be determined with reference to the latest standards and guidelines
prescribed by the relevant government authorities of where the project
was located. During the year ended 31st December 2017, fees for
electricity installation, low voltage system and intelligent building system
installation and consultancy service on budgeting and cost control for
construction work paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$6,341,000 (2016: HK$36,798,000).
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(iv) Office lease

For the three years ended 31st December 2017, the Hanjiang Group was
entitled to lease certain commercial premises located in Guangzhou and
Shanghai to the Group for office use. The rent payable by the Group to
the Hanjiang Group and the other terms were to be determined with
reference to the prevailing market rents and the other terms available to
the Group for leasing the premises in the same building (or in the event
that no such lease is available in the same building, reference should be
made to the leases of premises of similar types and similar grading in the
same region) from independent third parties. During the year ended 31st
December 2017, rental paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$6,625,000 (2016: HK$7,708,000).

(v) Informatisation and computerisation related services

For the three years ended 31st December 2017, the Group was entitled
to appoint the Hanjiang Group to set up the information technology
infrastructure and maintain the servers of the Group, to supply information
and computer system related products and facilities to the Group and to
provide the Group with consultancy service, staff training and technical
support for the information technology and computer systems of the
Group. The amount of fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group
for setting up of the informatisation infrastructure and maintenance of
servers of the Group and provision of consultancy service, staff training
and technical support for the information technology and computer
systems of the Group, the purchase price/rents payable by the Group for
the purchase/lease of products and facilities from the Hanjiang Group
and the other terms were to be determined with reference to the terms
offered by independent third parties for providing similar services/
products. During the year ended 31st December 2017, informatisation
and computerisation related services fees paid/payable by the Group to
the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$40,365,000 (2016:
HK$1,876,000).
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(vi)  Building design

For the three years ended 31st December 2017, the Hanjiang Group was
entitled to appoint the Group to carry out construction and building
design works for the property development projects of the Hanjiang
Group. The amount of design fees payable by the Hanjiang Group to the
Group and the other terms were to be determined with reference to the
terms offered by independent third parties for undertaking similar design
projects and the latest standards and guidelines prescribed by the
relevant local authority on the fees and other terms for providing similar
services (if any). During the year ended 31st December 2017, the service
fees received/receivable by the Group from Hanjiang Group for provision
of construction and building design service amounted to approximately
HK$127,000 (2016: HK$99,000).

(vii) Management of vacant properties and delivery of sold property
units to purchasers

For the three years ended 31st December 2017, the Hanjiang Group was
entitled to appoint the Group to manage vacant properties developed by
the Hanjiang Group and to handle the delivery of sold property units of
the Hanjiang Group in Guangdong Province, Beijing, Xi’an and Shanghai
to purchasers. The amount of management fees payable by the Hanjiang
Group to the Group and the other terms were to be determined with
reference to related costs of the Group, the prevailing market rates
charged by and the other terms offered by independent third parties for
providing similar services for properties of similar grading in the same
region and the latest standards on property management and the
property pricing guidelines prescribed by the local government of where
the particular property was located. During the year ended 31st
December 2017, the management fees received/receivable by the Group
from the Hanjiang Group for provision of vacant property management
service amounted to approximately HK$19,752,000 (2016:
HK$5,807,000).

(viii) Shop and office lease

For the three years ended 31st December 2017, the Group was entitled
to lease certain premises located in Guangzhou to the Hanjiang Group
for use as shops and offices. The rent payable by the Hanjiang Group to
the Group and the other terms were to be determined with reference to
the market rents received and the other terms offered by the Group to
other lessees who are independent third parties for leases of premises in
the same building (or in the event that no such lease is available in the
same building, reference should be made to the leases of premises of
similar types and similar grading in the same region). During the year
ended 31st December 2017, the rent received/receivable by the Group
from the Hanjiang Group for shop lease amounted to approximately
HK$2,002,000 (2016: HK$1,904,000. There was no office lease for the
two years ended 31st December 2017).
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B. Lease Agreements
Transactions under the Lease Agreements

On 18th January 2016, Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate Development
Limited* Qb &A1 EHERZEBRAA]), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Hopson Beifang”), entered into (i) a lease
agreement with Zhujiang Life Insurance Company Limited* (25T A E R [E
A& B AT (“Zhujiang Life”) for the lease of the premises situated at
7th floor of Hopson Fortune Plaza; and (i) a lease agreement with Beijing
Zhujiang Real Estate Development Company Limited* dt REK T EHESR
fR A 7)) (“Zhujiang Real Estate”) for the lease of the premises situated at
9th, 10th and 11th floors of Hopson Fortune Plaza, by Hopson Beifang to
Zhujiang Life and Zhujiang Real Estate respectively, for a period of three
years from 18th January 2016 to 17th January 2019 (collectively the “Lease
Agreements”).

As at the date of the Lease Agreements, Zhujiang Life was a majority-
controlled company (as defined under the Listing Rules), held indirectly,
by the family members and relatives of Mr. Chu and Ms. Chu together,
namely Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Chu Wai Hong (the sons of Mr. Chu
and the brothers of Ms. Chu), Mr. Zhu La Yi (a brother of Mr. Chu and an
uncle of Ms. Chu) and Mr. Xie Bing Zhao (the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu
and an uncle of Ms. Chu). Mr. Chu Yat Hong, being a substantial
shareholder of the Company, was a connected person of the Company.
Zhujiang Life was also a 30%-controlled company held indirectly by Mr.
Chu Yat Hong. Zhujiang Real Estate was a majority-controlled company,
held indirectly by Mr. Chu Wai Hong (a son of Mr. Chu and a brother of
Ms. Chu). Accordingly, each of Zhujiang Life and Zhujiang Real Estate
was a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules and the
Lease Agreements and the leases constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Group decided to gradually cease its hotel operations in Hopson
Fortune Plaza in mid 2015 and to lease the entire building for office use.
The Directors believe that Lease Agreements will bring forth additional
and stable income to the Group after the cessation of hotel operations in
the building. During the year ended 31st December 2017, the aggregate
rental received/receivable by the Group pursuant to the Lease
Agreements (including annual rental and annual property management
fees) from Zhujiang Life and Zhujiang Real Estate amounted to
approximately HK$10,371,000 (2016: HK$16,137,000).
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C. Confirmation from the Independent Non-executive

Directors and Auditor

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
transactions and confirmed that:

M

(i)

the above transactions have been conducted between the
parties on normal commercial terms or better, which are, on
terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available
to or from (as appropriate) independent third parties;

the above transactions have been entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of the business of the Group;

the above transactions have been carried out in accordance
with the terms of the New Framework Agreements on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole;

the above transactions have been carried out in accordance
with the terms of the Lease Agreements on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole;

in respect of the New Framework Agreement, during the year
ended 31st December 2017,

construction fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$90,309,000 (2016:
HK$396,719,000), which have not exceeded the annual cap
on construction fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group in
respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 22nd April 2015 (the
“Announcement”);

construction supervision fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang
Group amounted to approximately HK$1,167,000 (2016:
HK$506,000), which have not exceeded the annual cap on
construction supervision fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang
Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcement;

fees for electricity installation, low voltage system and
intelligent building system installation and consultancy service
on budgeting and cost control for construction work paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$6,341,000 (2016: HK$36,798,000), which have not
exceeded the annual cap on service fees for electricity
installation, low voltage system and intelligent building system
installation and consultancy service on budgeting and cost
control for construction work paid/payable to the Hanjiang
Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcement;
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(i)

d.  rental paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group for lease of offices
amounted to approximately HK$6,625,000 (2016:
HK$7,708,000), which has not exceeded the annual cap on
rental paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group for lease of offices
in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcement;

e. informatisation and computerisation related services fees
paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$40,365,000 (2016: HK$1,876,000), which
have not exceeded the annual cap on informatisation and
computerisation related services fees paid/payable to the
Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed
in the Announcement;

f. the construction and building design fees received/receivable
from the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$127,000 (2016: HK$99,000) which have not exceeded
the annual cap on construction and building design fees
received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group in respect of the
year concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

g. the management fees received/receivable from the Hanjiang
Group for management of vacant properties and delivery of
sold property units to purchasers amounted to approximately
HK$19,752,000 (2016: HK$5,807,000), which have not
exceeded the annual cap on the management fees received/
receivable from the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

h.  the rental received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group for
lease of shops and office amounted to approximately
HK$2,002,000 (2016: HK$1,904,000), which have not
exceeded the annual cap of rental received/receivable from
the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as
disclosed in the Announcement.

in respect of the Lease Agreements, during the year ended 31st
December 2017, the aggregate rental received/receivable from
Zhujiang Life and Zhujiang Real Estate for lease of premises in
Hopson Fortune Plaza amounted to approximately HK$10,371,000
(2016: HK$16,137,000), which has not exceeded the annual cap of
the rental received/receivable from Zhujiang Life and Zhujiang Real
Estate in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 18th January 2016.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits of Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Main Board Listing Rules 14A.56. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group during
the year ended 31st December 2017 are set out in Note 38 to the
financial statements. The Company has complied with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules for those related party transactions
which constituted connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, namely transactions under the New
Framework Agreement and the Lease Agreements (which are subject to
disclosure and/or independent Shareholders’ approval requirements).
Save for the aforementioned, other related party transactions as set out
in Note 38 to the financial statements did not constitute connected
transactions/continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (Chairman)
Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Au Wai Kin
Mr. Liao Ruo Qing

(Resigned on 29th December 2017)
Mr. Xie Bao Xin (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Bao Wenge

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron
Mr. Ching Yu Lung
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All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Au Wai Kin, Mr.
Lee Tsung Hei, David and Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron will retire from
office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’
CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received independence confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David,
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron and Mr. Ching Yu Lung and considers them
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 38 to the financial statements and the sections
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of this annual report
above, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures or holding company or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which any of the Directors or an entity
connected with the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st December 2017, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Interests in shares of the Company

mw
i
W

RZE—tF+-A=+—H ARQRFEER
THREHBREFSFRPEGN(TEHKHE K
Bl EXVEE7TRESHEBEME AR T KB
RFERARRISEAMEREZE(EXRE
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Fh A e AR (BEREESFLBPE
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) AN ARIEE S KIS 555535215
TUGFEBEBZELMA  IBRELTETAES
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Number of shares of the Company

ARBRHHEB

Approximate
percentage
Personal Family Corporate Other of shares
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests Total outstanding
HE R
R 1 8 &
EEns BAERE  REEHE DRER Hit s &t BAk
Mr. Chu Mang Yee (a) & %k %t 4 (a) — — 1,229,003,809 — 1,229,003,809 55.22%
Mr. Au Wai Kin (b) BEREED - - 34,500,000 - 34,500,000 1.55%

Notes: bt -

a. Mr. Chu Mang Yee held 1,160,363,809 shares of the Company through Sounda
Properties Limited, a company wholly-owned by him, and 68,640,000 shares of
the Company through Hopson Education Charitable Funds Limited, an exempt
charitable institution and a company limited by guarantee, of which Mr. Chu is
the sole member.

b. Mr. Au Wai Kin held 34,500,000 shares of the Company through Yield Plentiful
Incorporated, a company wholly-owned and controlled by him.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2017, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company and their respective
associates had any personal, family, corporate or other interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
holding company or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of
age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, and no
Directors or chief executives or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age had been granted any right to subscribe for equity or
debt securities of the Company nor exercised any such right.

Substantial Shareholders

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above, as at 31st December 2017, according to the register
of interests kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the
following entity had interests or short positions in the shares of the
Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

RERNERERE - N2 FHEERKME QRN
ERABIHRRNB AR W ERTLAERMZ
NEEFAFRFZEMEBRTARATFL
ERFBEBEARASEMEMEABRRE ZK
MAESMIETEaD  TEESRITHRASNK

BESBZEBHIT/N\ERAT FREERENM
BAARBARARA RN KEREFHDITEE
] 52 SRR o

FERR

B EXTEERITHRAERNKN  BEKRO K
BFEBEAEZERMAR] —SHRBENESEIN
R-ZF—tHF+-_A=+—B BEXAQAR

ERSMHEGRDIE336EFE 2 &L MATAC
B THEEBRARABRNTHREREES K
HEGRPEXVEE2REID BBAR AR A EK
BZREmIORR

Approximate

Capacity and Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholder nature of interests issued shares shares outstanding
HEBTRS
RERER S REZMHE ERITRGOEE BHEIH
Sounda Properties Limited Beneficial owner 1,160,363,809 52.14%
MEBEXARAA EmEA A
Farrich Investments Limited (“Farrich”) ™ Beneficial owner 395,246,625 17.76%
REREARAT(RE]) W EmiB A
TheBest Investments Limited (“TheBest”) M Interest of controlled corporation 395,246,625 17.76%
TheBest Investments Limited ([ TheBest |) SR AE =
Clear Build Investments Limited (“Clear Build”) ™"  Interest of controlled corporation 395,246,625 17.76%
Clear Build Investments Limited ([ Clear Build |) % 5 4% 3% & ## 25
Mr. Chu Yat Hong " Interest of controlled corporation 395,246,625 17.76%

K—f s XA E s

Note:

395,246,625 shares were held by Farrich which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
TheBest. The entire issued share capital of TheBest is held by Clear Build which is in
turn wholly-owned by Mr. Chu Yat Hong. Each of TheBest, Clear Build and Mr. Chu Yat
Hong was deemed to be interested in 395,246,625 shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who, as at 31st December 2017, had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO.

ff 7

TheBestz & & i A Iff B A 5] i & #5 5 395,246,625 % %
B oTheBest2 HE BT AR A —MEEZEHEAN
Clear BuildFff # & ° TheBest * Clear Build & 2k — ffii & £ &
BIREE S LS IR0 115 A ¥ B 395,246,625 I Ik 15 2
W o

BrEXEBEEN RESAAN BHECHEM
AEIRZZE—tF+-_A=+—BRAEARAZ

fEm BT EEREFESRBEKG
EXVELE2R B3N WBAERAARAIHE 2
R B AN AR EEF RIS K5 53361
FUFEBEZzECMAZERSTAE -
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATIONS

The Group earns revenue and incurs costs and expenses mainly in
Renminbi and is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation arising from the
exposure of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar, US dollar and Euro.
However, the Directors do not anticipate any significant foreign exchange
loss as a result of changes in exchange rate between Hong Kong dollar,
US dollar, Euro and Renminbi in the foreseeable future.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December 2017, the Group, excluding its associates and joint
ventures, employed a total of 8,110 (as at 31st December 2016: 8,300)
staff, the majority of which were employed in Mainland China. Employees’
costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$929 million for
the year ended 31st December 2017 (2016: HK$890 million).

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive
scheme is to link total compensation of executive Directors, senior
management and employees with the achievement of the Group’s annual
and long-term corporate goals and objectives. Remuneration package is
performance-based and takes into account business performance,
market practice and competitive market conditions in order to attract,
motivate and retain talent. The remuneration package of executive
Directors and senior management comprises salaries, bonuses,
discretionary bonus and other benefits-in-kind.

Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly represent
their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee
meetings. The recommended remuneration package of the independent
non-executive Directors comprises annual director’'s fee and fee for
representation on board committees.

The remuneration of all the Directors during the financial year is set out in
Note 30 to the financial statements.
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pepowf of the Directors (continued)
EZEREw@

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION AND SALE OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31st December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 89 to 106 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained during the year under review the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Bye-laws provides that the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty; provided
that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud
or dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.

A directors’ liability insurance is in place to protect the Directors against
potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against the
Directors.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

For the environmental policy of the Group, please refer to the section
“Sustainability Report” on pages 115 to 116 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

For the relationships with employees, suppliers and customers of the
Group, please refer to the section “Sustainability Report” on pages 108
to 115 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As a property developer in China, the Group is subject to various national
and local laws and regulations relating to, among others, land acquisition,
development of real estate projects, real estate transfer and sale, real
estate financing, construction safety and environmental protection. On
the listed company level, the Group is also subject to the Listing Rules,
the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the SFO
and/or the laws, rules and regulations of the jurisdictions where the
Group companies are incorporated. The Company seeks to ensure
compliance with these requirements through various measures such as
internal controls, trainings and oversight of various business units at
different levels of the Group. The Group highly values the importance of
ensuring compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations
in PRC and in Hong Kong by the Group that have significant impact on
the business and operations of the Group.

Details regarding the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are also
provided in the Sustainability Report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information
of Directors/chief executives subsequent to the publication of the interim
report of the Company for the six months ended 30th June 2017 are set
out below:

BFERRER

ER—RXTBEEHERER AKEBETER
RS ERAERLwEE FHwERE R
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A AEBNAETLETRA RFWE &
BF K Bz £ B B =7 B~ 2 R (B B A Bl 52622
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FACRARBMAM AKEREREERSK
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EERTTHARER 28 E
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CEE/THERENEEEFENMT

Name of Director

EEgs

Details of Changes

BEHE

Mr. Tan Leng Cheng Aaron
on 1st December 2017

had been appointed as an independent non-executive director of Tai Sang Bank Ltd.

BREEB A& R_E—tF+ A BEZERRERTAERAFRBIUFATES

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor for the ensuing year
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHU MANG YEE
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th March 2018

* For identification purposes only
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Corporate (Governance Report
P P
TREBRBRSE

The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective corporate governance will continue to
improve transparency, risk controls and ultimately enhance Shareholders’
value.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG
Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31st December 2017, except for the code provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2
as described below.

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Save for Mr. Ching
Yu Lung, who is appointed for a term of three years commencing from
1st July 2015, none of the independent non-executive Directors is
appointed for a specific term. This constitutes a deviation from code
provision A.4.1. However, as the relevant independent non-executive
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by
shareholders at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, in the opinion of the Directors,
this meets the objective of the CG Code.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the Board did not
attend the annual general meeting for the year 2016 due to other
business commitment.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Upon enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31st December 2017.

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

In view of the continuous macro-control measures and the ever-changing
market conditions of the PRC, the Group had made reasonable planning
in its business development model in line with its overall strategic
development premise, in order to keep up with the market trend and
deliver fruitful reward to the Shareholders in a persistent manner.
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COPPOPO*Q Governance erovi (conhnued)
TEERRE @)

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY (Continued)

The Group has implemented scientific management and arrangement in
respect of the residential properties for meeting regular demand, mid-end
residential properties for customers who seek to improve living
environment and high-end deluxe residential properties, and created a
business development model for maintaining profitability in high-end
residential properties, guaranteeing cash flow in residential properties for
meeting improvement demand and regular demand, and generating
stable and continuous cash flow through investing in investment
properties such as commercial properties (industrial real estate). On the
basis of the coordinated development of the properties for sale and for
investment, the Group will also further integrate resources, develop
investment business prudently and acquire more competitive strengths
through diversified and professional development strategies.

It is expected that the growth in the sales of diversified residential
properties and in the cash flow of investment properties will become the
main profit drivers of the Company in the future.

For the strategic development direction of the Group, please refer to “Future
Prospects of the Group” under the section “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 13 to 14 of the report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, whose biographical details are set
out in the Directors’ Profile section on pages 60 to 62 which demonstrate
a balance of core competence having regard to the business of the
Group. Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and their re-election is subject to a vote of
Shareholders at the annual general meeting. The Board believes that the
independent non-executive Directors, with diversified backgrounds and
industry skills, shall offer experience, make independent judgement and
provide advice on issues relating to strategy, performance, conflict of
interest and the overall management of the Company such that the
interests of all Shareholders are considered and safeguarded.

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group and its business by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development and
determines the objectives, strategies and policies of the Group. The
Board also monitors and controls operating and financial performance in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. The Board members have
access to timely information in relation to the Group’s business and make
further enquires when necessary. The Directors may seek independent
professional advice on issues relating to the Group’s business at the
Group’s expenses. The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal actions against its Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Ms. Chu Kut Yung, an executive Director and the Deputy Chairman of the
Board of Directors of the Company, is the daughter of Mr. Chu Mang
Yee, the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Apart from the aforesaid, there are no other financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among the members of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors have offered sufficient time and
efforts to serve the business affairs of the Company and possess the
appropriate academic and professional qualifications and related
management experience and have contributed to the Board with their
professional opinion.

Of the three independent non-executive Directors at least one has
appropriate financial management expertise in compliance with the
Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive Director gives the
Company an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Board
considers these Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Five Board committees, namely the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee, the Option Shares
Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee have been established to oversee particular aspects of the
Group’s affairs. The Board has delegated the execution and daily
operations of the Group’s business to the management. However, clear
directions are given to the management as to the matters that must be
approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf of the
Group.

BOARD MEETINGS/GENERAL MEETING

The Board met 7 times in total during the year ended 31st December
2017 at which the Directors considered and approved significant matters
including, among other things, interim and final results of the Group,
statutory financial reports, issuance of bonds and notifiable transactions
undertaken by the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS/GENERAL MEETING (Continued)

Board meetings attended by each of the Directors are as follows:

Bl MREKXKEW@W
SEEHEEERRENBRMOT

Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings held

HESBERE
BRRE
Executive Directors BTES
Chu Mang Yee KEK 0/7
Chu Kut Yung KER 0/7
Au Wai Kin B (Z 2 1/7
Liao Ruo Qing™°* B E 0/6
Xie Bao Xin HEE 7/7
Bao Wenge 8 STHR 0/7
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAFHITES
Lee Tsung Hei, David EEE 7/7
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron BREE)E o
Ching Yu Lung 2N EE 6/7

9 additional Board meetings were held during the year ended 31st
December 2017 for the purposes of approving some operational matters
such as the provision of guarantees by the Company in respect of bank
loans granted to the Company’s subsidiaries.

Board meetings attended by each of the Directors are as follows:

BE-_ZT-—tEtHF+-A=t—"HEATBEIE

1779//\§$§§E% EReZRILEET
CEEE(WARARARTAMBARERZ

RITEREHER M -

REZHFEZSIZNERET

Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings held

HESEBEXE
EERH
Executive Directors BITES
Chu Mang Yee KEK 3/9
Chu Kut Yung PN R 3/9
Au Wai Kin LR 22 9/9
Liao Ruo Qing™°® B 4/9
Xie Bao Xin HEE 8/9
Bao Wenge ) A% 4/9
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAKEHITES
Lee Tsung Hei, David FHEE 2/9
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PR BEh 2/9
Ching Yu Lung EnEe 2/9
Between Board meetings, the senior management of the Company REZBZe €% R ANTSATEEER

provides the Directors with information on a timely basis regarding the
activities and developments in the businesses of the Group and meets
with the independent non-executive Directors to seek their views on the
business and operational matters of the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS/GENERAL MEETING (Continued)

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
keeps detailed minutes of each meeting which are available for inspection
by all Directors.

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the Company held one
general meeting. The attendance of the Directors at the general meeting
is set out below:

BEEgeel MEKXKEW@W

ARRzRmAME((RAAWE DREERE
BIABRERLE ZFCBAHREEEFTE

B o

BE-Z—+tFT-A=+—-HLEFE £X2A
ARITT —RABRERARG - BEEHERRAGHN
BT

Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings held

HESBERE
SRRE
Executive Directors BITES
Chu Mang Yee K 0/1
Chu Kut Yung KGR 0/1
Au Wai Kin B (2 2 0/1
Liao Ruo Qing"°* BEF® 0/1
Xie Bao Xin Bl & 11
Bao Wenge ) S 01
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUAFHITES

Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron

REES
Ching Yu Lung [k

11
11
11

Note:

Mr. Liao Ruo Qing resigned as an executive Director on 29th December 2017.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Two of the three independent non-executive Directors are not appointed
for a specific term. This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1
with respect to the appointment of non-executive directors for a specific
term subject to re-election. However, as the relevant Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election by Shareholders at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, this meets the
objective of the CG Code.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company is Mr. Chu Mang
Yee. The Chairman is responsible for managing and providing leadership
to the Board in terms of formulating overall strategies, business directions
and policies of the Company. The Chairman is also responsible for
overseeing effective functions of the Board, application of good corporate
governance practices and procedures, and encourages the Directors to
make full and active contribution to the affairs of the Board. With the
support of the executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the
Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receive complete and reliable information
in a timely manner.

The daily operation and management of the Company is monitored by
the executive Directors and the senior management. The Company does
not currently have any officer with the title Chief Executive Officer. With
the assistance of the Chief Financial Officer, the Chairman ensures that
the funding requirements of the business are met and closely monitors
the operating and financial results against plans and budgets, taking
remedial action when necessary and advising the Board of any significant
developments and issues.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chu Mang Yee and Ms. Chu Kut Yung; and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Messrs. Lee Tsung Hei, David, Tan Leng
Cheng, Aaron and Ching Yu Lung. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for nomination and selection of Directors. Proposed new
Directors are selected based on skills and experience that will enable
them to make positive contributions to the Board. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Chu Mang Yee and has specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities
and posted on the Company’s website. The principal functions of the
Nomination Committee include:

° to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to gender, age, culture, educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service) of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

° to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nomination for directorships;

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

° to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular chairman and chief executive; and

° to review the board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board
Diversity Policy”), as appropriate, and review the measurable
objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and the progress on achieving the objectives.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. Individual
attendance of the members is set out below:
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Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings held

HEEERE

EE S

Chu Mang Yee KFmMK 071
Chu Kut Yung KGR 01
Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE 0/1
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PRBEAE 171
Ching Yu Lung FER 171

During the year, the Nomination Committee had performed the following
works:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;
° reviewed the Board Diversity Policy; and

° evaluated the performance and contribution of the retiring Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises all three independent non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
assisting the Board in achieving its objective of attracting and retaining
Directors and senior management of the highest calibre and experience
needed to develop the Group’s business successfully. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
Directors and senior management of the Company and for determining
their remuneration packages. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and has specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities and are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee include:
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)
° formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

° establishing guidelines for the recruitment of the chief executive and
senior management;

° making recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors (including non-executive Directors
and the chief executive) and senior management;

° review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

o determination of the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits-in-kind,
pension rights and compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

° review and approval of the compensation arrangements in
connection with dismissal or removal for misconduct to Directors
and senior management;

° determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance;
and

° consideration of the annual performance bonus for executive
Directors, senior management and general staff and making
recommendations to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee has been delegated with the function of
determining the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management.

One meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee during the year
to review and approve the remuneration of Directors. Individual
attendance of the members is set out below:
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Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings held

HESBERE

BERRE

Lee Tsung Hei, David ZHEE 0n
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PR BEH 171
Ching Yu Lung EnEe 171

No Director was involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The remuneration of the senior management (comprising executive
Directors) of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2017 by
band is set out below:

FMEE S m

AAFBRERE BENTERHE T —
tE+ = A=+ — B E 2 HERE R
m

Remuneration band (HK$)

Number of individuals

AR G8x) ANE
$0 to $1,000,000 0% 7T £ 1,000,000 7T 2
$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 1,000,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 7T 4
$2,000,001 to $3,000,000 2,000,001 7% 7T & 3,000,000/% 7T 1
$3,000,001 to $4,000,000 3,000,001 7% 7T % 4,000,000 7T 1

Further details of the executive Directors’ remuneration for the year
ended 31st December 2017 are disclosed in Note 30 to the financial
statements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees payable to the Company’s auditor for audit and
audit related services amounted to HK$6,400,000 (2016: HK$7,519,000)
and HK$995,000 (2016: nil) was paid for non-audit services.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
Directors. It is chaired by Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David. The Board is of the
opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise or experience to
discharge their duties. However, the Audit Committee is authorised to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice if it
considers necessary. The Audit Committee has written terms of reference
which are posted on the Company’s website. The principal functions of
the Audit Committee include:

° to make recommendations on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor and to consider the terms of such
appointments;

° to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external
auditor for non-audit services;

° to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and
interim reports to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Group’s financial position;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

° to ensure the management has fulffiled its duty to maintain an
effective internal control system;

° to review internal audit programme and to ensure that it is allocated
with adequate resources and is effective; and

° to review the external auditor's management letter and any
questions raised by the auditor to the management and the
management’s response.

In year 2017, the Audit Committee reviewed the results of an assessment
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, business
management and preventions against fraud and other irregularities. With
respect to the results of the Company for the year ended 31st December
2016, the Audit Committee reviewed with the senior management and
the external auditor of the Company, their respective audit findings, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and internal
control, risk management, financial reporting matters and effectiveness of
internal audit function. This review by the Audit Committee included an
appraisal of the integrity of the financial statements and the annual report
of the Company. The Audit Committee also reviewed the Group’s interim
results for the six months ended 30th June 2017 as well as the external
auditor’s remuneration. There was no disagreement between the Board
and the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment or resignation of
external auditor.

The Audit Committee reports its work, findings and recommendations to
the Board after each meeting. During the year 2017, there were two
Audit Committee meetings. Individual attendance of the members is set
out below:
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Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings held

HEEBERE

LEDN

Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE 2/2
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PREE)E 2/2
Ching Yu Lung 2 2/2
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BOARD COMMITTEES

In addition to the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
the Audit Committee, two other Board Committees have been
established to assist the Board in the execution of its duties.

(1) Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee

The Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee was
established on 4th October 2005 and presently comprises the three
independent non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Lee Tsung
Hei, David. The primary function of the Connected Transactions/Related
Party Transactions Committee is to review all continuing connected
transactions and related party transactions to ensure that they are
conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group and to recommend to the Board
corrective measures in such transactions if needed.

During the year ended 31st December 2017, one meeting was held by
the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee.
Individual attendance of the members is set out below:
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Lee Tsung Hei, David =EE 1/1
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PREEE 1/1
Ching Yu Lung 2N EE 1/1

(2) Option Shares Committee

The Option Shares Committee was established on 4th November 2005
and comprises any two executive Directors. Its primary function is to deal
with the allotment and issue of shares of the Company upon the exercise
of options granted or to be granted under the Company’s share option
scheme adopted on 4th November 2002.

No meeting was held by the Option Shares Committee during the year
2017.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Mok Wai Kun, Barbara of Minter Ellison, an external service provider,
has been engaged by the Company as its Company Secretary since
September 1997. The primary contact person of the Company is Mr. Au
Wai Kin, an executive Director.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Mok Wai Kun, Barbara
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31st December 2017.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance function as set out below:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance, legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in November 2013. The
Board Diversity Policy sets out its approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance to ensure that the Board
has the appropriate balance and level of skills, experience and
perspectives required to support the execution of its business strategies.
The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through considering a
number of factors when appointing a new Director, including gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merits and contribution that the selected candidates are
expected to bring to the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives (in terms of gender, skills and
experience) to implement the Board Diversity Policy and review such
objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain
the progress made towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination
Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy.

The Company considers that the current composition of the Board is
considered well-balanced and of a diverse mix appropriate for the
business of the Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and balanced assessment
of the Group’s performance, financial position and prospects. It is also
responsible for preparing financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the Group’s financial position on a going-concern basis and other
price-sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. The
management provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to
discharge these responsibilities.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2017, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, and have made judgement and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits as laid down in the Listing Rules.

The Board has overall responsibility for overseeing the Group’s risk
management and maintaining sound and effective internal controls to
safeguard the Group’s assets and Shareholders’ interests. The Directors
confirm that the Group, through its Internal Control Department, performs
regular checks on office procedures, practices and systems to safeguard
assets from inappropriate use, maintains proper accounts and ensures
compliance with regulations. The regular reviews also cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. The Internal Control Department
reports directly to the Group Supervisory Committee which in turn reports
independently to the Board. The Internal Control Department is
independent of all management functions of the Group and has direct
and independent access to the Board. Summaries of major audit findings
and control weaknesses, if any, are reviewed by the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31st December 2017, no frauds and irregularities, risk
management and internal control deficiencies or infringement of laws,
rules and regulations have come to the attention of the Audit Committee
to cause it to believe that the systems of risk management and internal
controls were inadequate. The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with
the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of risk management and
internal control of the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal controls systems to safeguard the
Group’s assets and Shareholders’ interests, while management is
responsible for designing and implementing an internal controls system
and monitoring the operational effectiveness. A sound and effective
system of internal controls is designed to identify and manage the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, in order to provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)

Our Risk Management Framework

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal
controls systems and reviews their effectiveness on an annual basis. The
Audit Committee and the Supervisory Committee support the Board in
monitoring our risk exposures. The Audit Committee, acting on behalf of
the Board, oversees the following processes:

(i) regular reviews of the principal business risks, and control
measures to mitigate, reduce or transfer such risks; the strengths
and weaknesses of the overall internal controls system and action
plans to address the weaknesses or improve the assessment
process;

(i) regular reviews of the business process and operations reported by
the Supervisory Committee and the Internal Control Department,
including action plans to address the identified control weaknesses,
status update and monitoring the implementation of
recommendations; and

(i)  regular reports by the external auditors of any monitoring issues
identified in the course of their work and the discussion with the
external auditors about their respective review scope and finding.

The Audit Committee will then report to the Board after due review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of risk management. The Board
considers the works and findings of the Audit Committee, the Supervisory
Committee and the Internal Control Department in forming its own view
on the effectiveness of the system.

For the year ended 31st December 2017, the Board, through the Audit
Committee and Supervisory Committee, has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management system of the Group by conducting
a formal risk assessment process to identify, prioritise and assess the key
risks (classified by strategic risks, operational risks, financial reporting
risks and compliance risks) faced by the Group. Action plans for each
key risk have also been identified. No significant areas of concern that
may affect the risk management functions of the Group have been
identified. The Board is satisfied with the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management system of the Group.

Our Internal Controls Framework

Internal controls guidelines have been established by the Supervisory
Committee and the Internal Control Department to set out the internal
controls and corporate governance framework of the Group. In
establishing the internal control guidelines, we have taken into
consideration our organisational structure and the nature of our business
activities.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)

Our Internal Controls Framework (Continued)

The Group conducts its affairs having close regard to the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations. The Group has established procedures to identify and
evaluate events or circumstances which potentially involve or constitute
inside information and restrict dissemination of such information to a
need-to-know basis before disclosure. Prior to disclosure, the Board is
responsible for ensuring that any inside information relating to the Group
is kept strictly confidential. The Group has also designated persons to be
responsible for making any necessary announcement in respect of such
inside information to ensure consistent and timely disclosure and to
respond to external enquiries about the affairs of the Group.

The Board and Audit Committee oversee the internal controls of the
group, assisted by our Supervisory Committee and Internal Control
Department. The Audit Committee meetings are held twice in a year,
which include assessment over effectiveness of internal controls system
and reports the result to the Board.

Internal Control Review

The Group, through its Internal Control Department, performs regular
checks on office procedures, practices and systems to safeguard assets
from inappropriate use, maintains proper accounts and ensures
compliance with regulations. The regular reviews also cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. Summaries of major audit findings
and control weaknesses, if any, are reviewed by the Supervisory
Committee and the Audit Committee at least once on an annual basis.

For the year ended 31st December 2017, no frauds and irregularities,
internal control deficiencies or infringement of laws, rules and regulations
have come to the attention of the Audit Committee to cause it to believe
that the system of internal controls was inadequate. The Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
and is satisfied with the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group.

Compliance with Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As part of the process of reviewing the financial statements, the Audit
Committee reviews the Group’s compliance with applicable legal and
regulatory requirements including the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance and Securities and Futures Ordinance and also the financial
reporting compliance; for notable exceptions on code provisions A.4.1
and E.1.2 of the CG Code, please refer to page 89 under this “Corporate
Governance Report”.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have been provided with training on their duties and
responsibilities as a director of a listed company and the compliance
issues under the Listing Rules. The Company continuously updates
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure their compliance and
enhance their awareness of their continuing obligations as Directors and
good corporate governance practices.

During the year, each of the Directors had been provided with training
materials regarding timely disclosure of inside information under Part XIVA
of the SFO. Each of the Directors had noted and studied the training
materials provided by the Company. The Directors had provided the
Company with their respective training records pursuant to the CG Code.
During the year, all Directors had participated in appropriate continuous
professional development by way of attending training or reading
materials relevant to the Company’s business or to Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor relations and
communications with its investors. Communication have been maintained
with the media, analysts and fund managers through meetings.
Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments.

The Company provides detailed press releases and reports to its
Shareholders on the Group’s business and financial positions with timely
annual report and interim report, to ensure that they are effectively
informed of the Group’s status and developments. General presentations
are made immediately after the announcement of financial results. The
website of the Group is also updated regularly to keep investors and the
general public informed of the latest development of the Group.

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the Directors to meet and
communicate with Shareholders, providing a forum for the Shareholders’
views to be communicated to the Board. Both Directors and senior
management make an effort to attend. External auditors are also available
at the annual general meetings to address Shareholders’ queries.
Separate resolutions are proposed for each issue considered at the
annual general meetings. The 2017 annual general meeting circular was
distributed to all Shareholders not less than 20 clear business days prior
to the annual general meeting, setting out details of each proposed
resolution and other relevant information. The procedures for conducting
a poll were explained by the chairman presiding at the annual general
meeting at the beginning of the meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Shareholder(s)
holding on the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
(10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, request the Board to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM”) for transaction of any business specified
in the requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting and must be
signed by all the requisitionist(s) (may consist of one or several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists) and
deposited at the registered office of the Company (Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda) or at the head office of the
Company in Hong Kong (Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House, 1
Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The SGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of the
requisition. In the event that the Board fails to proceed to convene the
SGM within twenty-one days of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionist(s) may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section
74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”).

Shareholders’ Right to Propose Resolutions at General
Meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act, (i) any number of
Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total
voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (i) not less
than 100 Shareholders, may submit to the Company a written request
stating the resolution intended to be moved at an annual general meeting
of the Company or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

The written request/statement must be signed by all the requisitionists
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more of the requisitionists, and it must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company (Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda) or at the head office of the Company in Hong Kong (Suites
3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House, 1 Connaught Place, Central, Hong
Kong) for the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six (6)
weeks before the annual general meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution or not less than one (1) week before the general
meeting in case of any other requisition. Provided that if an annual
general meeting is called for a date six (6) weeks or less after the
requisition has been deposited, the requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited
for the purposes thereof.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (Continued)

Shareholders’ Right to Propose Resolutions at General
Meeting (Continued)

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any such
statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders entitled to have notice of
the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the resolution or statement
on each such Shareholder in any manner permitted for service of notice
of the meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall be given to any
other Shareholder by giving notice of the general effect of the resolution
in any manner permitted for giving him notice of meeting of the Company,
provided that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of the
resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the same manner and,
so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of the meeting and,
where it is not practicable for it to be served or given at that time, it shall
be served or given as soon as practicable thereafter.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at 46th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. In respect of other
enquiries, Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through
the below contact details and we will direct the enquiries to the Board for
handling. The contact details are as follows:

Address: Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor
Jardine House

1 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

(852) 2537 3086

(852) 2537 2834

Tel No.:
Fax No.:

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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About This Report

We engaged our stakeholders on an ongoing basis and seek to collect
their views and expectations on our Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) performance and disclosures. In response to the
interests and concerns of our stakeholders, the report summarises our
key ESG activities performed during the year. The following sections of
the report cover employment and labour practices, operating practices,
community investment and environmental protection.

As a well-established real estate developer with a long history in the PRC,
we are strongly committed to corporate social responsibility (“CSR”),
recognising that long-term business success is dependent on our
relationship with all of our stakeholders — both inside and outside the
Company, and that adopting responsible management practices is
essential. At Hopson, CSR is about achieving commercial success in
ways that honour ethical values and respect people, communities and
the natural environment. To successfully carry out CSR, the Group strives
to advocate the value of social responsibility throughout the organisation
so as to influence our day-to-day operations by the implementation. The
following report highlights our key CSR activities and achievements which
demonstrate our commitment to CSR during 2017. This report is also
available via the website of Hopson at www.irasia.com.hk/listco/hk/
hopson/.

Report Profile

This report describes the initiatives of the Group as a responsible
corporate citizen operating in the real estate sector and its relationship
with major stakeholders, covering the Group’s CSR activities in the
financial year ended 31st December 2017, including its focus on
environmental and social issues that are considered to be important to
the Group. This report supplements the Corporate Governance Report
and is included as a part of the Group’s 2017 Annual Report.

Reporting Guidelines

This report has been compiled in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”) under Appendix
27 of the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange.

Report Scope and Coverage

The scope of this report was defined after taking into consideration the
materiality of the CSR activities or issues arising from the business
operations of the Group, it excludes aspects stated in the ESG Guide
which are not material or relevant to the Group. This report has focused
on the Group’s business operations in Mainland China.
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Relationship with Employees

As the Group’s business is continuously expanding and our operation is
in the transformation stage, attracting, training and retaining talent have
become the key tasks of the Human Resources Department of the
Group. In 2017, the Group endeavoured to nurture outstanding staff
within the Group while recruiting them from the market. Under the
Group’s public and transparent promotion mechanism, members of staff
are given priority to all position vacancies through internal recruitment;
and all promotions have to be announced through the Group’s system to
all staff before implementation. Meanwhile, the Group constantly reserves
and nurtures talent on the basis of the continuous implementation of
talent hierarchy training programme.

Training for Internal Trainers

In June 2017, the human resources and administrative centre of the
Group organised professional training programmes for internal trainers in
each pipeline and professional segment. The aims of the programmes
were to further build up and refine the professional knowledge base for
each pipeline and segment, and gradually enrich the internal courses and
knowledge resources of the Group, as well as gradually transforming the
Group’s vast “implicit knowledge” into “explicit knowledge” to be passed
on.

The internal trainers were selected from the central pipelines, business
management group, property group, integrated creative group and
design group of the Group. An internal trainer candidate was selected
upon the recommendation of the head of each pipeline/segment, and the
said candidate will go through professional training to develop an internal
training curriculum to impart knowledge based on the needs of the
relevant pipeline.

A total of 15 internal trainers were selected and nurtured in the internal
trainer programme. The internal trainer programme was the first
professional and systematic training provided by the Group to internal
instructors, along with the implementation of various incentive measures:

1. Monetary Reward

In respect of teaching, incentive was awarded based on “RMB200/
hour for uncertified instructors and RMB300/hour for certified
instructors”. The outstanding instructors ranking first, second and
third in teaching rate and satisfaction rate respectively during the
year were awarded an annual instructor incentive of RMB1,000,
RMB1,500 and RMB 2,000 respectively. An incentive of RMB1,000
was awarded for every curriculum development, which would be
incorporated into the Group’s knowledge base upon approval.

2. Honour Awards

The Group issued internal certifications to instructors and provided
arrangements such as publicity for courses. The Group also gave
greeting gifts to internal trainers on teacher’s day to pay respect
and to show our care.
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HE Manpower Programme*

The Group conducted campus recruitment in 2017, and employed 13
outstanding graduates of the year from key universities across the
country to participate in “HE Manpower Programme”. Introducing high
quality management trainees is the cornerstone of our future rapid
development, and leading them on the right path to capitalise on the
prevailing opportunities is the Group’s key task. In the coming three
years, the Human Resources Department will carry forward a series of
training for management trainees on an ongoing basis, including
promotion of the Group’s values, professional knowledge training, on-
the-job training, management knowledge training and project
management. Since 2016, we have also implemented a mentorship
programme under the “HE Manpower Programme”. Every HE Manpower
Programme participant is allocated with one instructor from the Human
Resources Department. The instructor will conduct communication
meeting with the management trainee on monthly basis to set targets on
learning and life planning for them and to follow their implementation
progress of these plans. The Group expected to build a young and
vibrant team of future leaders for Hopson with the devotion of “HE
Manpower Programme”.

Corporate Finance Elite Programme

The Group has carried out extensive university-enterprises cooperation
with Zhujiang Management College of Tianjin University of Finance and
Economics, and jointly launched “Hopson-Pearl River Finance Elite
Programme” with groups such as Zhujiang Holdings Group.

The university-enterprises extensive cooperation has on one hand
echoed the education reform of higher schools while on the other hand,
developed fresh staff with practical financial application knowledge for the
Group. For students, the elite programme offers them the opportunities
to develop solid professional knowledge foundation and put
professionalism into practice. In other words, the programme realises a
win-win situation for the students, the university and the Group. In 2017,
the elite programme has nurtured a total of 27 students. Students have
added 8 commercial courses during their spare time in the third year with
a total of 224 course hours. Meanwhile, the elite programme also adds
contents such as “Professional Quality of Staff”, “Real Estate Life Cycle
Process Management” and “Corporate Finance Management” in
accordance with the practical works of the Group. The programme aims
to strengthen the communication and understanding between students
and the Group, and lay a solid foundation for the students to join the
Group in the future.

*

The “HE” in “HE Potential Programme” represents “Core Power of Hopson”

HE ) b & &1

2017F  KEBARERE £ EHKE
RE1B3REFNEREZELEAINAIHES S
e -SIAEEENEREIE BEE X
RKeREROEL MEHELIBENRZANER
EEEMNESTE ANWBRIFIEERKS
FoHEEEINAETEEESTE HEAM
HEY - AEEBRBE BEEA#EI - HE
EEEHEENESR H2016FHEERKH
TTIHEES TS BB THMAE - A8
HEB) W ABEE M ADERBPIIAYEA -
BMeGANEEEIFEETERS bEA
EEEIESTEEREETEBE  WEE
ERFZIEELEFTEMNRITERL - SEBEY
[HEB) Dt 3l IMETmA  eREARAGETE —X
FEOE DR ERE -

& BB RS S BE T

SEEXZVRLAERTIERETRENR
tEFE TEKTIEREBESZSEE — E1iHH)
[AE - TSR BHBRIE] -

REREAE—FTEBRETSRELHER
2 S—FE AEEEIT HAETER
BIISERAMBMTA - SR BLERE BEH
RETEESIETELELBRIH REBERE
EENKS BERTE4L BER -£E=ZHH
H@me2017F  HAMBEMEEH27TA - 1tb
MAEX=ZRGHARAMBE TMIHmERE &
Hoo4B - FEHEMRABHRBEEENER LT
B MERTIBIRELZE] [FHEZRE
EE] IPEVBEEIZTAD Uikt BE4EE
SEMNEBETH AEENAEEITITE
B ERE o

* THEE D BT ETHE] s RTAER LR

BEARKEEERAR T LEER

109



110

Susfainabilifg [eropf (continued)
IHEXERE @

Hopson Youth Foundation

The Hopson Youth Foundation was established on 29th April 2014 under
the proposition and the lead of the Chairman of the Board. The Hopson
Youth Foundation aims to promote Hopson’s corporate culture, support
the development of young employees, bring more happiness to staff,
assist in talent hierarchy building, strengthen staff cohesion and
competitiveness, thereby promoting collaborative growth between our
staff and Hopson in all domains.

Members of this youth organisation, from the chief secretary to members
of council and committees, are all led by young people under 30-year-old
based on the operation principle of “majority decision”. This staff
autonomous managed organisation is managed by the council which is
voted on by all employees of the Group, turning it into a development
ladder and growth platform for staff.

Health and Safety and Labour Standards

In order to provide a safe working environment for our employees and
protect them from occupational hazard, the Group adopts a series of
safety measures. For example, monitoring devices are installed in offices
to ensure the personal and property safety of our employees. In addition,
the Group also formulates contingency plans to deal with emergent
situations. For instance, emergency accesses are designed in our office
buildings to ensure safe evacuation of employees and vehicles in case of
emergency. Furthermore, the Group will at once contact the relevant
government departments to maintain order when accidents happen.

To protect employees from occupational hazard, the Group enters into
labour contracts with employees in strict compliance with the
requirements of Labour Contract Law of the PRC. The Group states in
the labour contracts that necessary safety measures and safety
protective equipment are provided to our employees. The Group strictly
prohibits construction irregularities to protect employees from industrial
accidents and minimise occupational hazard.

Furthermore, in the office areas, air-purifiers are always installed, green
plants are changed regularly and other measures such as decoration for
festivals are implemented in order to provide a good office environment
for staff. The Group also prepares festival gifts for staff on traditional
festivals such as Dragon Boat festival and Mid-autumn festival, so as to
show our care for employees.

To fight against child and forced labour, identification documents of new
employees are checked during their enrolment process to ensure that
they have reached the legal working age as stipulated in the Labour Law
of the PRC. During enrolment, the Group requires new employees to
provide bank accounts and bank cards of their own with filings by the
Group to ensure that salaries are received by the employees. If child
labour or forced labour is found, the Group will assist to transfer the
person responsible for the violation to the relevant labour departments for
enforcement of laws.
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The Group organises annual checkups, travel, various sports and cultural
leisure activities, as well as recognises outstanding staff with awards and
holds annual dinner for staff to show our care for staff, and enhance team
communication and cohesion.

In 2017, the Group awarded a “Continuous Service Award” to each of
the 491 members of staff who has served the Group for more than 5
years to praise their loyalty and continuous contribution to the Group.
Among them, there were 205 members of staff who have served for
more than 10 years, and 14 staff who have served for more than 20
years.

In order to provide all-rounded staff development from morality,
intelligence to physical fitness, the Group has organised rich and colourful
activities for our staff as follows:

1. Family Day

To gain more understanding and support towards staff from their
family members, the Group has organised a family day in a larger
scale than before and both the Group’s headquarter and regional
offices were invited. The Group hopes to enhance communication
among members of staff and between their families through
activities of the family day, such as games, sports and picnic.
Meanwhile, the family day also allows staff’s family to understand
the Group’s achievements and thereby increases their
understanding and support on the staff’s work.

2. Corporate Internal Publication

The Group’s internal quarterly publication “Hopson”, which is
organised by the Group and co-organised by Hopson Youth
Foundation, aims to promote the Group’s spirit and culture,
disseminate the Group’s development strategy as well as share
material matters of each regional offices and individual projects.

3. Hopson Library

Hopson Library is located in the headquarters of the Group. It has a
collection of books including literature, history, technology,
photography and design. It is open to our staff during lunchtime
every day. Hopson Library provides a reading and interacting venue
for the staff. Various categories of books also help staff to gain
knowledge about work and life. The establishment of Hopson
Library would broaden the staff’s horizon and enrich their spare
time.
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4. Hopson Staff Clubs

The Group established three sports clubs in 2016, namely the
Badminton Club, the Basketball Club and the Football Club. Each
club regularly organises sports activities and holds various
competitions of different scales to enrich the staff’s life after work
as well as to promote the concept of healthy living lifestyle to staff.
With the establishment of these clubs, the Group aims to help staff
maintain a strong physique and enhance cohesion among staff in
each department of the Group.

Social Responsibility

To enhance staff's sense of social responsibility and promote community
spirit, Hopson organised unique charity activities in order to give back to
the society and fulfil social responsibility.

Earthquake Fundraising

In August 2017, an earthquake of magnitude 7.0 hit Jiuzhaigou County in
Aba Prefecture, Sichuan. Adhering to the concept of our corporate
culture—“mutualism with integrity and innovation”, Hopson Youth
Foundation initiated the “We are here for you charity donation” at the
headquarters of Hopson on 10th August 2017. The donations were
donated to China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation.

Relationship with Suppliers

The Group mainly selects its suppliers through tenders. Suppliers who
participate in tender are mostly renowned brands in the market and those
who have been suppliers of goods or services of other large-scale real
estate developers.

Each time the Group invites three to six suppliers for tender. Upon
receiving the quotations for services/raw materials, the Group’s
management will compare these quotations with the historical price,
benchmark prices or market prices of the services/raw materials, so as to
ensure the quoted prices are reasonable. As long as the technical
requirements are met, tender is in principal awarded to the supplier
offering the lowest reasonable price.

The Group enters into contracts with suppliers which are awarded with
tenders, and conducts assessments on these suppliers quarterly. The
Group mainly assesses four aspects, the product quality, supply
capability, on-sales services and after-sales services of the suppliers, so
as to ensure the performances of the suppliers are able to meet the
Group’s standards continuously.
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Anti-corruption

To prevent bribery, extortion, fraud and money-laundering, an Integrity
Agreement is attached to each of our service agreements with suppliers
to regulate the employees of both parties to work with an honest attitude,
so as to maintain a working culture of integrity and self-discipline, and
prevent all sorts of improper acts. The Group also sets clear behaviour
standards and regulations on penalties against possible non-compliances
such as bribery and fraud in the Regulations on Strict Enforcement of
Orders and Prohibitions and Monitoring and Disciplinary Management
System of Employees’ Behaviours of our internal guidelines.

Relationship with Customers

Product Responsibility

The Group places great importance on customer relationship
management. In order to improve customers’ satisfaction and increase
their desire to purchase Hopson’s products and services again, our sales
team is committed to providing customers with pre-sales, on-sales and
after-sales services on a great variety of our products and services.

For this reason, the Group has established customer services hotline and
customer services centres at regional offices with a hope to receive
customers’ feedbacks in a more efficient and systematic manner. The
Group hopes that the customer services hotline and the customer
services centres can bring better user experience for customers, and can
collect various representable and constructive opinions from customers,
so as to enhance areas such as the standards, procedures and
monitoring method corresponding to the Group’s products.

Environmental Friendly Buildings

The Group invests enormous resources to gradually introduce sustainable
development and green home living concept. To maximise resource
conservation and provide healthy, practical, and environmental friendly
green buildings that coexist harmoniously with the nature, the Group
incorporates energy saving and green concept into its long-term
development.

The Group puts green environmental friendly concepts into practice in
various stages from planning and designing phase to construction and
operational phase of newly developed projects. By saving land, energy,
water and materials resources to the largest extent, the Groups can
utilise resources fully and efficiently. A number of building projects of the
Group, including Huizhou Hopson International New City, have applied
for Green Building Label in 2017.
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The Group fully considers the technical and economic features
throughout the entire building life cycle as early as in the designing stage
of building projects. It employs sites, form of architecture, technology,
equipment and materials which could facilitate the sustainable
development of buildings and environment so as to implement the green
concepts of sharing, balance and integration while trying its best to
enhance the energy-saving performance, utilisation rate of non-traditional
water resources, utilisation rate of recyclable materials and the use of
renewable energy.

In order to use land in an economical way and to avoid damage to the
original eco-environment as far as possible, the Group plans and designs
buildings with reasonable arrangement by ensuring buildings natural
sunlight and ventilation in buildings, reducing light pollution and noise,
improving the temperature control of building, separating pedestrians and
traffic as well as developing and utilising underground space reasonably.

The design of buildings fully considers the energy-saving factors. Hollow
insulated glasses are used on external windows to bring in natural light
and ventilation as much as possible, so as to reduce energy
consumption; effective noise insulation measures are adopted on exterior
structure and floor of buildings; local construction materials are fully
utilised in order to reduce energy consumption of transportation; solar
panel systems are installed on rooftop to utilise renewable energy and act
as effective heat shields.

Architectural structure systems with low energy consumption and minimal
environmental impact are used in structural design. Ready-mixed
concrete is employed and high performance concrete and high-strength
steel are also reasonably used. The Group is currently devoting significant
efforts in the research of prefabricated construction, endeavouring to
implement the said construction to certain projects next year.

A reasonable water system planning should be devised for the design of
water supply and drainage system of buildings. Water-saving appliances
and equipment are used and rainwater and sewage are separated while
non-traditional water sources such as rainwater and recycled water are
reasonably used. For instance, we design rainwater collection system
which introduces rainwater into rainwater storage pool for outdoor area
landscaping and greenery watering; we also apply waste-water system in
areas such as landscaping, vehicle wash down and toilet flushing. In
addition, we also use high efficient water-saving irrigation method for
landscape irrigation.

Ventilation and air conditioning also fully consider energy-saving
environmental friendly principle. For example, environmental friendly
refrigerant is used in the air conditioning system of club houses to reduce
pollution to environment; the Group also attempts to use fresh air
processing units to control the concentration of indoor fine suspended
particulates so as to improve air quality; central ventilation systems are
also employed by using related thermal recycling devices.
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For electric design, high-efficiency lighting sources, high-efficiency lighting
equipment and accessories with long durability are used on the lighting in
the public areas of buildings and application of time control or light
control are used in areas with natural lighting. For instance, LED
luminaires are used in public areas of buildings and T5 high-efficient
energy-saving light tubes are installed in car parks; sound-light control
time-delay switches are also installed along staircases.

For interior design, the space size, furniture and ornaments are placed in
accordance with the pattern of human activities. The ventilation, lighting
and overall effect of colours indoors are scientifically addressed while
quality environmental protection materials were selected and economical
cutting and installation technology are adopted.

The major factor taken into consideration in landscape design is local
indigenous plants. The proportion of water permeable paving is increased
to raise underground water reserves and reduce surface run-off. We also
make full use of building shadows and tall trees to provide summer
outdoor shading.

The Group seeks to take the lead in adapting Building Information
Modelling (BIM Technology) in the building designs of its projects,
bringing about visualization of projects, finer constructions and
computerised management.

During the construction of project buildings, the Group strictly adheres to
the internal guidelines of “Management Standard of Safe Construction
Site and Modern Construction Practices”, which clearly stipulate that
effective measures shall be adopted during construction in accordance
with national and local regulations to strengthen the control and
management of noise, dust, waste gases and waste water. The Group
also makes strenuous efforts to reduce the emission of waste gases and
greenhouse gases, minimise the pollution to water and land and curb the
generation of waste.

The Group implements the green environmental friendly concept of
energy-saving thoroughly in the operational use of the buildings of our
projects from operation maintenance system to details.

Environmental Protection

Energy Saving and Environmental Friendly Office

The Group has been exploring energy saving and green management
measures for offices, and strives to reduce resource consumption and
waste as much as possible.

For example, Hopson always encourages staff to adopt good practices
in using electricity, such as setting computers to “standby” mode if they
would not be using them in a short period of time, unplugging power
plugs after switching off computers and using zoned lighting when
working overtime.
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In order to advocate paperless office, the Group adheres to the principle
of “Be determined not to print those not allowed to, try not to print those
unnecessary ones, reduce printing inevitable ones”. Documents for
internal circulation are required to be printed on both sides except for
formal documents. In addition, since the mid of 2014, the Group’s annual
reports and interim reports were printed on papers recognised by the
Forest Stewardship Council to ensure that the papers used are from
forestry operators who adopt a responsible attitude towards the
ecosystem and the community. All such measures of the Group are
aimed at reducing paper usage and hence reducing damages to the
ecosystem caused by the use of papers.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to areas such as employment and labour practices,
operating practices and environment.

Environmental Key Performance Indicator (“KPI”) Data Table

The following table summarises the Group’s significant environmental,
social and governance issues as set out in the report:

RIBEE&RERL SEERI AR ERR
ANEV ATENAAEIMEE AN BBHBNEE
DENWRA BT EXH AN B AR
BE M BESRERE®ITE - 5 - 52014
Fhfts SENFR PHF —FDHKRA
AMNEBRZEERENRRETINR - BERE
FREBHARARGAEREEENRELE
BeSEEBEERERE HEEHORAK HIR
PR A T S A BB R 40 5 A RO AR ©

RBEHHRA - AEEBL TABEAAKRERIE
BERETER LETRERRRTEETER
FOERMBAEREENBEATEZRBR -

REBEREANERHESR

TRERAREFRAEEOEARY 4 &
REAEE

Environmental Data (Group)

BB (5H)
Environmental KPIs Unit 2017
REBRENER B —E—tF
Total greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions BEREHRES tonne COq¢e 104,252.39
mE— S biE &
Scope 1 — Direct emissions and removals HE— — BEHHR LR tonne CO.e 5,061.01
M — S iRE 8
Scope 2 — Energy indirect emissions FE = — LR EE N tonne CO.e 99,191.38
M — S iRE 8
Total non-hazardous waste produced FMErAEEZREEYHEE tonne 21,042.31
L
Total energy consumption BERMEGEE KWh 128,580,036.22
R
Total direct energy consumption BEEREREREE kwWh 18,001,934.57
T ELBF
Petrol i KWh 58,711.78
TR
Diesel ey KWh 2,140.82
TR
Natural gas RAR kwWh 17,941,081.97
TR
Total direct energy consumption intensity BEEGRERERE
By revenue B HTE kWh/Revenue HKD’000 1.30
FRE /FTAThE
Total indirect energy consumption HERREE=S
Purchased electricity SNEE N KWh 110,578,101.65
TR
Total indirect energy consumption intensity HEERREEETE
By revenue R zETHE kWh/Revenue HKD’000 8.00
FRE FHThEE
Water consumption FEKE m® 2,074,154.52
Water consumption intensity FRKETRE
By revenue B EE m?®/Revenue HKD’000 0.15
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hopson Development Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 127 to 237, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st December 2017;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31st December 2017. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Valuation of investment properties
° Recoverability of prepayments for acquisition of land

° Recoverability of properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Key Audit Matter
BRETBR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESNMEEERETSHE

Valuation of investment properties

REMENGE

Refer to Notes 4.1(a) and 8 to the consolidated financial
statements

R A B mKRNME41@ K8

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties to be HK$42,971 milion at 31st
December 2017, with a revaluation gain for the year ended
31st December 2017 recorded in the consolidated income
statement of HK$5,003 million. External valuations were
obtained for all the investment properties in order to
support management’s estimates. Fair values of completed
investment properties are derived using the income
capitalisation method, and fair values of investment
properties under development are derived using the
residual method. The valuations are dependent on certain
key assumptions that require significant judgement,
including capitalisation rates and prevailing market rents.
The valuations of investment properties under development
are also dependent upon the estimated costs to completion
and estimated developer’s profit.

EEED G EEER S —+tE+-_A=+—HK
BEMELATERLRINMBEEE T MNEEWER
BRI BE_Z—+tF+_A=+T—BLFEZEMHK
W Al 25,0088 & BT - FTEIREMELE BRI
ME EAXKHERBZEA -BEXKREVENHNR
FEDABAERESGH MERPREVENR
FEAARBESE - HENRARETHTEEARSA
BNEZRK BREERNMEXILRITHSHES - &
[ 1 & W 3 1 B TR BUR PO 51 5% BOAK AR I il 51 38
EEAME -

Due to the existence of significant judgement in making
assumptions used in the valuation of investment properties,
we considered it a key audit matter.
HAREEREMEMEMBZREEEE XA - &
BMEERSAREAEE-

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of
investment properties included:

MREEBETREVENGHENS  RANEFEHE

° Evaluating the independent external valuers’
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

o« EBISEBLERNS B BN REBIZE

° Obtaining valuation reports and meeting with the
independent valuers to discuss valuation methodologies;

e ERAEmSVTERBUYMEMEE UtREER
bz

o Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions, including
capitalisation rates, estimated developer’s profit and
prevailing market rents, based on our knowledge of the
property industry, comparing to available market
information for comparable properties and using our
internal valuation experts; and

o HEHRBRMUMETENRS LLEWMS EAHER
BRI LE B W) 3 & K (R A R AT Y Wﬁw.ﬂﬁ%% LA
HEFARTEREZREZERERE  BREENL
T HEFERANERIRTH iﬂﬂﬁ 53

° Checking, on a sample basis, the data provided by the
Group to the independent external valuers, including
agreeing the rental information to the underlying lease
contracts and/or market rental information of comparable
properties as applicable, agreeing the costs incurred and
the budgeted costs to the construction contracts and/or
the supporting documentation.

s KRHEFIAEELE REEEERETHIINBMGEE
MEEE R EEBEEAONESERRS
ZAEEEMETSHEHN(KRERSE) BEL
BEHNFPREARBERAR R, ER X -

We found the key assumptions were supported by the
available audit evidence.
BMBEREERRIAAGETBREMIF-
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Key Audit Matter
BRETBR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNES NN EEFERETSE

Recoverability of prepayments for acquisition of land

Y B £ 3t TR A SRR A9 AT W [ 1

Refer to Notes 4.1(b), 16, 38(e) and 38(f) to the
consolidated financial statements
AR MR A R E M 5E4.1(0) « 16+ 38(e) 2 38(f)

The Group had prepayments for acquisition of land of
HK$10,206 million as at 31st December 2017.
Prepayments for acquisition of land represent advances
made for the acquisitions of land use rights, for which the
formal land use right certificates have not yet been
obtained.
BEEER_Z—+tF+_A=1T—HBEKELHIER
MIE710,206 B & BT o Wi T TEN FRIE T AR I
Bt AR MEBEX T EREERK
g e

The balance includes an amount of approximately
HK$4,486 million for the land situated in Chaoyang District,
Beijing, Mainland China, through the acquisition of a
company from Mr. Chu Mang Yee (“Mr. Chu”), the
controlling shareholder and Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company, in 2007 which possesses the
right to develop the project on the land. Mr. Chu has
undertaken to the Group to be responsible for the excess
amount, if any, payable by the project company in respect
of any increase in plot ratio as the government may
approve.

HHRBEEANR446BEBITHRIE AR —RE N F
Wit REAGE A i EDEBRKE —KEAQR
IRBRRELREEGFFERAAEREE(TREEDEED
NEFE AR _ZETLFAAAEZLHEREEN
R REAEMBEEBABREEE AREBRNA
BEHL/ERIMEMBTRBXRELZBINKE(E) -
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Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of the
recoverability of prepayments for the acquisition of land
included:

RERENGWE I BN REN AT WE NS - FAF
SO SAOR

° Discussing with management on the latest status and
development plans of the underlying property projects,
such as expected dates in obtaining the formal land use
right certificates and expected completion dates of the
projects;

e HEBENwWHEBYEEENSZHMAERERET
2 oS EX LM AREENTRRAE B RERE
BRTHH:

o Inspecting the Group’s correspondence with the relevant
government authorities and Hanjiang;

s THESEEMBEBRNHENETNEN:

° Obtaining the opinions received by management from
independent legal counsels and discussing with them on
the legality of the land transfer contracts and the
undertakings provided by Mr. Chu, and whether any idle
land penalties have been imposed by the relevant
government authorities; and

e ENREEEMBEVEEZEMUERNER KHEFEHE
AT EE A KSR - DA RKRE A EL A&
ERAERNEEESTEMEMNEE LI &

o Evaluating management’s assessment by comparing, on
a sample basis, the estimated market value of the land
with the recent market transaction prices of land parcels
with comparable locations.

e EERMAEFALLBRLHAMGETERE]E LM
HIRET TSR ZER - L ZEEEMNTE -

We found that management’s assessment on recoverability of
prepayments for acquisition of land is supported by the
available evidence.

AP 3 IR B IR FE UL BB £ 1t TR S BRIR A9 AT I 3 1 9 AT
Ty B AT 45 3B 1B P S o



lnclependenf Auditor’s eror’f (continued)
B 3 % BLED R & ()

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETEE BN ESNMEEERETSHE

The balance also includes an amount of approximately
HK$4,069 million for the land situated in Panyu District,
Guangdong, Mainland China, which the Group has
obtained the right to develop the land through the
acquisition of a wholly owned subsidiary from Guangdong
Hanjiang Engineering Construction Limited (formerly known
as Guangdong Hanjiang Construction Installation Project
Limited) (“Hanjiang”), a related company, in 2010. Hanjiang
agreed to perform and complete all necessary demoalition
and preparation work to obtain the land use right certificate
at its own expense. Mr. Chu has undertaken to the Group
to guarantee the due and punctual performance by
Hanjiang of its obligations in relation to the land (subject to
a maximum amount of RMB3,600 million).
ERTEEAR —MUNFREREERESRN T
BWRIEX4069BE BT - EEENBEER _T—FF
MAEARIERBITREABRER QA (AEER
BIEZEZRIBARA(HIDKE—H2E
MEBARMMEZ MM ERE - B IRESBERE
I e 2 B AT & MR BR S B TAE A 1S T (e A
B RAECAEEERER IZSWHBETEARA
THHEE(RERERARKI00EET) -

Management assessed the likelihood of obtaining the
related land use rights by reference to the latest discussions
with the relevant government authorities and Hanjiang.
Management took into consideration opinions from
independent legal counsels on the legality of the land
transfer contracts and the undertakings provided by Mr.
Chu, and whether any idle land penalties have been
imposed by the relevant government authorities.
ERENMETRGHEB I E RN ATRE A2
RO BT B BT mmE - BIRES
BTEOLEERY I HEES O RREERHEN A
HANAEENER  UKBEBAEESR S HEINER
BE LI -
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Independenf Auditor’s eror’f (continued)
B 3 % BLAD IR &S ()

Key Audit Matter
BRETBR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNES NN EEFERETSE

Management also assessed the recoverability of
prepayments for acquisition of land, taking into account the
estimated market value of the land, and concluded that no
provision for impairment is necessary. Provision is made
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

IR E IR AT B & b B A BRIE &Y R U [ 1 R
THBEATEFAEZRE WELEDEELRERE -
WMELFEHXNBERAEHBREREET — T AT WE K-
Alg e -

Due to the existence of significant management judgement
in making assumptions used in the recoverability of
prepayments for acquisition of land, we considered it a key
audit matter.

HPE Ui T b FE A R IE B AT W B M P R 2 R R F
EEBENEARAE HMBERSBERSEAEE-
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lnclependenf Auditor’s eror’f (continued)
B 3 % BLED R & ()

Key Audit Matter
BRETBR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESNMEEERETSHE

Recoverability of properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale
AHEEsERTYELAIHEE ZEEZKMENT]
Y [al 1%

Refer to Notes 4.1(c) and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements
RS MR M 5T 4.1(0) &9

The Group had properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale of HK$42,112 million and
HK$27,358 million respectively as at 31st December 2017.
Management assessed the recoverability of the properties
under development for sale and completed properties for
sale, taking into account the estimated costs to completion
and estimated net sales value under prevailing market
conditions. Provision is made when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable.

EEER T —+tF+ZA=Z+—HBHEAHLEZ
BRAMERAIHEE ZCEZXMES /42,1128
B TR27T3EEAB T BEEEBRITHAHEE
BERPMERAELE 2B EK Y E A W E M -
EIRITHR TE TR TR A R HE FREIIAZE
& o fie B8 A S S 1B O B B BR R BR T (B ] AR DR Wk Bl
B Rl ELEE -

Due to the existence of significant management judgement
in making assumptions used in the recoverability of
properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale, we considered it a key audit matter.
MR ERAIMEEZBRTYERAHEE ZEEK
MENHRAREMMAZBRERFEEERENE AN HE -
BPSERSHEREAEER-

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of the
recoverability of completed properties for sale included:
REEBNAAHEE 2 BN MENAIWE LR S -
BPWOREFBE:

° Evaluating management’s assessment by comparing, on
a sample basis, the estimated selling price used in the
assessment with the recent price or market prices of
properties with comparable locations and conditions.

s HERHMEAALBCEREREAANMGGEEK
BEME AR EOTE  AFREIREO G -

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of the
recoverability of properties under development for sale
included:
REBEBTGHAHEEZEREPYENATREMTS
BPOREFBE:

° Testing the key controls around the property construction
cycle with particular focus on, but not limited to control
over cost budgeting for estimated costs to completion;
and

o AEWMEIRBHNFEZERE LHFEIRELR
OB R TR AR TEE T &

° Evaluating management’s assessment by comparing, on
a sample basis, the estimated selling price and the
estimated cost to completion used in the assessment
with the recent market price of properties with
comparable locations and conditions and latest approved
budgets on total construction costs by checking to
supporting documentation such as quantity surveyor
reports and signed contracts.

o HEEHMEFALBAMEEHEERMEFRIKAE
HEARBEME MR EN TR mERERET
HAERENERTANEITAXNGMEERRAR
ERANRIMECHETRE - LT EBEENTGE -

We found that management’s assessment on recoverability of
properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale is supported by the available evidence.
BMEREBERAELECERPYERAFLEE
EEAMEN KB DB AIEE R -

SEARKEEERAR T LFEER
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Independenf Auditor’s eror’f (continued)
B 3 % BLAD IR &S ()

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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lndependenf Auclijfor),s erorf (continued)
B 3 % BLED R & ()

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

*Z%ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ%%‘l‘%éﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬂ@
B
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Independenf Auclijfop’s erori (continued)
B 3 % BLAD IR &S ()

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Chui Man.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29th March 2018
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Consoliclcujlecj Balance Sheef
Re R R R

As at 31st December 2017 R-Z—+F+_-_A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Kt &t FET FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Land costs & b ER AR 6 1,846,674 1,776,499
Prepayments for acquisition of land Ui B8 £ 1 38 14 08 16 127,264 118,927
Prepayments for construction work BRI ZEMNZE 16 — 28,682
Loan receivables FEWE = 15 1,536,051 —
Properties and equipment E R 7 3,724,771 3,486,335
Investment properties KEME 8 42,971,253 31,300,936
Goodwill EES 10 33,552 31,818
Investments in associates REZE AT ZIRE 11 153,106 140,747
Investments in joint ventures REZERNBIZIRE 12 8,035,057 7,424,805
Available-for-sale financial assets A E R E E 13 4,039,343 3,406,109
Deferred tax assets EERIAE E 22 740,160 495,525
63,207,231 48,210,383
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments for acquisition of land U B8 + b I8~ FR 08 16 10,079,270 9,058,323
Properties under development for sale A E ZRERYE 9 42,112,261 44,761,847
Completed properties for sale At EZ DR E 27,358,063 21,233,257
Financial assets at fair value through EANFEBBERIERZ
profit or loss BB E 14 174,852 83,584
Accounts receivable JFE W2 BR 53R 17 630,653 542,974
Loan receivables & W E X 15 299,075 —
Available-for-sale financial assets AR EREEE 13 220,000 -
Prepayments, deposits and other ERRIE - 'E R
current assets Him#&E 16 3,879,004 2,749,500
Due from a joint venture FElR—B4&a% N aliE 38 42,230 34,738
Due from associates FE UL B 2 N B sk I8 38 211 197
Due from related companies FEUREE N B3 IE 38 7,713 3,190
Pledged/charged bank deposits B R ITER 18 405,842 261,215
Cash and cash equivalents HWENBEESEEY 18 5,396,990 6,053,733
90,606,164 84,782,558
Total assets BmEE 153,813,395 132,992,941
EERIREEERAT —E—tFFR



Consoliclojfecl Balance Shee]l (con’finued)
e R R R @

As at 31st December 2017 R-ZT—+F+-HA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
M aF FHE T TH&T
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to EATRESFEAEM
the Company’s equity holders AR &
Share capital fi% A 24 222,556 222,556
Reserves = 26 63,871,569 54,194,334
64,094,125 54,416,890
Non-controlling interests JEfE MR 25 2,143,533 1,988,176
Total equity EREAsE 66,237,658 56,405,066
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kERBEE
Land cost payable JE 5 4 b X AN 19 92,830 86,827
Borrowings TE 21 37,626,814 35,213,845
Due to non-controlling interests FERTIEVESI R 2 RIE 38 539,409 504,071
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIAEE 20 7,646,741 6,080,408
45,905,794 41,885,151
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable FETBE R 20 7,881,015 5,715,064
Land cost payable JE < 4 b AR AR 19 5,327 44,104
Borrowings TE 21 15,562,973 9,538,378
Deferred revenue iR E U A 5,766,727 8,667,718
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 308 K H b JE < 5RIE 3,979,917 3,167,043
Due to an associate JE 5 — el Bt &2 R B) 2 FRUIB 38 6,603 6,170
Due to related companies JES BB R R 2 5RIE 38 223,907 476,471
Due to joint ventures FENAERRZHIE 38 3,208,176 3,253,214
Current tax liabilities NEIFR B & & 23 5,035,298 3,834,562
41,669,943 34,702,724
Total liabilities BEHAE 87,575,737 76,587,875
Total equity and liabilities EaRBEEE 153,813,395 132,992,941

Chu Mang Yee
KFE A
Director

EF

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial

statements.
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KGR

Director

EF
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Consoliclcujlecj Income Sjla’[emenj[

e W R

For the year ended 31st December 2017

BHEZ—tF+_A=1T—HILEFE

statements.

BEAREEERAA

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
Kt i THET FAT
Revenues I &= 5 13,823,946 16,255,697
Cost of sales 5 & AR AR (8,738,475) (11,776,266)
Gross profit E F 5,085,471 4,479,431
Fair value gain on investment properties HEWHERNFER D 8 5,003,235 2,604,091
Other gains, net Hib Yz - JF58 27 207,580 84,110
Selling and marketing expenses HERMSHEEER (328,673) (413,440)
General and administrative expenses —MEITHER (1,349,594) (1,218,331)
Finance income B 5 U A 31 43,918 79,439
Finance costs B %5 B 2R 31 (5,242) (132,484)
Share of profit of associates SR (an iR A/NEI b 11 2,408 1,645
Share of profit of joint ventures DG &R a A 10 86,701 143,844
Profit before taxation % i B 8,745,804 5,628,305
Taxation B 32 (2,933,984) (1,785,631)
Profit for the year FEEZRAN 5,811,820 3,842,674
Attributable to: e -
Equity holders of the Company AKRFRIEEREA 5,796,385 3,868,433
Non-controlling interests FEVE ) 1 2 15,435 (25,759)
5,811,820 3,842,674
Earnings per share for profit attributable ZRFREX AT REZFEA
to equity holders of the Company EBhRANTEZERAEF
during the year (in HK$ per share) (BR#ExT)
— basic and diluted —HEANESE 33 2.60 1.74
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial — [B& M 2 B 5F Jh 43 & B 75 s = B9 A2 B 3B 17 ©

T tFFR

129



COI’ISOIiCJCIiQCJ Sjlcuj[emenjl O{ Comppel}ensive Income
AEZEHBRA®RE

For the year ended 31st December 2017 #HE—Z—tF+_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B &t FET FAT
Profit for the year FERA 5,811,820 3,842,674
Other comprehensive income HttZ2mBA
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HEr & BEEERZ
to profit or loss: TEH :
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AIEHETBEEZ
financial assets N ERE 13 378,207 47,336
Assets revaluation reserve realised upon HEFELHESERY
disposal of completed properties held ¥XRER 2 EEER
for sale {1 26 (335,845) (37,181)
Deferred tax IR GE F7 18 62,672 5,882
Currency translation differences ErkiE N R 4,138,294 (3,657,544)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FEHMEZEBAS
for the year, net of tax (B#E) HNBRHER 4,243,328 (3,641,507)
Total comprehensive income forthe year FEZ2HEW AL 10,055,148 201,167
Attributable to: FEA
Equity holders of the Company AKARIREREA 9,899,791 362,050
Non-controlling interests JE4% I #E 25 155,357 (160,883)
10,055,148 201,167

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial — B& i 2 [t 5% Th 42 & B FS 3R R AU 4B B 201D o
statements.
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Consoliclcujlecj Cash How Sjlcnjlemenji
GERERER

For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE—Z—tF+_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Kt i TER FAT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHz2EHERE
Cash generated from operations CEEEZRS 35(a) 3,626,732 6,263,388
Interest received 2 F S 39,019 74,545
Hong Kong profits tax refunded EREBBMNEN 10,104 -
Mainland China corporate income tax paid RN L EE N o
Fri8 %t (803,835) (643,051)
Mainland China land appreciation tax paid B A B K BE -4
18 (E T (278,469) (428,379)
Net cash generated from operating activites & /EBEL 2R F5E 2,593,551 5,266,507
Cash flows from investing activities RETBZ2HERE
Dividend income B2 WA 146,993 129,600
Additions of properties and equipment BAMEREZE (205,910) (105,291)
Additions of investment properties HILREYE (1,347,393) (890,433)
Additions of loan receivables LK E R (1,835,126) -
Additions of available-for-sale financial assets B A A fit H & I BB E (222,991) (443,113)
Additions of financial assets at fair value g AT EBERBER
through profit or loss IR B E (91,607) (70,407)
Loss on investments A EE = (46,427)
Acquisition of the non-controlling interests of WEE—RB AR Z
a subsidiary FE4E )1 A 25 - (10,599)
Prepayment for acquisitions of subsidiaries W EEH B A | 2 Ta
HIH (812,227) —
Proceeds from disposal of land BEETHATERE 18,739 —
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at  EEIR A FEE B
fair value through profit or loss BRIEs M BEE
FS IR 63,773 -
Decrease in amount due from related FEU & A R R A
companies = 477
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash Wig—HElMB AR
acquired Mk D EEES 35(b) (377,054) —
(Increase)/decrease in pledged/charged bank B #K18 /$R 2 4R 1T 1F 3¢
deposits (4 10),/ (122,037) 384,140
Net cash used in investing activities REEHAZE S F8 (4,784,840) (1,052,049)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
MEREREXR@
For the year ended 31st December 2017 #HE—Z—tF+_A=+—HItFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Kt i THET FHEIT

Cash flows from financing activities METB2RERE 35(c)

Interest paid BFE (3,181,608) (3,347,241)

Additions of short-term bank loans P2 R HRITE X 2,249,203 6,839,973

Additions of long-term bank loans FERBIRITER 17,317,270 11,464,273

Additions of corporate bonds N RES = 3,680,178

Additions of asset-backed securities NS EEXRHS - 3,621,634

Repayments of bank loans EERTER (13,101,642) (22,044,618)

Repayments of asset-backed securities EREERARES (1,369,610) -

Redemption and repayment of senior notes ERREEELZE = (2,325,288)

Capital contribution by non-controlling P B S HE

interests - 17,318

Repayment to related companies EBETHEERA (280,436) (84,725)

Repayment to a joint venture EEFT—MEeERA (263,850) -

Dividends paid to equity holders of the BENARARERAE A

Company P& B (222,556) (223,020)

Repurchase of own shares A RNEGigr) = (58,533)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing mEESELS (A2

activities ReFE 1,146,771 (2,560,149
Net (decrease)/increase incashandcash BRERREZEY>

equivalents GRL2) /18 n% 58 (1,044,518) 1,654,309
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January R—A—BzHEk

WEZEEY 6,053,733 4,753,340

Exchange difference on cash and cash RehBESFEWZ

equivalents fE W =5 387,775 (353,916)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December R+ _—_A=+—HZ

HENIREEEBY 5,396,990 6,053,733

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial — B& [t 2 Mt 5% Th 42 & B FS 3R R B 4B B 201D o
statements.
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Consoliclcujlecj Slla’[emenjl ol( Clmnqes in Equifq

REREBZEER

For the year ended 31st December 2017

BHEZ—tF+_A=1T—HILEFE

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company
AR EREE AEM
Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves interests Total
Ik 2= )
[N 1 s ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET THET FET FET
Balance at 1st January 2017 RZZE—LF
—A— Bz & 222,556 54,194,334 1,988,176 56,405,066
Profit for the year F =2 5 A - 5,796,385 15,435 5,811,820
Other comprehensive Hiap2mEKRA(E18):
income/(loss):
Fair value gains on available- AEHETKEEZ
for-sale financial assets NFERBE — 378,207 - 378,207
Assets revaluation reserve HERBIEREDEX
realised upon disposal of YEREIR BE
completed properties held EHHEE
for sale - (335,845) - (335,845)
Deferred tax IR E T IR — 62,672 - 62,672
Currency translation HHE N ERR
differences — 3,998,372 139,922 4,138,294
Other comprehensive income  FE E 2 EUW A -
for the year, net of tax MR IA - 4,103,406 139,922 4,243,328
Total comprehensive income FE>EWAERE
for the year - 9,899,791 155,357 10,055,148
Transactions with owners: HiEFEERS:
Dividends paid EAKRE = (222,556) = (222,556)
Balance at RZE—+F+=H8
31st December 2017 =+—Bz&&% 222,556 63,871,569 2,143,533 66,237,658
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Consolidated Statement of Chanqes in Equifq (continued)

REREZEHR @

For the year ended 31st December 2017

HEZ—tF+_A=T—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
RRRIREREE AR

Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves interests Total
FE 28 ) 1
[N 15 = BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT TH&T FAT FAT
Balance at 1st January 2016 RZZTE—RF
—A—BZ#& 223,412 54,112,981 2,181,998 56,518,391
Profit for the year FERH — 3,868,433 (25,759) 3,842,674
Other comprehensive Hip2mKA(E18):
income/(loss):
Fair value gains on available- AEHETKEEZ
for-sale financial assets N FE U - 47,336 - 47,336
Assets revaluation reserve HERELEDER
realised upon disposal VERBER 2 EE
of completed properties EHHEE
held for sale — (87,181) — (87,181)
Deferred tax EIEFL IR - 5,882 - 5,882
Currency translation HHE K ERR
differences — (3,522,420) (135,124)  (3,657,544)
Other comprehensive loss FEHMEEEE -
for the year, net of tax MR IE — (3,506,383) (135,124) (3,641,507)
Total comprehensive income/  EE2®EW A (EB1E)
(loss) for the year 1B EE — 362,050 (160,883) 201,167
Transactions with owners: HIFHERS
Repurchase of own shares 88 [0 A & f% 17 (856) (57,677) — (58,533)
Dividends paid BfEE - (223,020) — (223,020)
Capital contribution by —HB AR
non-controlling interests of JEVE B MRS N E
a subsidiary — — 17,318 17,318
Acquisition of interests WEWEB AR #E=
in subsidiaries — - (50,257) (50,257)
(856) (280,697) (32,939) (814,492)
Balance at RZE—RF+=A
31st December 2016 =+ —Bz&% 222,556 54,194,334 1,988,176 56,405,066

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial

statements.
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Nojles to ”19 Consolidoj{ed Financial Sfofemenjls
Re | &M

General Information

Hopson Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are mainly engaged in the
development of residential properties in Mainland China. The Group
is also involved in property investment, hotel operations and
property management.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 29th March 2018.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the two years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of investment properties, available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which
are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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MELAR(SBIAEE]) TERPEK
EREEENERRE AKET2EYE
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£ 27 - H M= & i ik A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda °
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Nofes to Hle Consoliclo]led Financial Sjro]lemenfs (coniinued)
RS B Rk MY R (8

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

In 2017, the Group has applied the followings amendments to
HKFRS issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are relevant to the Group and
are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2017.

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

The Group has assessed the impact of the adoption of
amendments and considered that there was no significant impact
on the Group’s results and financial position.

New standards and amendments to existing standards
and interpretation that are not yet effective

FESTHHREME @)

21 REE%Em)

R-F—tF AKERAATHELS
AN ((BEGRMAS)RM N
E—tF-A-BHZ2EABNSFH
FAER VEAKEEBENETEMBEHRS
R ZHEFT -

BB ER] WEE
F75 (EFTA)

BB SR HABRBAER
F125 (IBFTA) EEFIAE E

AEEEFGERAZFEIIZFE  BER
AR N B 2 A N R RO AR
BEARE-

EARERZHENRHRBER ZE
DS

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

on or after
RUTBEBRZEHS
WEHEEN
HKAS 28 (Amendment) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1st January 2019
EHR G ERE285 (BRI 1) REERARAERFAZRE —Z-hhHF—H—H
HKAS 28 (Amendment) Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 1st January 2019
EE G ERE285 (B ) N2 A RaERRZREER —Z-hHF—H—H
HKAS 40 (Amendment) Transfers of Investment Property 1st January 2018
BB G ERE405 (BT A) HERREWHE —ET-N\F—HA—H
HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and Measurement of Share-based 1st January 2018
Payment Transactions
ERUBmERME2H(EFTER) ROXNXIZHDEMGE —ET-N\F—HA—H
HKFRS 4 (Amendments) Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 1st January 2018
Insurance Contracts
BBV HmELREIREFTAR) BHEBMBRELNFEIRRR —_E-N\F—A—H
EREREAVBRELENFIREHMIA
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1st January 2018
BB BREEREIH SRITA —E-N\F—-A—H
HKFRS 9 (Amendment) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 1st January 2019
EEVBREEAEIFRUEFTER) REEFREFNEREHME —ET-NhF—-A—H

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

BRI BREERE105 R
EE G ERE285 (B )

HKFRS 15

BB BREERE 155

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
Its Associate or Joint Venture

To be determined

BEEREBERNTRAEE QT ZHEH BEEE
BEHEIEA

Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1st January 2018

KEBPEH W —ZEZ-N\FE—-—H—H
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Hojfes to Hle Consolicla]led Financial Sjra]lemenfs (coniinued)
RS B R 3k M R (a0

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

New standards and amendments to existing standards
and interpretation that are not yet effective (Continued)

FESTHTHREME @)

21 B E%Em)
mAREMZIHERRE B G ELE 2 1&
HP&E3-16-)

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after
RUT BES 2 &M%
WEHEER
HKFRS 16 Leases 1st January 2019
BRI B HREERIZE 165 HE —E-NAF—A—H
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1st January 2021
BB MELRFEITHR Ria i —E-—%—A—H
Annual Improvements to Improvements to HKFRSs 1st January 2019
2015-2017 Cycle
T -RFET—LFEH HEBY B RELER 2 U —E-NF—-A—H
2 F B HUE
HK (IFRIC) 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance 1st January 2018
Consideration
EEEREEHRERELZES HINER B RIANKE —E-N\F—HA—H
225
HK (IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1st January 2019
EEERMBHREREZES) FriS i I8 2 i E 1 —E-NF—-HA—H

235k

Certain new standards, amendments to existing standards and
interpretations, which are effective after 1st January 2018, have
been published and will be adopted by the Group from their
effective dates. The Group is currently assessing the potential
impact of these standards and amendments but expects their
adoption will not have a significant effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements except as set out below.

R-F-—NE-A-—BRERZEDH
ER -HAEBEAUZETRRELE R
o NREBBNER B ERAMERKERK
MAERHER  BIREERZEFT R
B ASE B EFEZEERRERH
BEZE BRPRAZFIENRERK
TEHAKREZGAMBRREXNEKX
T HATEER -

SEARKEEERAR T LFEER
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Nofes to Hle Consoliclofecl Financiol Sjrofemenfs (coniinued)
RS B Rk MY R (8

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Nature of change

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, introduces
new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for

financial assets.

Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities and is
expecting the following impact from the adoption of the new
standard on 1st January 2018. HKFRS 9 introduces a new
classification and measurement approach for financial assets that
reflects the business model in which assets are managed and their
cash flow characteristics. HKFRS 9 contains three principal
classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”). The new financial
instruments standard eliminates the existing HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement categories of held to

maturity, loans and receivables and available-for-sale (“AFS”).

Certain financial assets that are currently classified as loans and
receivables and measured at amortised cost will be classified and
measured as FVOCI or as FVPL under the new standard and
certain financial assets that are currently classified as AFS equity
securities will be classified and measured as FVPL under the new
standard. Other than these changes, the Group does not expect
the new guidance to result in any significant change on the

classification and measurement of its financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or
loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been transferred from HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and have not been

changed.

The new hedge accounting rules will align the accounting for
hedging instruments more closely with the Group’s risk
management practices. As a general rule, more hedge relationships
might be eligible for hedge accounting, as the standard introduces
a more principles-based approach. While the Group does not
involve any hedging accounting, it does not expect a significant

impact on the accounting for its hedging relationships.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Nofes to Hle Consoliclojfecl Financial Sjrojfemenfs (coniinued)
ARE B IS R AR MY R ()

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Impact (Continued)

The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment
provisions based on expected credit losses rather than only
incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS 39. It applies to
financial assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial guarantee contracts.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are expected to
change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about its
financial instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of the
new standard.

Date of adoption by Group

Must be applied for financial years commencing on or after 1st
January 2018. The Group will apply the new rules retrospectively
from 1st January 2018, with the practical expedients permitted
under the standard. Comparatives for 2017 will not be restated.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for
goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction
contracts and the related literature. The new standard is based on
the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good or
service transfers to a customer. The standard permits either a fulll
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

FESTHTHREME @)

21 WMEEE @)
ERBMBHELNFOREMTA @)
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MRERLSEARBERER MR
BT EAFRBETNENDELEER
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—tEFZHBRBEBEETITET -

BERMBHREERFIGRERETFS
2 W

EEGMASEEMBARR 2 E
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Nofes to Hle Consoliclollecl Financiol Sjrollemenfs (coniinued)
RS B Rk MY R (8

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Impact

Management has assessed the effects of applying the new
standard on the Group’s financial statements and has identified the
following areas that will be affected:

o Revenue from pre-sales of properties under development is
recognised when or as the control of the asset is transferred
to the customer. Depending on the terms of the contract and
laws that apply to the contract, control of the properties
under development may transfer over time or at a point in
time.

° The timing of revenue recognition for sale of completed
properties, which is currently based on whether significant
risk and reward of ownership of properties transfer, will be
recognised at a point of time when the control transferred to
the customer under the control transfer model.

° The Group currently offers different payment schemes to
customers, the transaction price and the amount of revenue
for the sale of property will be adjusted when significant
financing component exists in that contract.

o The Group provides different incentives to customers when
they sign a property sale contract. Certain incentives (e.g.
free gift and property management service) represent
separate performance obligations in a contract. Part of the
consideration of the contract will be allocated to those
performance obligations and recognised as revenue only
when performance obligation is satisfied. The amount of
revenue for the sale of property will also be reduced for any
cash payment to customer which does not represent fair
value of good or service provided by the customer.

o Certain costs incurred for obtaining a pre-sale property
contract (e.g. sale commission), which is currently expensed
off in profit or loss directly, will be eligible for capitalisation
under HKFRS 15 and match with revenue recognition pattern
of related contract in the future.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Nojfes to Hle Consoliclojfecl Financial Sjrojfemenfs (coniinued)
ARE B IS R AR MY R ()

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Date of adoption by Group

The Group intends to adopt the standard on all uncompleted
contracts as at 1st January 2018 using the modified retrospective
approach which means that the cumulative impact of the adoption
will be recognised in retained earnings as of 1st January 2018 and
that comparatives will not be restated.

The Group is estimating the overall impact of the above on the
Group’s retained earnings on 1st January 2018.

HKFRS 16, Leases
Nature of change

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet, as the distinction between operating
and finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the
right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low-value
leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s
operating leases. As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of HK$56 million. The
Group estimates those relate to payments for short-term and low
value leases which will be recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss are insignificant.

However, the Group has not yet assessed what other adjustments,
if any, are necessary for example because of the change in the
definition of the lease term and the different treatment of variable
lease payments and of extension and termination options. It is
therefore not yet possible to estimate the amount of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities that will have to be recognised on
adoption of the new standard and how this may affect the Group’s
profit or loss and classification of cash flows going forward.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)
Date of adoption by Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1st January
2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date. The Group intends to apply the
simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

There are no other HKFRSs that are not yet effective that would be
expected to have a material impact on the Group.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to
31st December 2017.

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

FESTHHREME @)

21 REE%Em)
BRI ERE 1655 E (&)
REE K4 B

ZEARR —E-NF-—A—-—BHHHER
RGO M B F E R bl 5k - BERARH
EENEME B RAZER - KK B #
FERBEERE X TEEERRAE
BILLBEF -

BmAEMMREXBEFEREEAEERE
REARFEZEBMIGHREER -

22 ##EKRHE

REMBERREBEARRIREMEHE
ARABE-Z—tFT-A=+t—BL
B B R e

@ KEQH

MBARNDASERAENENAAE
B(ERGEBLER) HAKEZEEXE
REE2EBREMESZAEZEE  BAKE
NEBEBERBZRNAZEZSOH A
AEBEZEHZER -HEBARBZEHES
BEASHEEREGAEAR -MEBEARA
ZHERIEEREEFE LS AR

AEBENMABEEGEL GO AR - B
MERARMEENHERBEAKSE MG
THWEE FMEEMNBERMABETHRA
Bam R FENE FEBENEERRN
BHERHMEEANEMNEEREEN
NFE -BEHEEKNAEELRHE &
EBAMHTBEENER N EENL N
AEENRERSIEEE BANRERE
BEHMO R FEE - pEMKRBELE
AEEAEAFEXIZFEERSRE
ERBE T FEENLD  BRRKET
B FE R M S



Nofes to Hle Consoliclofecl Financiol Sfofemenfs (coniinued)
ARE B IS R AR MY R ()

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(@ Subsidiaries (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions-that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in the
associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Annual Report 2017
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(d) Joint arrangements

The Group applies HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under
HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements. Joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method. The assets that the Group
controls and liabilities that the Group incurs in relation to the joint
operations are recognised in the consolidated balance sheets on
an accrual basis and classified according to the nature of the item.
The expenses that the Group incurs and its share of revenue that it
earns from the joint operations are included in the consolidated
income statement.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in
the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-makers.
The Executive Directors, who are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
have been identified as the chief operating decision-makers who
make strategic and operational decisions.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured in Renminbi, which is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company and its
subsidiaries operate (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is

the presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

(¢) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each consolidated income
statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at

the dates of the transactions); and

@iy all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity

and translated at the closing rate.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the equity holders of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

2.5 Properties and equipment

Properties and equipment other than construction-in-progress are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the period in which they are
incurred.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.5 Properties and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of properties and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values over

their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Hotel properties (superstructure) 28 to 30 years

Buildings Shorter of useful life of
50 years or lease term

Furniture and office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 3to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Construction-in-progress is investments in buildings on which
construction work has not been completed and which, upon
completion, management intends to hold for providing goods or
services in the ordinary course of business. These properties are
carried at cost which includes construction expenditures, borrowing
costs directly attributable to construction of such properties and
other direct costs, less any impairment losses. On completion, the
properties are transferred to the appropriate categories of
properties and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. No depreciation is provided for construction-in-progress

until they are completed and put into commercial use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the

consolidated income statement.

2.6 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property. Investment property also includes
property that is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases
and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating
leases are classified and accounted for as investment property
when the rest of the definition of investment property is met. The

operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including

related transaction costs and borrowing costs.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.6 Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Valuation processes and techniques are described in Note 8.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.
The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, including finance lease
liabilities in respect of land classified as investment property; others,
including contingent rent payments, are not recognised in the
financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values of investment property are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as properties and equipment, and its fair value at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of properties and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in other comprehensive income and taken directly to
equity as a valuation of properties and equipment under HKAS 16.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss,
the gain is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Where a property for sale undergoes a change in use, evidenced
by commencement of an operating lease to another party, the
property is transferred to investment property.

Where an investment property undergoes a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of development with a view to sale,
the property is transferred to inventories. A property’s deemed cost
for subsequent accounting as inventories is its fair value at the date
of change in use.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.7 Properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale

Properties under development for sale and completed properties
for sale are included in current assets at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

The costs of properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale consist of land costs, construction expenditures,
borrowing costs capitalised and other direct costs. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business as determined by management with reference to the
prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected to be

incurred to completion and selling and marketing costs.

2.8 Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair

value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash generating
units (“CGUSs”), or groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating

segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately

as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, which are at least tested annually for impairment and
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for

possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: (a)
at fair value through profit or loss, (b) loans and receivable, and (c)
available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines

the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

2.10.1 Classification

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current asset if
expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are

classified as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the balance sheet date, which are classified

as non-current assets.

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12

months of the balance sheet date.
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(Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the assets. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are presented in
the consolidated income statement within “other income/gains,
net”, in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of “other income/gains,

net” when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are

included in the consolidated income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale debt securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of “other income/gains, net”. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of “other income/gains, net”

when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group established fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing
models, making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little

as possible on entity-specific inputs.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets in impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator that the
securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated income

statement.

Impairment testing of accounts receivable is described in Note 2.11.

2.11 Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
accounts receivable is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of receivable. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with

original maturities of three months or less.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share
capital, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled.

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial
asset or financial liability, including fees and commissions paid to
agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

2.15 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges in
respect of finance lease and exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs. The exchange gains and losses
that are an adjustment to interest costs include the interest rate
differential between borrowing costs that would be incurred if the
entity had borrowed funds in its functional currency, and the
borrowing costs actually incurred on foreign currency borrowings.
Such amounts are estimated based on forward currency rates at
the inception of the borrowings.

Annual Report 2017
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.15 Borrowing costs (Continued)

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes more than one
accounting period, the amount of foreign exchange differences
eligible for capitalisation is determined for each annual period and
are limited to the difference between the hypothetical interest
amount for the aforesaid functional currency borrowings and the
actual interest incurred for foreign currency borrowings. Foreign
exchange differences that did not meet the criteria for capitalisation
in previous years are included in other (losses)/gains, net and are
not capitalised in subsequent years.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, shall be recognised in profit or loss.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current tax and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.17 Employee benefits

Group companies operate defined contribution plans only. The
Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory or contractual basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Annual Report 2017
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sales of properties and services rendered in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is recognised as
follows:

(@) Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of the properties are transferred to the buyers,
which is when the construction of the relevant properties have been
completed, notification of delivery of properties have been issued to
the buyers and collectability of related receivables pursuant to the
sale agreements is reasonably assured.

Deposits and instalments received on properties sold prior to
transfer of the significant risks and rewards of the properties are
included as deferred revenue under current liabilities.

(b) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the relevant leases.

() Property management fees

Property management fees are recognised when the services are
rendered.

(d) Hotel operations

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised upon provision of
services.

(e) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

() Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
with it and that the grant will be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs they are intended to compensate. Grants
relating to the purchase of properties and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets. Amounts received for which
the earning process has not been completed are accounted for as
deferred revenue.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(g0 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is

established.

2.20 Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating

leases.

(@) The Group is the lessee other than operating lease of

land use rights

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income

statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

(b) The Group is the lessee under operating lease of land

use rights

The Group made upfront payments to obtain operating leases of

land use rights for property development.

For land use rights to be developed for investment properties which
are measured at fair values, the upfront payments are included in
the cost of investment properties and accounted for as finance

lease (Note 2.6).

For land use rights to be developed for hotel properties and self-
use buildings, the upfront payments are separately recorded as
assets and amortised over the periods of the land use rights on a
straight-line basis. During the period of time that is required to
develop the properties for their intended use, the land amortisation
is capitalised as the cost of construction-in-progress. During other
periods, the land amortisation is charged to the consolidated

income statement.

For land use rights to be developed for properties for sale, the
upfront payments are included as properties under development for

sale or completed properties for sale.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

2.21 Insurance contracts

The Group regards its financial guarantee contracts in respect of
mortgage facilities provided to certain property purchasers and
guarantees provided to its joint ventures and subsidiaries as

insurance contracts.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the liabilities under
its insurance contracts using current estimates of future cash flows.
Changes in carrying amount of these insurance liabilities are

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the

Company’s shareholders.

3 Financial Risk Management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow and fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management policy
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effect on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group regularly monitors its exposure and
currently considers not necessary to hedge any of these financial

risks.

(@) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risks as defined by HKFRS 7 arise on account of
monetary assets and liabilities being denominated in a currency
that is not the functional currency; differences resulting from the
translation of financial statements into the Group’s presentation

currency are not taken into consideration.

Majority of the Group’s subsidiaries operate in Mainland China, with
most of the transactions denominated in Renminbi. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure of
Renminbi against US dollar, Hong Kong dollar and Euro. It has not

hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

In addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of the foreign exchange control

promulgated by the Mainland China government.
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3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31st December 2017, if Renminbi had weakened/strengthened
by one percentage-point against US dollar with all other variables
held constant (assuming no capitalization of exchange difference),
post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$0.9 million higher/
lower (2016: HK$0.5 million higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of US dollar

denominated bank deposits and borrowings.

At 31st December 2017, if Renminbi had weakened/strengthened
by one percentage-point against HK dollar with all other variables
held constant (assuming no capitalisation of exchange difference),
post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$17.8 million lower
/higher (2016: HK$9.8 million higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of HK dollar

denominated bank deposits and borrowings.

At 31st December 2017, if Renminbi had weakened/strengthened
by one percentage-point against Euro with all other variables held
constant (assuming no capitalisation of exchange difference), post-
tax profit for the year would have been HK$0.1 million higher/lower
(2016: HK$10.1 million lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of Euro denominated bank

deposits and borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to deposits with
banks and financial institutions and credit exposures to customers.
The Group has credit policies in place and exposures to these

credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group manages its deposits with banks and financial
institutions by monitoring credit ratings. At 31st December 2017,
deposits with banks amounted to HK$5,801 million (2016:
HK$6,313 million) were placed with a number of international/
national/provincial/municipal financial institutions with sound credit

ratings.

In respect of credit exposures to customers, the Group normally
receives deposits or progress payments from sales of residential
properties prior to completion of the sales transactions, and bills

customers in advance for property management service.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of
property units and has provided guarantees to secure the
purchasers’ obligations for repayments. If a purchaser defaults on
the payment of its mortgage during the term of the guarantee, the
bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount under the loan and any accrued interest
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to retain the
property sales proceeds received from the customers and sell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the bank. In
this regard, the Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is minimal.

The Group monitors the exposure to credit risk in respect of
amounts due from joint ventures through jointly controlling their
financial and operating policy decisions and reviewing their financial
positions on a regular basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset (other than equity securities included
in available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss) in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance, and guarantees provided to third parties.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from accounts
receivable is set out in Note 17.

(¢) Liquidity risk

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and closely
monitors its current and expected liquidity requirements to maintain
its rolling cash flow at a level which is considered adequate by the
Group to finance the Group’s operations and to maintain sufficient
cash to meet its business development requirements.

Management has periodically prepared cash flow projections and
the Group has a number of alternative plans to offset the potential
impact on the Group’s business development and current
operation, should there be circumstances that the anticipated cash
flow may be affected by any unexpected changes in global/
Mainland China economic conditions. The Company’s directors
consider that the Group will be able to maintain sufficient financial
resources to meet its needs.
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3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HXEREREREM®m
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 Bt E kR E @
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) ) RBESEMRE)

TRBETRERABEINRARNE D 2 AEHE
MBRE REAZEEAZANIHAL
RARRETON RAMBEEZERR
BHMERBRBASRE -

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities by relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity dates. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over
1year and2years and 5 years 5 years
1F R 1Z82F 2855 HiB5F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FA T T T T T FAT
At 31st December 2017 RZ=-ZT—+tf
+=—A=+—H
Borrowings (including EEE®EHE)
interests) 14,666,877 16,245,325 24,549,538 6,455,407
Accounts payable and JERTBR R - JEETZRIA
accruals and other K E B A 5B
payables (Note) (H17t) 11,600,759 — — —
Land cost payable & <+ £+ 3 Bk AR 5,327 92,830 — —
Due to an associate EN—MEBE T2
FIE 6,603 — — —
Due to related companies  JE{IBE A a] 2 18 223,907 - - -
Due to joint ventures ENELE AT ZHIE 3,208,176 - - -
Due to non-controlling JEATFEFEHIMEAERS 2
interests IE - - - 539,409
29,711,649 16,338,155 24,549,538 6,994,816
At 31st December 2016 HRZ=-ZT—XKfF
+=ZA=+—H
Borrowings (including BEEERENE)
interests) 11,928,792 14,131,601 11,423,505 9,618,513
Accounts payable and FENBER - FEEtFNIA
accruals and other K E b FE 1 5B
payables (Note) (B &) 8,695,625 — - -
Land cost payable JE 15 £ Hh AR AN 44,104 86,827 — —
Due to an associate FE — MBS QA2
A 6,170 - - -
Due to related companies & <t B8 & A 7] 2 K IE 476,471 — — —
Due to joint ventures JERTEZNE 2B 3,253,214 — — —
Due to non-controlling JEfIEIEHI MR 2
interests I — — — 504,071
24,404,376 14,218,428 11,423,505 10,122,584

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Note: Excluding other taxes payable.

Annual Report 2017
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3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table above excludes guarantees given to banks for mortgage
facilities granted to certain buyers of the Group’s properties (see
Notes 3.1(b) and 36) as management considers the likely

crystallisation of the guarantees to be as minimal.

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from interest bearing bank
deposits/balances, borrowings and advances from/to joint
ventures. Bank deposits/balances and borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its cash flow and fair

value interest-rate risk.

At 31st December 2017, if interest rates had increased/decreased
by one percentage-point and all other variables were held constant,
the net finance income (after taking into account the interest
expenses capitalised in the properties under development,
investment properties and construction-in-progress) would
increase/decrease the Group’s post-tax profit by approximately

HK$35 million (2016: HK$44 million).

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for equity owners and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce

the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity owners, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital based on gearing ratio. Gearing ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total equity as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings, as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less pledged/charged

bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
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3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The gearing ratios at 31st December 2017 and 2016 were as

KR EERE @

3.2 E2EKRERE @)
RZEBE—+tFR_F—RNE+ A=+

follows: —HAZERBELERET

2017 2016

—ZE—+tF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Total borrowings wIEE 53,189,787 44,752,223
Less: pledged/charged bank deposits and B BRI R RITERRL

cash and cash equivalents HEeERBREEEY (5,802,832) (6,314,948)

Net debt BEFH 47,386,955 38,437,275

Total equity T T B RE 66,237,658 56,405,066

Gearing ratio ERBEHLE 72% 68%

The increase in the gearing ratio was mainly attributable to the
increase in borrowings that finance property constructions.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that

are observable for the asset or liabilities, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

o Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31st December 2017. See Note 8 for
disclosure relating to the investment properties which are measured
at fair value.

KR EEE @
33 AFEMGE @

TREIR-_F—tF+=-A=+—H
BAVEFMEZAKEMBEE - AR

ATEE B MR A% B E RN TS -

Level 1 Level 3 Total
R FE3IR ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FE T &L

Financial assets at fair value EAFEBBREZRESE
through profit or loss K EE 174,493 359 174,852
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEEBEE — 4,259,343 4,259,343
174,493 4,259,702 4,434,195

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31st December 2016. See Note 8 for
disclosure relating to the investment properties which are measured
at fair value.

TREBIWR=-_ZE—R"FE+_A=+—-H
BEATEAEZAEETEEE - 8B

ATEHEHRENENHRE LN s

Level 1 Level 3 Total
R E3M 5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T &

Financial assets at fair value EAFEBBEZRESE
through profit or loss 2B EE 83,249 335 83,684
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEERBKEE — 3,406,109 3,406,109
83,249 3,406,444 3,489,693

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in Level 1. Instruments included in Level 1 comprise
primarily equity investments in Mainland China and Hong Kong
classified as trading securities.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. There was no
instrument included in Level 2 at 31st December 2016 and 2017.
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3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. Instruments
included in Level 3 represent unlisted equity securities, which are
primarily classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

Fair values of available-for-sale financial assets were derived using
the income approach. Under the income approach, the net present
value of the forecast dividend is estimated by applying an
appropriate discount rate which reflects the risk profile of the
investments. The Directors considered that the income approach
reflects the long-term investment purpose of the available-for-sale
financial assets, and the stage of development of the investees’
businesses.

The following unobservable inputs were used to determine the fair
value of the available-for-sale financial assets.

KR EERE @

33 AF¥EMLE @

fidd — M8 3k % B & K g A BUR I IE R IR AT

gﬁﬁﬁ%%{fﬁ” BT ARG ARS
° St A 3R ZIEIE#"EPFM

uﬂ%ﬁaﬁ‘%éﬁ%ZithﬂxKﬁ

Tfﬁﬂj%ﬁﬁﬂ‘%’éﬁﬁzﬂifﬁﬂuﬂki\%

B REBEAE RARENFERETD
5&@%%&@%&%11[5 BB R R
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15 B 3 R B B

KT AR BREBETRANEEAIHRLE
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Fair value at 31st December
Rt=A=+-B2A¥HE

Relationship of unobservable

2017 2016 Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
3 TR FUEREE FTIEREEEE FABRBERATENRR
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Equity securities R 435 3% Dividend growth rate for the year 2018 to  10%-42% (2016:14%-31%) The higher the growth rate,
2022 (2016: 2017 to 2021) the higher the fair value.
3,578,733 2997048 ZE-N\FEZZ_FHRE 10%-42% (ZF — X F : 14%-31%) BREYE ATEMR-
BRR(ZE—AF _E—+F
E-F--F)
Terminal growth rate 3% p.a. (2016: 3% p.a.) The higher the growth rate,
the higher the fair value.
REERE FEN(ZT—AF: §FI%) BEEME RTEER-
Discount rate 11% p.a. (2016: 11% p.a.) The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value.
BHRE BEN%(ZE—R"F:FFN%) BREHS ATEME-
Lack of marketability discount 16% (2016: 16%) The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value.
mERBIR R % 16% (ZZF — 1 F : 16%) BREME ATEYE-
Debt securities &% Dividend yield 5.5%-10% (2016: 5.5%) The higher the dividend yield,
the higher the fair value.
680,610 429061 HREMEE 55%-10% (ZZ—~F : 55%) REWZESS ATEES -
Discount rate 5.5% (2016:5.5%) The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value.
BRE 55%(ZF—7% :55%) BREHS  ATEME-
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of accounts
receivable, accounts payable, balances with related parties,
amounts due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries and land cost
payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments or based on the current bid price in the market.

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
relating to future events which are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(@) Estimated fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is individually determined
at each reporting date by independent external valuers based on a
market value assessment. Fair values of completed investment
properties are derived using the income capitalisation method, and
fair value of investment properties under development are derived
using the residual method. The valuations are dependent on certain
key assumptions that require significant judgement, including
capitalisation rates and prevailing market rents. The valuations of
investment properties under development are also dependent upon
the estimated costs to completion and estimated developer’s profit.
Details of the valuation techniques and key assumptions used in
the valuation of the investment properties which are measured at
fair value are set out in Note 8.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(b) Recoverability of prepayments for acquisition of land

Prepayments for acquisition of land represent advances made for
the acquisitions of land use rights, for which the land use right
certificates have not yet been obtained. Management assesses the
likelihood of obtaining the related land use rights by reference to
the latest discussions with the relevant government authorities and
other relevant parties. Management also takes into consideration
opinions from independent legal counsels on the legality of the land
transfer contracts and undertakings provided by related parties, if
any. The Group assesses the recoverability of the land parcels by
comparing their respective carrying amounts to the estimated
market value of the land. Provision is made when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. The assessment requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Details of prepayments for acquisition of land are
set out in Notes 16(i), 38(e) and 38(f).

(c) Recoverability of properties under development for
sale and completed properties for sale

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties under
development and completed properties for sale based on their net
realisable value, taking into account estimated costs to completion
based on past experience and estimated net sales value based on
prevailing and expected market conditions. Provision is made when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be realised. The assessment requires the use of
judgement and estimates.

(d) Recoverability of properties and equipment

Properties and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
properties and equipment have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations, taking into account latest market information
and past experience. These calculation require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(e) Estimated fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select the income
approach and evaluates, among other factors, the duration and
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost;
and the financial health and business outlook for the investee. The
key assumptions adopted on the valuation methodologies as set
out in Note 3.3 are based on management’s best estimates.

()  Current taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
Judgement is required in determining the amount of the provision
for taxation and the timing of payment of the related taxation. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which
such determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred taxation assets and taxation
in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in Mainland China.
However, the implementation and settlement of these taxes varies
among various tax jurisdictions in provinces/cities of Mainland
China, and the Group has not finalised most of its land appreciation
taxes clearance and payments with the local tax authorities in
Mainland China. Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation and its related
taxes. The Group recognises its obligation to land appreciation
taxes based on management’s best estimates according to the tax
rules. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
taxation and tax provisions in the periods in which such taxes have
been finalised with local tax authorities.

EESTHER H E @
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Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

4.2 Critical accounting judgements
(@) Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from the sale of properties in
the ordinary course of business, as disclosed in Note 2.19. The
assessment of when an entity has transferred the significant risks
and rewards of ownership to buyers requires the examination of the
circumstances of the transaction. In most cases, the transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership coincides with the date when the
equitable interest in the property vests with the buyer upon
handover of the respective property to the buyer.

As disclosed in Note 36, the Group provides guarantees in respect
of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating to the
mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties. These guarantees will expire when the relevant property
ownership certificates are lodged with the various banks. In order
to obtain mortgages, the purchasers would have settled certain
percentage of the total contract amount in accordance with the
related PRC regulations upon delivery of the properties. The
Directors are of the opinion that such settlements provide sufficient
evidence of the purchasers’ commitment to honour their
contractual obligations of the bank loans. In addition, based on
past experiences, there were no significant defaults of mortgage
facilities by the purchasers resulting in execution of the bank
guarantees. Accordingly, the Directors believe that significant risks
and rewards associated with ownership of the properties have
been transferred to the purchasers.

(b) Financial implication of regulations of idle land

Under the PRC laws and regulations, if a property developer fails to
develop land according to the terms of a land grant contract,
including the designated use of the land and the time of
commencement and completion of the property development, the
Mainland China government may regard the land as idle and issue
a warning or impose a penalty on the developer or reclaim the land.
The Group has certain tracts of land for which development has not
commenced according to the specified terms of the respective land
grant contracts. Judgement is required in assessing whether these
tracts of land will be subject to the penalty of idle land or may be
reclaimed by the Government and thereby resulting in any adverse
financial impact to the Group. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates the extent of development of the whole tracts of land,
status of negotiation with the government authorities as to the
extension of time of commencement or revision of development
plans.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

EESTHER A EH @

4.2 EEGEHE
(@ WARER

AN FE2APTRE - AKRE D ERKA
R—REBFHPHEMEO RS - HRER
MESEEENENRRMORER =
BERBHRHAAETEE - AZEHBM
T HEMEINTERZE FMEER
fRMEHRNEREEEEYROE TR
nEBRERNKEE K-

HM A B EASBERBEALE
BYEETERLRFRBERLHET
RITRHNZBRMERHKER - EHED
EMARERTERTR ZFEREE
- REFEBEESE  SRFERE
BEREVMERGZA FEXNERAES
BO—ELh -EEZRR ZENARE
FETROTEFNANEERHRTRD
EE-BE REEELR BEXLES
RIBBEREREMN  ABETRITER
BN Al EFZRA VDEMEAENE
AREREOFEHREBLEER -

b) RELHER UK EE

RIBEHBOAGI ROAR - MR BEREARE
RETHEBREO 2 GRERL 81
THEEAZUARMEZER BT RET
TRFPR - R B R FE B A BE 48 30 7% A
B WAZERAELESHBURE X
WE i REBAET LI BIRRE
B2 RS OEEMRFETER -
SEEFLZXFLIHE T EGREE it
Z 12 B 2 B R W [B] i A R AE R A A B
55 B A HI B o 15 e 2B A
AEBBFGEIHBERBZEREE UK
BLIERIETRRAIEFTERR S EBF
WRAETTIER 2R »



Nofes to Hle Consoliclofecl Financiol Sfofemenfs (coniinued)
fRE B R R Y ()

5 Segment Information 5 oIFEHR
Executive Directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”) are AAFRHATES((HITES]) BES
regarded as the chief operating decision makers of the Group. The REB Z EEZEEREE HNITEFEM
Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in order to AREBAHT RS UWFHEXRBELSEE
assess performance and allocate resources. Management has R-EEEERBERETREECEED
determined the operating segments based on these reports. i
The Executive Directors consider the business from both business HTESetmnELRMEAEEZ B X
and geographic perspectives. Reportable business segments o OB 2R 2MEBD IR IR Y 2
identified are property development, property investment, hotel B -MEKRE BELENYWESE -
operations and property management. Geographically, the WIBFTEMS  AIEREBSDE—FE
reportable business segments are further segregated into three DAEA-ZEETEME NEEBEEM -
main geographical areas, namely Southern China (SC) (including BN AL EESR) E(BEILER X
Guangzhou, Huizhou, Zhongshan and Hong Kong), Northern China EoRE ABRLKFEE)NER(BE L
(NC) (including Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian, Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao) MBI EmR - RERKE) o

and Eastern China (EC) (including Shanghai, Hangzhou, Kunshan,
Ningbo, Cixi and Taicang).

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating HITEERBEINEETHLSELHZ
segments based on the segment results. Corporate income/ KB RRIWA/FAX - BB A RK
expenses, finance income and costs, dividend income and gain on N FRBEWARRERATES BIEZRY
disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are R BEERSWET ARITEEA
not included in the results for each operating segment that is BRIz BRSEDEES -

reviewed by the Executive Directors.

Segment assets consist of all operating assets and exclude PHEERTEMAKEEE BT
available-for-sale financial assets, which are managed on a central EHREEBEAAHEENKEENNEL
basis, and deferred tax assets. MIBEE °

Sales between segments are carried out on terms similar to those DEEHEE NIRERNFERZSHIERELR
that prevail in arm’s length transactions. The revenue from external EFET e MATEE 2R ZINR B IL
parties reported to the Executive Directors is measured in a manner HEAWER B Z2AHAFE -

consistent with that in the consolidated income statement.

Revenues comprise turnover which included gross proceeds from WEAEHEHERSHNIBAZE  YEEE
sales of properties, property management income, income from WA BEEERARES W AHAR -

hotel operations and rental income.

2017 2016

ZB—tF —EARF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Sales of properties Y HE 11,125,122 14,142,282

Property management income PEE B A 936,085 843,197

Income from hotel operations NipER S C N N 408,269 247,192
Rental income e WA

— Investment properties — KBEWE 1,127,631 837,407

— Others — Hi 226,839 185,619

13,823,946 16,255,697
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 o9IPER @
The segment results by business lines and by geographical areas B2 - +H&F+-_A=+—"HBHILFE
for the year ended 31st December 2017 are as follows: BREBRMWEE D 2D EEBEWT -
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NERR NERE BEEE NEER
SC EC NC SC EC NC SC EC NC
25 E3 #it 25 E3 #it 25 E3 #it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx FEz TEx FTExT TEx TEx FExz  TE=x TER TiER
Year ended HE-Z-t%
31st December 2017 +-ZA=+-8
fl:3:4
Total revenues Bl 7,862,483 2,451,317 2,752,975 271,458 581,008 316,542 49,693 231,698 139,589 997,153 15,653,916
Intra/inter-segment AER/ B
revenues (1,019,522)  (68,160) (627,132)  (31,510) - (9,867) (142 - (12,569) (61,068) (1,829,970)
Revenues Wis 6,842,961 2,383,157 2,125,843 239,948 581,008 306,675 49,551 231,698 127,020 936,085 13,823,946
Segment results NHEE 2,533,006 (128,250) 431,207 388,321 1,143,404 4,143,965 2242 62313 (125,394) 109,327 8,560,141
Depreciation nE (10,195  (1,872) (18,089)  (1,728) (629) @17)  (7,937)  (21,459) (108,472) (8792  (174,584)
Amortisation B - - - = = — (17518 (24408)  (10,358) - (5228
Provision for impairment i U 5 7Rl (B ¢
of accounts receivable - - - - - - - - - (14,694) (14,694)
Fair value gain on BENMEL
investment properties NEEKE - - — 251,380 786,013 3,965,842 - - - — 5,003,235
Share of profit of XY UNGIb:
associates 582 - 1,826 - - - - - - - 2,408
Share of profit/loss) of ~ AEARAFEF|/
joint ventures (E#8) 47,999 - (26,069) - - 64,771 - - - - 86,701
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 oHER @
The segment results by business lines and by geographical areas 2R E—REt+_/BA=+—"HItFE
for the year ended 31st December 2016 are as follows: REBRMRE D 2D EEELT
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NEER NERE BERE NEER £H
SC EC NC SC EC NC SC EC NC

e R 514 e R £ e R £
HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKE'000 HKE'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

TEx T Tz TExT TExT TEx TEx TAR  TERL TEL TR

Year ended HE-Z—1~%F

31st December 2016 +ZA=+-H

33

Total revenues Blha 5,639,278 2,893,302 6,988921 211,707 375945 269,234 61,443 75,629 112,526 856,650 17,483,635
Intravinter-segment HEN/ B

revenues 822,607 — (370993  (12,988) — B49Y) (290) - 1 (12,453 (1,227,938)
Revenues Wis 4816671 2893302 6,617,928 198,719 375945 262,743 61,153 75629 110,410 843,197 16,265,697
Segment results DEBEE 1,646,716 (4979 1,030,264 902,090 1,294,398 885412 5942 (62,011) (161,179 68,508 5,615,161
Depreciation WE (10669 (1,998  (19,899) 733 (11911) (58 (16425 (1,74 (109,845) 255 (176,064)
Amortisation Hi - - - - - - (17,799)  (24,386)  (10,538) - (52,723)
Reversal of impairment ~ JEWER SURIE 2

of accounts receivable [o] - - - - - - - - - 9,875 9,875
Fair value gain on REWMEZ

investment properties AEEKE - - — 807,968 1,120,870 675,253 - - - — 2,604,091
Share of profit of Rl NGl

associates 1,065 — 580 - - - - - - - 1,645
Share of profit/(loss) of ~ H{EALDFEF/

joint ventures (BB 72,352 — 8153 14623 ) - - - 143844
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5 Segment Information (Continued)

RZE—LtHE+_A=+—HEEKBK
WEIA D ZDREEMT

The segment assets by business lines and by geographical areas
as at 31st December 2017 are as follows:

Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NERE NERE BEEE NEEE £8
SC EC NC SC EC NC SC EC NC
E3:] ER 317 3 R E-SI . 1 2R 517
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tdr TEr TEx TEz TFEx TEx TEx TEx TEx ThR TER
As at and for the RZB-t&
year ended +=A
31st December =+-8R
2017 BEZA
LEE 35,753,844 16,090,939 45,230,696 8,193,164 16,298,681 21,156,817 963,704 1,493,637 2,552,612 1,079,798 148,813,892

Segment assets include: 5 HEERHE :
Investments in REERTZ

associates ZE 4,008 — 149,098 - - - - - - - 153,106
Investments in joint REEDNRZ
ventures RE 4,894,529 - 1,093,126 77,024 - 1,970,378 - - - - 8,085,057
Additions to non-current RE R EE
assets (other than (TeEte
financial instruments TIAREI
and deferred tax HEEE)
assets) 85,158 53,075 11,397 580,449 106,591 3,437,481 678 20,983 25350 7,948 4,329,110

RZE-—ARETA=+—HEEKBK
WEIADZDREEMT

The segment assets by business lines and by geographical areas
as at 31st December 2016 are as follows:

Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NERR MERE BEEE NEER £B
SC EC NC SC EC NC SC EC NC
Ef E3 ES1 %@ E3Y #  #EF E3Y Z]
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKE000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr  TEr  TEr TEAx TEx TRz TExT TEx  ThEn THT THET
As at and for the RZZE—RF
year ended +-A
31st December =t-Bk
2016 #zzA
HFE 33,098,277 15,955,949 40,651,380 6,910,155 14,331,943 12,435,616 931,257 1,417,191 2,453,204 906,335 129,091,307
Segment assets include: HHEEBIE
Investments in REZNF]
associates ZHE 3,185 - 137,562 - - - - - - - 140,747
Investments in joint REERA
ventures ZHE 4,628,883 — 1,046,728 70,549 — 1,778,645 — - - - 7,424,805
Additions to non-current A E R EE
assets (other than (TREDR
financial instruments T B BT
and deferred tax REEE)
assets) 2,118 4172 8,896 73,724 417,126 418,348 144 67,939 6,545 4,670 1,003,682
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 oHER @
Reconciliation of reportable segment profit from operations to profit ] 2 35 2P 2 & 2w A B B B AT A
before taxation is as follows: BRI
2017 2016
—E—tHF A=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Reportable segment profit from operations A 2R 2P A8 & m 8,560,141 5,615,161
Unallocated corporate expenses RKOBEARIRAX
(including exchange loss), net (BIEEREE)  F8 (6,880) (63,411)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair EEERATEEBERIIEKZ
value through profit or loss B 1% & E W 6,874 -
Dividend income % B A 146,993 129,600
Finance income B R A 43,918 79,439
Finance costs BF 7 P AR (5,242) (132,484)
Profit before taxation B B¢ A g A 8,745,804 5,628,305

Reconciliation of reportable segment assets to total assets is as
follows:

AERDACEELRBEELRNOT

2017 2016

—E—+F ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH& T T&T

Total segment assets DEHEELE 148,813,892 129,091,307
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ERBEE 4,259,343 3,406,109
Deferred tax assets EIEFRITBE E 740,160 495,525
Total assets wEE 153,813,395 132,992,941

The Group primarily operates in Mainland China. All revenues for
the years ended 31st December 2017 and 2016 are from Mainland
China.

As at 31st December 2017 and 2016, all non-current assets are
located in Mainland China.

AREEERTEARGEEY - HE -
P2 tFR-F-AF+-A=T-A
IR IR R S B AR -

RZE—tEtFR_E-—RFT+_A=+
—H A RBDEEHMN B KE -

BEAREEERAA

T tFFR
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e MBHRRME @
6 Land Costs 6 THRA
Land costs represent prepaid operating lease payments for hotel T AEBEERERAEFT ZEN
properties and buildings which are held for self-use. RS E NIE o
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET FAT
At 1st January R—H—H 1,776,499 1,976,377
Transfer to properties under development EESTHEEZERERYE
for sale (238) (21,217)
Amortisation 3y (52,284) (52,723)
Exchange difference IE i =% 122,697 (125,938)
At 31st December R+-_A=+—H 1,846,674 1,776,499
Land costs primarily represent land use rights of between 10 and THA AR FEEMRFPE AN F105F
50 years located in Mainland China. ZE50F R £ M A RE o
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7 Properties and Equipment 7 WERZRE
Furniture
Construction- Hotel and office Motor
in-progress  properties Buildings  equipment vehicles Total
e 895
EERIRE TBEYE BF BAZERE AE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET FAET TAET TAET
Year ended 31st December BE-_Z—+t#&
2017 +=A=+—-8
LFE
Opening net book amount BERFE 232,444 2,616,983 500,365 122,055 14,488 3,486,335
Additions iz 5,851 45,765 138,148 12,994 3,152 205,910
Transfer to properties under BRERETHEEZ
development for sale ERBYME (6,080) - - - - (6,080)
Depreciation e —  (120,574) (18,471) (31,547) (3,992  (174,584)
Disposals & - (235) (5,494) (2,368) (227) (8,324)
Exchange difference BENEE 16,326 157,260 39,078 7,872 978 221,514
Closing net book amount HEREEFE 248,541 2,699,199 653,626 109,006 14,399 3,724,771
At 31st December 2017 R-E—+EF
+=ZRB=+—H
Cost B AR 248,541 3,691,767 789,444 505,267 75,067 5,310,086
Less: Accumulated depreciation 5 : Z &t 47 & - (992,568)  (135,818)  (396,261) (60,668) (1,585,315)
Net book amount REFE 248,541 2,699,199 653,626 109,006 14,399 3,724,771
Year ended 31st December BZE-E-XE
2016 +=ZA=+—H
LFEE
Opening net book amount HEEFE 857,133 2,225,236 714,768 144,242 16,671 3,958,050
Additions iz 69,081 3,377 2,283 27,193 3,357 105,291
Transfer to properties under HREEAHHEY
development for sale BEDYE — — (156,410) — — (156,410)
Depreciation e — (110223 (20,460) (40,985) (4,396)  (176,064)
Transfer upon completion ERRCY 5 (658,107) 657,169 — 938 - -
Disposals & - - - 612) (123) (735)
Exchange difference B3R ERE (35,663)  (158,576) (39,816) (8,721) (1,021)  (243,797)
Closing net book amount MK EmFEE 282,444 2,616,983 500,365 122,055 14,488 3,486,335
At 31st December 2016 RZE—XE
+=ZB=+—H
Cost DN 232,444 3,427,902 609,374 470,001 68,784 4,808,595
Less: Accumulated depreciation 5 : EH47 & — (8109190  (109,009)  (348,036) (54,296)  (1,322,260)
Net book amount FEFE 232,444 2,616,983 500,365 122,055 14,488 3,486,335

Construction-in-progress mainly represents buildings and hotel
properties, which are intended to be held for the long-term.

ERTRIBEITEREFEZETR
BIEWE -
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8 Investment Properties 8 REWHE
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAT
Completed investment properties BIEKIE Y 34,707,205 24,598,943
Investment properties under development BRI EME 8,264,048 6,701,993
42,971,253 31,300,936
Properties
Completed under
properties development
(Level 3) (Level 3) Total
EERYE BRPYE
(ZE34) (E34) #ct
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
TET FA T FAET
At 1st January 2017 R-ZE—tF—H—H 24,598,943 6,701,993 31,300,936
Additions (including capitalisation of 71 (8 #& & A F &)
interest) 144,696 857,996 1,002,692
Acquisition of a subsidiary Uy B8 — R B B 2 A
(Note 35(b)) (M1 #%35(b)) 544,595 - 544,595
Transfer from completed properties #E# g r]tHE 2 2
for sale SRR 2,604,595 - 2,604,595
Fair value gain on investment KEME R T EWER
properties 4,805,996 197,239 5,003,235
Exchange difference & H Z 5 2,008,380 506,820 2,515,200
At 31st December 2017 R_E—+F
+=-A=+—H 34,707,205 8,264,048 42,971,253
At 1st January 2016 R-ZE—RF—H—H 10,717,611 18,218,386 28,935,997
Additions (including capitalisation of ¥11% (8 1% & &L 7| 5)
interest) 510,384 946,466 1,456,850
Transfer from completed properties ## @ At HE > &
for sale BB 276,670 - 276,670
Transfer upon completion EE -y 12,662,702 (12,662,702) —
Fair value gain on investment KEMERNFERZE
properties 2,078,517 525,574 2,604,091
Exchange difference & H Z5E (1,646,941) (325,731) (1,972,672)
At 31st December 2016 NZE—RE
—A=+— 24,598,943 6,701,993 31,300,936

Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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Investment Properties (Continued)

Valuation processes

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31st December
2017 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent qualified
valuers, who hold a recognised relevant professional qualification
and have recent experience in the locations and segments of the
investment properties valued.

The Group’s finance department reviews the valuations performed
by the independent valuers for financial reporting purposes and
discuss with the valuers regarding the valuation processes and
results. The finance department also verifies all major inputs to the
independent valuation report and assesses property valuation
movements when compared to prior year valuation report.

Valuation techniques

Fair values of completed investment properties are generally
derived using the income capitalisation method. This valuation
method is based on the capitalisation of the net income and
reversionary income potential by adopting appropriate capitalisation
rates, which are derived from analysis of sale transactions and
valuers’ interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or
expectations. The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation
have reference to recent lettings within the subject properties and
other comparable properties.

Fair values of investment properties under development are
generally derived using the residual method. This valuation method
is essentially a means of valuing the land by reference to its
development potential by deducting development costs together
with developer’s profit and risk from the estimated capital value of
the proposed development assuming the properties were
completed as at the date of valuation. The estimated capital value
of the proposed development is derived using the income
capitalisation method as mentioned above.

During the year, there were no changes to the valuation techniques.

BREYE @)

HERRE

AEENRENER _T—LF+ A
=St BHRBUAERMGEMBERT
BRARMGE %EEARKEHERR
BEXER UHMHRENREDENILE
MBI AT R -

AEBMEP BRI B RE B AFR S
BUEMETHGE TRZFHE
Bt ERAE R RETT - MBI
NEBBLAEREZEHMEEZHAK
B YR EFFHRERSELREFEY
EHEZS -

B 7%

EERREVENRFE-—RUEAE
AOER/H o WA ETT AT ER BIBEA
EENEREL R BIRAFERRA R
EBNTAERNE  MEAELRTIEB
HHEEXHRAEMOMERFREEN
ERFHMEMGH - EREFRANERT
MEHEDIREZFVEREMAILR
YRR MAKBEREE -

BERTPREMENRFE —RAFSBRE
BH WEEREZEIERUAZE L
RENDMBHETHENTE  TARK
RERBERB(BRVECESRABERERK)
MEFERETHBRERR AN RER
BONERER - HERBENGEFERN
BEEBER ELARWAER LT EFTE -
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8 Investment Properties (Continued) 8

Significant unobservable inputs used to determine

BEWE @)
BEEAFEMANEERATER

fair value H &
Fair value
AYE
Relationship of
31st December  31st December ~ Valuation Unobservable unobservable inputs to
Description 2017 2016 technique inputs Range of unobservable inputs  fair value
“E-tF ZB-RE FABRHBEATE
BR TZA=t-B tZA=t-H #ELE TABRYE TABRYEEE HWE%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT
Office units 10,976,181 9,230,752 Income Prevailing market RMB40-260/sg.m./month The higher the prevailing
(completed) capitalisation rents (2016: RMB100-230/sq.m./ market rents, the higher
month) the fair value.
PREEM(BER) WAERIE BfrmisEe BAGTAAARBOLE RBiimpEeHs OF
2007 (ZE—"%:§A EHE-
BYRRARBI0TE
2307T)
Capitalisation rate 3.8%-6.5% p.a. The higher the capitalisation
(2016: 5.5%-6.5% p.a.) rate, the lower the fair
value.
BAfLE BE3NE65%(ZE—RF: EXLLEEE ATE
§F55%%£6.5%) B -
Shopping malls 23,731,024 15,368,191 Income Prevailing market RMB90-640/sg.m./month The higher the prevailing
(completed) capitalisation rents (2016: RMB80-600/sg.m./ market rents, the higher
month) the fair value.
Boms (BEK) WAERIE Brmsie BABTAKAEBOTE ROmBHESHEE AT

180 Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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Capitalisation rate

BERe®

BAOTL(ZF—RF: BAF
F7 K AR B0 E6007T)

5.5%-6.5%. p.a.
(2016: 5.5%-6.5%. p.a.)

BHEE5%E65%(=F — R F
EE55%%F6.5%)

EHlE-

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair
value.

EXfbhxds AVE
B -



Hojfes to J[he Consolicla]led Financial Sjra]lemenfs (coniinued)
e BRRWME@®

8

Investment Properties (Continued)

Significant unobservable inputs used to determine

fair value (Continued)

BEWE @)

EEAFEMANEERTEE
2 (@)

Fair value
AFHE
Relationship of
31st December ~ 31st December  Valuation Unobservable unobservable inputs to fair
Description 2017 2016 technique inputs Range of unobservable inputs  value
3 ZE-RE TUBRUBRATEN
R TZA=t-B t=H=t-HB fERE TIBRYE FTIBRUBEE A&
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER
Office units (under 7,256,763 5,871,371 Residual Prevailing market rents  RMB90-100/sg.m./month (2016:  The higher the prevailing
development) RMB90-100/sq.m./month) market rents, the higher
the fair value.
HAZEM (BER) e RimisEs SAGTARARBOTEI0 BOmEEsHs AF
T(Z2-~"E:BABTH EHR-

Capitalisation rate

BAfiE

Estimated costs to
completion

fEE T IR A

Estimated developer's
profit and risk margins
(depending on the
progress of
development)

BERAENMEGNBER
AR(BIERER
i)

KARBIOILEI0T)

6.5% p.a. (2016: 6.5% p.a) The higher the capitalisation

rate, the lower the fair

value.
BECSN(ZF—AE: ERfeRgE 2 TE
§565%) WA -
RMB4,100-4,200/sg.m. (2016: The higher the estimated

RMB4,100-4,200/5q.m.) costs to completion, the
lower the fair value.
BEFKARELI00TEL200 it RIRARR  AF
T(ZB-—RF: EHE -
BEARARE4100LE
4,2007)
0%-15% (2016: 5%-20%) The higher the estimated
developer's profit and

risk margins, the lower
the fair value.

BRENGANERER
A5 ATEME-

0%-15% (B — R E:
5%-20%)

SEARKEEERAR T LFEER
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Nofes to ﬂle Consoliclo]led Financial Sfo]‘emenfs (coniinued)

4R E B 3% 3R 3R MY R (|

8 Investment Properties (Continued)

Significant unobservable inputs used to determine

BEWE @)

BEAFEFRANEEZETATBE

fair value (Continued) 2 E @
Fair value
ATHE
Relationship of
31st December ~ 31st December ~ Valuation Unobservable unobservable inputs to fair
Description 2017 2016 technique inputs Range of unobservable inputs  value
ZB-tF —B-RE TUBRYBRATEN
R +ZB=+-B tZB=t+-H fiE5% TIBRYE FTIBRUBEE A&
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAT
Shopping malls (under 1,007,285 830,622 Residual Prevailing market rents ~ RMB80-140/sg.m./month (2016:  The higher the prevailing
development) RMB80-140/sq.m./month) market rents, the higher
the fair value.
EyERICED) He BiimsEs FRAEFRFRARBOLEM0 BimBHeHR AF

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017

Capitalisation rate

BAfi X

Estimated costs to
completion

fEE T IR A

Estimated developer’s
profit and risk margins
(depending on the
progress of
development)

BERAENEGNBER
AR(BIERER
i)

T(ZB-RE §AGTH

KARBL0TLE40T)

7% p.a. (2016: 7%p.a.)

BEIR(ZB—NE:

FE%)

RMB4,100-4,200/sq.m. (2016:
RMB4,100-4,200/s0.m.)

FFRKARK41007TE4,200

T(ZE-R"E:

BFAKARK4I00TE

4,2007T)

0%-15% (2016: 5%-20%)

0%-15% (T — R & :
5%-20%)

B8 -

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair
value.

BR RS ATE
AR -

The higher the estimated
costs to completion, the
lower the fair value.

CHERN N RN
EHE -

The higher the estimated
developer's profit and
risk margins, the lower
the fair value.

BRENGANERER
A5 ATEME-



Hojfes to J[he Consolicla]led Financial Sjra]lemenfs (coniinued)

4R a B 3% 3R 3R MY R |

9 Properties Under Development for Sale

9 HWHEHEZBREPUWR

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Expected to be completed and available for 78 81 # A+ — 18 A W% T K ]
sale within twelve months e 7,915,495 10,763,465
Expected to be completed and available for ~ FEER ¥R BB+ —E B %R T
sale after more than twelve months KAt HE 34,196,766 33,998,382
42,112,261 44,761,847
10 Goodwill 10 &
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
At 1st January mw—H—8H 31,818 39,912
Impairment VERES (459) (5,510)
Exchange difference Ve ZRE 2,193 (2,584)
At 31st December Rt+—A=+—H 33,552 31,818
Cost B X 66,335 48,643
Less: Accumulated impairment B BFRE (32,783) (16,825)
Net book amount W HE 33,552 31,818
Goodwill mainly relates to the property management segment. EEFEHEYEETES LG -
CEAREEERAT —E—tFFR
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Nofes to Hle Consoliclo]led Financial Sjro]lemenfs (coniinued)
RS B Rk MY R (8

11 Investments in Associates 11 RBERRAZRE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAT
Share of net assets DIEFEE 153,106 140,747
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Share of profit for the year and total DIEEERAMEFEEZEHRA
comprehensive income for the year R 2,408 1,645

Details of the associates, which are unlisted, as at 31st December
2017 are set out in Note 41. Details of capital commitment relating
to the Group’s interests in associates are set out in Note 37(a).

R-B—+5+=A=+—-AZBEL
A (R 3 48 L 7) BB WA 3241 - BBA
£ B B 4 2RI 2E 0 R AR IR 2 A
H5IB M 87 (a) -

12 Investments in Joint Ventures 12 REERQTIZRE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FA&TT
Share of net assets DIEFEREE 7,270,338 6,710,185
Advance to joint ventures BHTEERA 764,719 714,620
8,035,057 7,424,805

Set out below are the summarised financial information for Beijing
Dongfangwenhua International Properties Company Limited
(“BJDFWH”) and Guangzhou Diyi Dyeing Factory Company Limited
(“GDDFCL”), which in the opinion of the Directors, are material joint
ventures of the Group. The Group holds 60.98% of the issued
share capital of BIDFWH, which owns a piece of land for property
development in Dongcheng District, Beijing, Mainland China (known
as the “DFWH Project”).The Group holds 65% of the issued share
capital of GDDFCL, which owns a piece of land for property
development in Haizhu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
Mainland China.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

TXHINEERRBAKEEBEZNA
ERALRRAIXERREXZFER QA
([HERRAXE]D) REMNE —REBE R
RE(TEIMNS —RER]) 0B E BB
- AKRERKAERRTXEEETRAN
#60.98% © it IR 77 X E R B K
EtRERPEEE —BLHENERRZ
BERIRAXERRB] AEEFEARE
MEE — BB E FEITRAMN65% @ M EIM
FREBRTBEKRKERREEME R
BHE - BLIMIEMEERZA -



Hojfes to Hle Consolicla’[ed Financial Sjrajremenfs (coniinued)

4R a B 3% 3R 3R MY R |
12 Investments in Joint Ventures (Continued) 12 REERTIZERE @)
Summarised balance sheets R RERBE
BJDFWH GDDFCL
tERAFXE BN E — 28K
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF =—ZEZ—RF ZE—tHF =Z—ZZT—XF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T FE T F&T
Assets EE
Non-current assets ERBEE 5,401,051 4,958,908 229 260
Current assets MENEE 3,243,859 3,115,096 7,369,775 6,830,747
Total assets BE®RE 8,644,910 8,074,004 7,370,004 6,831,007
Liabilities 88
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (3,356,274) (3,323,434) - —
Current liabilities nEBE (943,092) (802,332) (18,785) (27,136)
Total liabilities BEERE (4,299,366) (4,125,766) (18,785) (27,136)
Net assets EEE 4,345,544 3,948,238 7,351,219 6,803,871

The DFWH Project owned by BJDFWH consists of two office
buildings and a musical hall. The Group is entitled to 100% interest
of the office building (South), 45% interest of the office building (North)
and none of the interest of the musical hall in the property

development project.

IR RINEMBEEZRANEEBR
ERRETER—AS%E - NEaEE#
DREMEERBENSTE(E)Z
100% = kB T (L) 245%# &= -

BRESIGEEBEE -

BEAREEERAA

T tFFR

18

185



186

Nofes to Hle Consoliclo]led Financial Sjro]lemenfs (coniinued)
RS B Rk MY R (8

12 Investments in Joint Ventures (Continued)

12 REE QA Z2’RE @)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to 23N HBERNBMEBEEHENS Z A A
the carrying amounts of their interests in the joint ventures are as MESEMEZEHENT
follows:
BJDFWH GDDFCL
BMEE—
TRRAXE 28R
Office Office
Building Building Musical
(South) (North) Hall Total Total
EXE(R) EFE£G) EHE #Et st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FTAT FTAT FHET THAT
Year ended 31st BE-Z—t#&
December 2017 +=-ZHA=+—-HLt
FE
Net assets at 1st January R —ZT—+F

2017 —A—HZFEE 813,780 3,163,687 (29,229) 3,948,238 6,803,871
Post-acquisition results Y B& 1% ¥4 (26,069) 143,938 (1,430) 116,439 67,990
Exchange difference P Z%R 56,136 226,830 (2,098) 280,868 479,358
Net assets at 31st RZTE—+F

December 2017 +—A=+—H2

REE 843,847 3,534,455 (32,757) 4,345,545 7,351,219

100% 45% 0% 65%
Shared by the Group REBE DL 843,847 1,590,505 - 2,434,352 4,778,292
Other costs/differences  E fh B A /=58 - (20,912 — (20,912) (4,736)
Investments in joint ventures A& & A & 2 1% A& 843,847 1,569,593 — 2,413,440 4,773,556
Year ended 31st BE-_Z—x#F
December 2016 +=ZBA=+—-HLt

FE
Net assets at 1st January R =—Z — /<&

2016 —R—HZFEE 877,314 3,228,532 (29,007) 4,076,839 7,149,514
Post-acquisition results Ut i 1% 2 45 (8,153) 144,491 2,128) 134,210 111,310
Exchange difference B (55,381) (209,336) 1,906 (262,811) (456,953)
Net assets at 31st RZE—XRF

December 2016 +-—A=+—H2

FEE 813,780 3,163,687 (29,229 3,948,238 6,803,871

100% 45% 0% 65%

Shared by the Group KEE DG 813,780 1,423,659 — 2,237,439 4,422 516
Other costs/differences  H A pk & /= %8 — (19,541) — (19,541) (4,438)
Investments in joint ventures A& & A Al Z K E 813,780 1,404,118 - 2,217,898 4,418,078

Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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Hojfes to Hle Consolicla’[ed Financial Sjrajremenfs (coniinued)

AR A B IS R R MY R ()
12 Investments in Joint Ventures (Continued) 12 REERAIZKRE @)
Summarised statements of comprehensive income 2HKERBE
BJDFWH GDDFCL
I RERAE &N 55 — S 48
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF —E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
THET TAT FET FAT
Revenues U % 287,255 290,532 — —
Fair value gain on WEMENFEKE
investment properties 91,307 66,963 - —
Profit before taxation b %5 A1 183,359 193,560 90,719 147,326
Taxation I8 (66,919) (59,350) (22,729) (36,016)
Profit for the year and total FE &AM FEE2E
comprehensive income LN -
for the year 116,440 134,210 67,990 111,310
Share by the Group of profit £ B &5 & [Z % ) &
for the year and total FEZEKRABE
comprehensive income
for the year 38,703 56,868 44,193 72,352

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the joint ventures, adjusted for differences in
accounting policies between the Group and the joint ventures.

The Group has one remaining immaterial joint venture and the
Group’s share of result of the joint venture for the year ended 31st
December 2016 and 2017 is as follows:

EREMRBREINNGERE 2T B R
KNEHE YERAEEERZAZRAN
SRR ERFEHAR-

REBERE HTERNSLERA M
KEIB’\%Zi_; /\EEEZ—T “ZE
TZA=+T—BILEFESEZEERA
EBMT

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHE T
Share of profit for the year and total SMEFRE RN RFEEZEBA
comprehensive income for the year k) 3,805 14,624

Details of the joint ventures as at 31st December 2017 are set out
in Note 42.

R-E—+F+_A=+—HZEER
R BRI MI 5E42 o

SEARKEEERAR T LFEER



Nofes to Hle Consoliclo]led Financial Sjro]lemenfs (coniinued)
RE M BERRWME@®

13 Available-For-Sale Financial Assets

13 AIHHEMBEE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T T&T
At 1st January m—H—H 3,406,109 3,129,699
Additions g 222,991 443,113
Fair value gain recognised in other REMEERAPERZ
comprehensive income (Note 26) N EWE (K FE26) 378,207 47,336
Exchange difference fE R =% 252,036 (214,039)
At 31st December Rt+—A=+—H 4,259,343 3,406,109
Non-current assets: EMENVEE ¢
Unlisted securities: FELETES
— Equity securities, Mainland China —RAEBSH - REARRE 3,578,733 2,977,048
— Debt securities, Mainland China —EBES PEAE 460,610 429,061
Current assets: B E E
— Debt securities, Hong Kong —EBEE BB 220,000 -
At 31st December w+—-_A=+—H 4,259,343 3,406,109

Available-for-sale financial assets include 3.57% and 4.32% equity
interests in two financial institutions in Mainland China. All
investments are denominated in Renminbi.

Al S B RSE EEE MR B KRS
R EBI57% MA32%Z IR AR - T A
WEHAARESE -

14 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit 14 Z AT EEBIERFIR 2T K
BE

or Loss
2017 2016
—E —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA& T
Listed securities: EWES:
— Equity securities, Hong Kong, at quoted ~ — JRZARE %5 - B - RA®
market value e 174,493 83,249
Unlisted securities: ELEMHES
— Equity securities, Mainland China —BARES P BRREE 359 335
174,852 83,584

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit BATEEBERIIEZHEEEZA
or loss are recorded in other gains, net, in the consolidated income TEEH N AGASWSI R 2 E 4k
statement (Note 27). @ FRER (K EE27) ©
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15 Loan Receivables

15 BEWER

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Non-current (i SEMENEB () 1,536,051 -
Current (i) it &) 56 9 (i) 299,075 -
1,835,126 —

(i) The balance includes an amount of approximately HK$1,452
million (2016: nil) which bears interest at 13.2% per annum
and will mature in 2 years from the date of provision of the
loan. The loan is secured by various parcels of land and
properties in Huizhou, Guangdong Province, Mainland China.

The balance also includes an amount of approximately
HK$84 million (2016: nil) which is unsecured, bears interest at
14.4% per annum and will mature in 2 years from the date of
provision of the loan.

(i)  The balance represents a loan to a non-controlling interest of
a subsidiary of the Group. The loan bears interest at 12% per
annum, repayable upon sale of properties by the subsidiary,
and is secured by various properties in Hebei Province,
Mainland China.

All balances are dominated in Renminbi. The carrying amounts of
the balances approximate their fair values. There is no provision for
impairment of the loan receivables.

(i)

ERBIEN1452BERBT(ZE —
NET)MNRIE - BB RIEIRE A
K132EB B BRIZEEERE A
RBET A EI AR o BERBAMI A R B K
B FE B A BN % 08 4 b R W 3 1ER

NECB)NFA ARRALEE
BOREFE144EFE - THERER
HEREHESARFRE -

R R A S E — F KB QR I
HEREHROER ERIBF N E
12EFE RHUBARHEMER
BiE YNURFPBERENIEEZ
LEZE S (L

EHMERIIUARESE BEHRERER
HAFERSE - SERERERELRE
i e

SEARKEEERAR T LFEER
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Nofes to Hle Consoliclo]led Financial Sjro]lemenfs (coniinued)

AR A B IS R R MY R ()

16 Prepayments for Acquisition of Land, 16 W T HFE[ARE  ERXRIRE
Prepayments for Construction Work and CHEANREREAMSNRE £
Prepayments, Deposits and Other Current FEMREEE
Assets

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHE T
Non-current ERE
Prepayments for acquisition of land (j) U B8 + 3 FB A~ ZRIE () 127,264 118,927
Prepayments for construction work (i) R TR 2 AN A — 28,682
Current B
Prepayments for acquisition of land (j) W B + 1 FB < ZRIE () 10,079,270 9,058,323
Other receivables (i) H At 18 R IE (i) 641,207 201,998
Deposits for acquisition of equity interest (iv) 4 8 P& N #E 25 2 12 & (v) 616,980 17,550
Guarantee deposits ERIZE 70,582 65,958
Prepayments for construction work BRIRZBEMNRE 235,956 186,443
Land tender deposits THREERS 23,926 293,792
Prepaid sales taxes B HEMN 344,773 503,668
Utility and other deposits NARBEREMRS 933,889 693,612
Others Hh 1,011,691 786,479
Prepayments, deposits and other current AN FRIE - Re R EMRE
assets BE 3,879,004 2,749,500

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Prepayments for acquisition of land for owner-occupied
properties are classified as non-current, whereas the
prepayments for acquisition of land for development for sale
are classified as current.

Prepayments for acquisition of land represent advances
made for the acquisitions of land use rights in Beijing,
Shanghai, Guangzhou and Tianjin, Mainland China. Formal
land use right certificates have not yet been obtained as at
31st December 2017.

The balance includes an amount of approximately HK$4,486
milion (2016: HK$4,192 million) for the land situated in
Chaoyang District, Beijing, Mainland China in connection with
the Group’s acquisition of 80% equity interest in Believe Best
Investments Limited, which, through its wholly owned
subsidiary, possesses the right to develop the Jing Run
Project on the land (Note 38(f)).

The balance also includes an amount of approximately
HK$4,069 million (2016: HK$3,802 million) for the land
situated in Panyu District, Guangdong, Mainland China in
connection with the Group’s acquisition of 100% equity
interest in Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited, which
possesses the right to develop the land (see also Note 38(e)).

Annual Report 2017

RERYMERBLIMENRES R
AIEMB) - A IER A HE I
BLHENRBRSESRED -

WiE i 2 EARBBERRFEKR
Edem - B - BMERRXZRE L
WEREMELEZBR - R _F—
tFT-_A=+—H BWARRFLE
AT RHERE

EHeRuRPBEARELREBEEGE
2R 44,486 B BB T(ZF — X
F4192B BB L)  Z M Ty E AR
EEMBBEEERERR AR Z80%
ERER MxAREBHEE2ER
BRralBEasERHHEB R #
I (K 5E38(F)) °

ERRAENBREMRPEAEER
EBE 2 L4000BE BT (=
T—NF:3802HEBTT) Kbk
DEASERBEBKIEHES
FRARF Z100% AR > A A
BEREZ T 2ABE(IBELH
B 3E38(e)) °



Nofes to Hle Consoliclojfecl Financial Sjrojfemenfs (coniinued)
ARE B IS R AR MY R ()

16

17

Prepayments for Acquisition of Land,
Prepayments for Construction Work and
Prepayments, Deposits and Other Current
Assets (Continued)

(i)  Prepayments for construction work relate to construction
work to be performed by Farrich Investments Limited, a
related company, on a piece of land situated in Tongzhou
District, Beijing, Mainland China (Note 38(g)).

(i)  Other receivables relate to the Group’s participation in land
development projects in Beijing and Huizhou, Guangdong
Province, Mainland China with returns based on a pre-
determined percentage of funds invested by the Group. Other
receivables are denominated in Renminbi. Their carrying
amounts approximate fair values.

(iv)  This represents deposits made to independent third parties
for the acquisition of equity interests in entities whose
principal activities are property holding and development. The
acquisitions are not yet completed as at 31st December
2017.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable mainly arise from sales of properties, and
property management services. No credit terms were granted.

Accounts receivable is related to a number of independent
customers, and denominated in Renminbi. The carrying value of
accounts receivable approximates their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of
accounts receivable mentioned above.

As at 31st December 2017, accounts receivable of
HK$630,653,000 (2016: HK$542,974,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers.

16

17

WELtHFEARE BRIE
ZEANRERBEASRE &S
FEMREHEE @

i KE-—FEAELAFAEEREERA
Al — M8 Az 7 R B K B A 5B M &
I EPETHRRIEEREMNE
& T2 A A (P FE38(g)) °

(i) EMEURBEANEER2EREKX
EiERMEREBMEBDR(REAR
SEMRABRSEAEI B DL
BI2tHBEREAR LHEK
RENARKE RHEEQF
EEE -

vy WNEAKBER(HEZXHEAY
ERBERFAR) cEEMABILE =
TEHZRE R _T—LF+=
A=+—8 BWEHEKRTK-

F& Ux B =X

ERERETZEDEHERMEETER
BEL - BERTEMNEERK -

EUEREZZBYEFPABLUAR
BitE BUER 2 REEREEL QN FER

++

Eo

AEBEMERZEREERR R XA
e W R 2 BRE(E -

RZE—+E+=-_A=+—8"FElK
8k 630,653,000 ;L( = T — /N F:
542,974,000/ 0) BB HAIE R BE - 25
RBEHRZZBIRF AR -

SEARKEEERAR T LFEER
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Nofes to Hle Consoliclo]led Financial Sjro]lemenfs (coniinued)

e MBHRRME @
17 Accounts Receivable (Continued) 17 EWERR @)
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (excluding those HERKEX(TBIERESE) ZRED
impaired) is as follows: T :
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
0 to 3 months 0Z31A A 374,540 291,302
3 to 6 months 3&=61E A 38,552 29,686
6 to 9 months 691 A 26,467 24,326
9 to 12 months 9z 12M@ A 23,705 20,717
Over 12 months fEiB121E A 167,389 176,943
630,653 542,974
As at 31st December 2017, accounts receivable of HK$ RZE—t+tF+_A=+—"H" EEW
131,620,000 (2016: HK$108,785,000) were past due for over 12 BE 20131,620,000 T( = & — X % :
months and were fully provided for impairment. These related to a 108,785,000/ 7o) B @ Bi iR i + — & A I
number of independent customers. EEHERBERE LERBEELEZE L
XEFEB@ -
Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts receivable FEWETCREREZEH M -
are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tHF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
At 1st January R—H—H 108,785 126,210
Provision for/(reversal of) recognised in HBAWRERANER BE
the consolidated income statement (al %) 14,694 (9,875)
Exchange difference & H =58 8,141 (7,550)
At 31st December Rt+—A=+—H 131,620 108,785
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18 Pledged/Charged Bank Deposits and Cash 18 BEEH WHREBRITERURR

and Cash Equivalents

EREEEEY

2017 2016

—B—tF —EARF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FTHET FABTT

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFBERS 5,802,782 6,314,898
Short-term bank deposits SECETESREE N 50 50
5,802,832 6,314,948

Less: pledged/charged bank deposits o B R RITER (405,842) (261,215)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRHESZEY 5,396,990 6,053,733

As at 31st December 2017, the Group’s pledged/charged bank
deposits mainly represented deposits charged by certain banks in
relation to the granting of banking facilities and the processing of
mortgage facilities granted by the banks to buyers of the Group’s
properties.

As required by the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau,
certain property development companies of the Group are required
to place in designated bank accounts certain amount of pre-sale
proceeds of properties to finance the construction of the related
properties. Such restricted bank deposits represent normal
operating fund and are presented as part of cash and cash
equivalents. As at 31st December 2017, cash and cash equivalents
include pre-sale proceeds of HK$1,250,502,000 (2016:
HK$897,813,000) placed in designated bank accounts.

Pledged/charged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in the following currencies:

RZZE—tF+ZRA=+—H XxEEHZ
BEEA MERTEFREERARBERT
HTRT UBRHRTEERRTEIE
BHRAEEYNEERE TREBEER -

BETFRELIERBATE  A5BETY
¥BERAAFARMETRITIFOGFTAME
TEEMSMNIDRIE  (EREZHEEYE
MNEL - BREXRHITRAE—REEE
& WIEABREMREEEMZHBH
K- RZTE—tF+=-A=+—H #H2
rReEEYMRREERIETRITFAN
T8 & BT 15 %18 1,250,502,0008 7L (= & —
7N4F : 897,813,000/ 7T) °

EEM HLRITERARBRERBEESE
EBWI AT E D E

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTET FAT

Renminbi AR 5,472,564 5,308,535
Hong Kong dollar BT 224,582 945,603
US dollar ETT 92,000 45,311
Euro BT 13,676 15,485
Others H At 10 14
5,802,832 6,314,948

SEARKEEERAR T LFEER
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19 Land Cost Payable

19 BN TR A

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Land cost payable JE 1<t + 3 BR 7K 98,157 130,931

Less: Amount due within one year included in 7, : st ARBIBE AN —F K

current liabilities BEZ&8 (5,327) (44,104)
92,830 86,827

Land cost payable is denominated in Renminbi. Their carrying
amounts approximate fair values.

20 Accounts Payable

Ageing analysis of accounts payable (including amounts due to
related companies of trading in nature) is as follows:

N LR AAARESE  REEAR
FEMRE -

20 EERF

ENERZEEIT(ERENTEER
ABRXSUHEZERIOMNT

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH& T FA&T

0 to 3 months 0ZE31@ A 3,084,449 382,073
3 to 6 months 3%&61EA 38,683 192,173
6 to 9 months 6ZE 91 A 403 277,598
9 to 12 months 9F 1218 A 10,705 333,951
Over 12 months Bim1218 A 4,746,775 4,529,269
7,881,015 5,715,064

As at 31st December 2017, approximately HK$603,393,000 (2016:
HK$585,989,000) of accounts payable were due to certain related
companies in respect of property construction.

Accounts payable are denominated in Renminbi. The carrying value
of accounts payable approximates their fair values.
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21 Borrowings

B&

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—XRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T

Non-current ERE
Bank and financial institution borrowings BT BHERE 35,810,619 29,183,000
Corporate bonds (Note (a)) NalfEH (Mt @) - 3,449,758
Asset-backed securities (Note (b)) BEXEHEES (K itwp) 1,816,195 2,581,087
37,626,814 35,213,845

Current &

Bank and financial institution borrowings BITRBHEERE 11,537,211 8,810,163
Corporate bonds (Note (a)) NEfEH (Mt @E@) 3,698,135 —
Asset-backed securities (Note (b)) BEXHES (WD) 327,627 728,215
15,562,973 9,538,378
53,189,787 44,752,223

Notes:

In June 2016, the Group issued 4.95% corporate bonds with an
aggregate nominal value of RMBS3,100,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,708,533,000) (the “Bonds”). The Bonds will mature
in June 2019 and are repayable at their nominal value of
RMB3,100,000,000. The Group has the right to adjust the coupon rate
and the investors are entitled at its option to sell back the Bonds to the
Group at the end of the second year from the date of issue, subject to the
terms and conditions specified in the offering circular.

In March 2016, the Group issued asset-backed securities with an
aggregate nominal value of RMB2,107,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,520,606,000) (the “Securities”). The Securities will
mature in 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 and are repayable at
their nominal value of RMB2,107,000,000. Subject to the terms and
conditions specified in the offering circular, the Group has the right to
redeem all of the Securities which mature in 2020, 2021 and 2022 (“the
Redeemable Securities”) at the end of the third year from the date of
issue, the investors are also entitled to sell back the Redeemable
Securities to the Group on the same date.

In October 2016, the Group issued asset-backed securities with an
aggregate nominal value of RMB880,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,052,745,000) (the “Securities”). The Securities will mature in 2017
and 2018 and are repayable at their nominal value of RMB880,000,000.
In May 2017, the Group redeemed all the Securities at the principal
amount of RMB880,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,052,745,000) according to the mechanism specified in the offering
circular, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. The
redemption amount was equal to its nominal value. The unamortised
borrowing costs totalling HK$5,242,000 were charged to the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31st December 2017.

Wi

RZTE—AR"ENA AEBRTHEBT
& & A R #3,100,000,0007T ( 1 & % 4
3,708,533,0007% 7T) 2495/ N A & % ([ &
5 BEBER-_Z—NFENABEH AL
H ™ & A K #¥3,100,000,000 7T {& & - iR &
BEBRIBZERRIESE  AE@EE#
AREEME MEBEEEEREBERET
BHEAE —_FFERAAEEERES -

RZZE—ANE=ZA - AEE%THEA@A
& B A R #¥2,107,000,0007 ( 8 & »
2,520,606,000/8 70) < B E X # & F ([ &
5 BEER-_ZB—+F —ZT—N\F-
—E2E-NF ZE_ZTF T =_—FR
—E-—FEH O UYEEREAEARE
2,107,000,000 7T & i& - 1B 1% %% & i@ (K 5| 87
ZIER KRG AEEBRENEITH R
HEZFFREENMER=ZZS=-ZF . =
T FR_FE-__FIHNES(AE
EEH]) MEEENEENIERBHR
AREE & B A] fE B 5 o

&Gr

A

ko

RZZE—ANE+A AEE%THEBA
B A& A R #880,000,0007 ( 18 & B #
1,052,7450008 ) 2 BEE X #H B H ([ #F
)  BEBEBR-ZE—LtER_T—N\EF
IR - I i 4 H mE A R 880,000,000
TEE- R_ZE—tFRA AEERE
EZEBRIBIZEGNERMAES A
% & % A A R #880,000,0007T (8 2 1 4
1,052,745,0008 7L ) + S N E £ & B B &
Btk AZIMAOFE - BERSESERER
8 o R EE KA A 515,242,000/ 7T B
AABE-TE—tFE+-_A=+—AHL*F
EMRaKERA -

SEARKEEERAR T LFEER
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21 Borrowings (Continued) 21 B8 @)
The maturity analysis of the borrowings is as follows: EBEZRETWT :
Bank and financial

institution borrowings Corporate bonds Asset-backed securities Total

BORPBHBREE NAES EEXKERS st
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-tF ZE-RF ZE-tE ZE-RF ZE-tE ZE-RE —E-t% ZE-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL TET TEL TER FEL TERL TEL
Within one year —ER 11,537,211 8,810,163 3,698,135 - 327,621 728,215 15,562,973 9,538,378
Between one and two years  —FEME 8,793,157 11,309,800 - - 1,816,195 942,283 10,609,352 12,252,083
Between two and five years  RIEZHE 21,572,306 9,201,794 - 3,449,758 - 1,638,804 21,572,306 14,290,356
Over five years BERF 5,445,156 8,671,406 - - - - 5,445,156 8,671,406

47,347,830 37,993,163 3,698,135 3,449,758 2,143,822 3,309,302 53,189,787 44,752,223

The borrowings are denominated in the following currencies and EBEEUTYHEEASSBMEIETIEZER
with the following respective weighted average effective interest INREE S F R &
rates:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Effective Effective
HK$’000 interest rate HK$’000 interest rate
FTET BERFZE FAT BB &
Renminbi AR
— Bank and financial — RTINS
institution borrowings WEBEE 45,285,813 5.99% 36,998,122 6.50%
— Corporate bonds — AAESH 3,698,135 5.15% 3,449,758 5.15%
— Asset-backed —BEEXEES
securities 2,143,822 6.28% 3,309,302 5.84%
EUR BT
— Bank borrowings —RITEE — N/A 995,041 1.68%
HK dollar & TT
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 2,062,017 1.34% — N/A
53,189,787 44,752,223
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21 Borrowings (Continued)

21 BE @)

The carrying amounts and the fair values of the borrowings are as EBEECEREEAFEINOT
follows:
Carrying amount Fair values
BREE AFE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—XRFEF ZZEB—tF ZZET—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FAT
Bank and financial RITR I BEEEE
institution borrowings 47,347,830 37,993,163 = 47,514,000 39,100,423
Corporate bonds N AMEFH 3,698,135 3,449,758 3,703,067 3,457,259
Asset-backed securities BESZEES 2,143,822 3,309,302 2,147,111 3,311,862

53,189,787

44,752,223 53,364,178 45,869,544

The fair values of the bank and financial institution borrowings,
corporate bonds and asset-backed securities are based on cash
flows discounted using the Group’s average borrowings rate of 1.4%
to 7.0% per annum as at the year end (2016: 1.5% to 6.3% per
annum), depending on the currency of the borrowings. The fair
values of the senior notes are based on the market price as at the
year end date.

As at 31st December 2017, the Group’s bank and financial
institution borrowings were secured by:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

the Group’s land (prepaid operating lease payments for hotel
properties and self-use buildings) of approximately
HK$404,475,000 (2016: HK$172,226,000);

the Group’s hotel properties of approximately
HK$1,558,617,000 (2016: HK$1,343,186,000);

the Group’s properties under development for sale of
approximately HK$16,710,038,000 (2016: HK$17,880,067,000);

the Group’s completed properties for sale of approximately
HK$3,831,990,000 (2016: HK$4,137,655,000);

the Group’s investment properties of approximately
HK$17,441,687,000 (2016: HK$13,011,915,000);

the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets of
approximately HK$3,396,705,000 (2016: HK$2,977,048,000);

RELR  RITEMBHERES  28E

7= &
& ¥
NE

EESHEEFNATEDBRELRSE
HEEFENRIABETOE(ZZT —
CEFNERIBEEGIE)(BIEESE

BIAEZHERERE] - BEREZ
RFETDAFERRHISERRELE-

RZZE—tF+A=+—H Xx&EEHZ

R1T
PER

U)

(i)

(iv)

MM BHEZEETIATIERS

7N £ B #)404,475,0008 T( =& —
7N 1 172,226,000 JT) 2 £ # OF
EMERBRAEFZEMKERE
KIA)

7N &2 [ %91,668,617,00078 7T (— & —
N 1 1,343,186,0003% 7T) 2 B JE ¥
3N

7 % @ #916,710,038,000%8 ;T (= F
— 7N £ £ 17,880,067,0007% 7T ) 2 A
HEEZERFTYE

7N £ B 493,831,990,00058 7T (Z & —
7N 4,137,655,00078 JT) Z A
EZBEERE

A 5 M #17,441,687,0008 T (= &
— 75 £ £ 13,011,915,0007% 7T ) Z &
B

7N £ [E #93,396,705,00058 7T (= & —
7N 1 2,977,048,00078 JT) Z A H
EMBEE

LEAREBAERAT T LEER
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Nofes to Hle Consoliclo]led Financial Sjro]lemenfs (coniinued)

mEMBEHRERME @
21 Borrowings (Continued) 21 B8 @)
(vii)  the Group’s bank deposits of HK$33,436,000 (2016: nil); and (vii) 7% B A&33,436,0008 L (Z & — /X
FR)Z2ROTGH R
(vii) the Group’s equity interests in subsidiaries of (i) N"EB AW B 2 8 2 kA& # %
HK$1,792,368,000 (2016: HK$961,899,000). 1,792,368,000% o ( — & — /X F ¢
961,899,000 7T) °
22 Deferred Income Tax 22 EEFEH
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there FEERBEEENEERBEBAEERE AH
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against MEEERANSBHBEAGAE S ET 4 &l
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to HITEANEBERAEEEGECERESHRER —
the same tax authority. The offset amounts are as follows: MISHEEHE A EEEE EiEesE
AE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Deferred tax assets: EEFIAE E -
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — B+ @B BUE
after more than twelve months BT IE A B 653,413 425,029
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered —#BR+Z@ARKE 2
within twelve months EER B E E 86,747 70,496
740,160 495,525
Deferred tax liabilities: EERERE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised —BRt+_EABRBEIR
after more than twelve months EEFTEEE (7,412,051) (5,644,940)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised —BR+T-EARNER
within twelve months FREFRIEEE (234,690) (435,468)
(7,646,741) (6,080,408)

(6,906,581) (5,5684,883)
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22 Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

22 JEIEFT8 % @)

The net movements in deferred taxation are as follows: REFRIBEFE T
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$000
FTHET FAT
Assets/(liabilities) BE/(ARE)
At 1st January n—A—H (5,584,883) (5,461,742)
Recognised in the consolidated income RERa W R R (M F32)
statement (Note 32) (961,346) (490,792)
(Credited directly to)/released directly from (AT A) BEMRBEEMm
other comprehensive income (Note 26) ZE WA (H%26)
— Fair value gain on available-for-sale —AHHEVKEEZ
financial assets AR (94,552) (11,834)
— Assets revaluation reserve realised —HERBEHEEBRYE
upon disposal of completed properties REH s EEEMHE
held for sale 157,224 17,716
Exchange difference FEH ZRE (423,024) 361,769
At 31st December W+—H=+—8 (6,906,581) (5,584,883)

The movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

BERBREENREEHAERBZEH (XL
BERMBERMBERAERAZ EERIEHE)

the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: mR
Deferred tax assets EEHEEE
Tax losses
HIEEE
2017 2016
ZB—tF —EARF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHExT FAT
At 1st January m—H—H 495,525 402,162
Recognised in the consolidated income RERE W R RIER
statement 202,789 122,761
Exchange difference PEH ZRE 41,846 (29,398)
At 31st December R+—A=+—H 740,160 495,525
EERIREBERAT T tFFR 199
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22 Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

22 JEIEFT 8B @)

Deferred tax liabilities EERIEE &
Withholding
income tax on
undistributed Revaluation
profits surplus Total
KRB KD
3 Fl 2z 7R
e ® EAE Bt
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FAT FAT FAT
At 1st January 2016 R-ZT—XRE—A— (71,216) (5,792,688) (5,863,904)
Recognised in the consolidated RIERERERER
income statement (2,842) (610,711) (613,553)
Released directly from other BEEBERBHME2E
comprehensive income, net WA - FEEE — 5,882 5,882
Exchange difference & H Z5E 4,606 386,561 391,167
At 31st December 2016 RZE—RF
+=—A=+—H (69,452) (6,010,956) (6,080,408)
Recognised in the consolidated RERE WS RER
income statement (1,935) (1,162,200) (1,164,135)
Released directly from other BEERREHME
comprehensive income, net WA - FEE — 62,672 62,672
Exchange difference PE 5 = %8 (4,937) (459,933) (464,870)
At 31st December 2017 RZZT—+tF+=A
=+—H (76,324) (7,570,417) (7,646,741)

The recognised deferred tax assets relate to tax losses amounting
to approximately HK$2,960,640,000 (2016: HK$1,982,100,000)
which are expiring from 2018 through 2022.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forward to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable. As at 31st December 2017, the
Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$386,039,000 (2016: HK$398,847,000) in respect of tax losses
amounting to approximately HK$1,925,642,000 (2016:
HK$2,114,646,000).

As at 31st December 2017, deferred tax liabilities of
HK$2,301,160,000 (2016: HK$1,772,743,000) have not been
recognised for withholding tax on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries in Mainland China, as these earnings are expected to
be reinvested in Mainland China.
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#92,960,640,00078 T( = & — /X F:
1,982,100,0007% 7t ) 2 E HE R B 8 i 15
BrEERBEESER _-_Z—N\FZ
S _FHMEm -

EE'E

BELEHEEEDAEMEBEG MR
B ARRE R @ A Z IR Mgt AT4S e
ZHBEERBEER R —+tF+
A=+ H AKEBEVERBREL
i 18 & E #9386,039,000 L ( = & —
7N F 1 308,847,000 L) W R IEE
18 #491,925,642,0007% ;o( = & — X F:
2,114,646,000/8 JT) °
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23

24

25

Current Tax Liabilities 23 AHFEERE
Current tax liabilities mainly represent payable for Mainland China NEHRIBABEETEEENP R A EDDE
corporate income tax and Mainland China land appreciation tax. FT 15 %t I JE < A B K e + b 3B (E FH o
Share Capital 24 Bg 7K
Number of
ordinary
shares Par value
ZEREE HE
‘000 HK$’000
T i FAT
At 1st January 2016 R-ZZTE—XRF—F—H 2,234,118 223,412
Repurchase of own shares BEAH KRG (8,558) (856)
At 31st December 2016, 1st January 2017 R-ZE—XRF+-_A=+—H"
and 31st December 2017 —E—tF—H—BK
—E—+F+=-A=+—H 2,225,560 222,556

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 3,000,000,000
shares (2016: 3,000,000,000 shares), with a par value of HK$0.1
per share (2016: HK$0.1 per share).

All issued shares are fully paid.

Non-Controlling Interests

The total non-controlling interests as at 31st December 2017 is
HK$2,143,533,000 (2016: HK$1,988,176,000), of which
HK$2,084,930,000 (2016: HK$1,901,901,000) relates to Believe
Best Investments Limited (“Believe Best Group”) . Believe Best
Group is 80% owned by the Group and is principally engaged in
property development in Chaoyang District, Beijing, Mainland
China. The non-controlling interests in respect of the remaining
subsidiaries are not material individually.

Set out below are the summarised financial information of Believe
Best Group, which have included fair value adjustments resulted
from the acquisition of Believe Best Group in prior years.

25

A TE A A% 42 805 3,000,000,000 % (= =
— 75 £E : 3,000,000,000 A% ) & A% E {8 0.1 75
T(ZZE—XNF: BREMEIBIL) ZK

,f/'\ ®

FTEBEZITRDBEZMERNR -

FEBIERER

RZEBE—tF+=A=+—8" FiZE
B M ME 2= A2 BB 52,143,533,00078 T
(= & — /X % :1,988,176,000/ 7T ) -
H #12,084,930,00078 ;o ( = & — /X F
1,901,901,0007% 7T ) B {5 E R E B R A A
((fEEEEDE@ EEEBHRASEE
B80%HEm  FERHFHEANEIL R E
WEMERRE - BEEHRKHEB QR MIEE
FlMEESETTEK -

EEEENMBEMBEFHIINTX B

BEAEFEZNBREERENSH
AFEAE -

SEARKEEERAR T LFEER

201



Nojfes to ﬂle Consoliclo]led Financial Sjro]lemenjfs (coniinued)
RE M BERRWME@®

25 Non-Controlling Interests (Continued)

25 1= H M E S @)

Summarised consolidated balance sheet MEMBERRRBE
Believe Best Group
EHEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T FA& T
Assets EE
Non-current assets EMBEE 528,596 481,180
Current assets TREh B E 24,653,053 18,942,914
Total assets 18 A E 25,181,649 19,424,094
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities ERBEaE (9,541,200) (6,821,684)
Current liabilities mE B G (5,849,380) (3,548,125)
Total liabilities ABEES (15,390,580) (10,369,809)
Net assets BEE 9,791,069 9,054,285
Summarised consolidated statement of GETHRERBE
comprehensive income
Believe Best Group
EEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Revenues W 25 767,627 469,234
Profit/(loss) before taxation B & AE R (5 18) 219,522 (75,743)
Taxation Fi 18 (56,587) 5,232
Profit for the year and total comprehensive FERMEEE2EMEA
income/(loss) for the year (E518) 8% 162,935 (70,511)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) attributable  JE3Z & R E(L 2 2™
to non-controlling interests wm A (E518) % 32,587 (14,102)
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25 Non-Controlling Interests (Continued)

25 IF 5= & R 5= )

Summarised consolidated cash flow statement BEBRSRERBE
Believe Best Group
FEER
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities KEEHZHEERE
Cash generated from operations REESE 7S 189,506 5,828,170
Mainland China corporate income tax paid BT B AREERESHR (4,628) -
Mainland China land appreciation tax paid B AT B K B £ 3B (B B (19,201) (8,244)
Net cash generated from operating activities £ &4 E B E 4 2 IR £ /% 58 165,677 5,819,926
Net cash used in investing activities KEERESMA RS F5E (15,903) (453,764)
Net cash used in financing activities BEERSMACIRE FE (106,932) (5,530,927)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash RekReZE MM
equivalents O ) F%8 42,842 (164,765)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January R—A—BZzR&RES
FEY 145,063 325,227
Exchange gain/(loss) on cash and cash RBeMReEEBYIER
equivalents Wz, (&518) 11,671 (15,399)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December W+ - A=+—HZHRE K
ReEHEEY 199,576 145,063
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26 Reserves

For the year ended 31st December 2017

26 f##

BE-_Z—tHF+-BA=+—HLEFE

Assets  Currency
Share  Statutory revaluation translation Retained
premium  reserve () reserve (i) differences earnings Total
BEEER %
BRDEE EERE) e EREE REEA st
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER THER FTHER THER
Balance at 1st January 2017 W-ZZE—+F—HF—H
& 15,800,776 161,117 1,735,612 (189,495) 36,686,324 54,194,334
Profit for the year FEEEF - - - — 5,796,385 5,796,385
Currency translation differences RN =S - - — 3,998,372 — 3,998,372
Fair value gains on available-for-sale  AJ{fft B &M & &E 2
financial assets RN E W - — 378,207 - — 378,207
Realised upon disposal of completed & #5 /EH &
properties held for sale BERMERER - — (335,845 - —  (335,845)
Dividends paid BRIRE = - - —  (222,556) (222,556)
Deferred tax EIEFLIE - - 62,672 - - 62,672
Balance at 31st December 2017 RZE—+F
+ZRA=+—Hz
i 15,800,776 161,117 1,840,646 3,808,877 42,260,153 63,871,569
For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE-_ZT—"F+_A=+—"HIEFE
Assets Currency
Share Statutory revaluation  translation Retained
premium reserve (i)  reserve (i)  differences earnings Total
AEEM gk
RihwE JEEREN ) EBRER RBREA FoEy
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT THT FHAT FHAT FHET THAT
Balance at 1st January 2016 RZZE—XRFE—A—H
&% 15,861,535 161,117 1,719,575 3,332,925 33,037,829 54,112,981
Profit for the year FEEH A — — - — 3,868,433 3,868,433
Currency translation differences EHEY =5 - — —  (3,522,420) —  (3,522,420)
Repurchase of own shares [-ACIRN g ) (60,759) - - - 3,082 (57,677)
Fair value gains on available-for-sale  A[ it S5 E E 2
financial assets DAY - - 47,336 - - 47,336
Realised upon disposal of completed & #5 /EH &
properties held for sale EEKMERESR - - (37,181) - - (37,181)
Dividends paid B E - - - - (223,020)  (223,020)
Deferred tax EERTE — — 5,882 — — 5,882
Balance at 31st December 2016 RZTE—RF
+tZA=+—HZ
E 15,800,776 161,117 1,735,612 (189,495) 36,686,324 54,194,334
Notes: B et -

(i) As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s

subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are required to
appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year
losses) to the statutory reserves and enterprise expansion fund, at rates
determined by their respective boards of directors. The statutory reserves
can be utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for the issuance of
bonus shares, whilst the enterprise expansion fund can be utilised for the
development of business operations. When the statutory reserves reaches
an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital of the Company’s

subsidiaries, further appropriation needs not be made.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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26 Reserves (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) Assets revaluation reserve represents revaluation reserve of available-for-
sale financial assets and the balance of fair value gain in respect of 69.5%
interest in Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodu Real Estate Limited (“GZQREL”).

Upon completion of the acquisition of Guangzhou Nonggongshang
Construction and Development Company Limited in 2007, GZQREL
became a subsidiary of the Group. The fair value gain in respect of the
69.5% interest in GZQREL previously held by the Group (as a joint
venture) of approximately HK$2,180,096,000, net of tax, has been
credited to an asset revaluation reserve directly in other comprehensive
income.

Subsequent sales of the properties developed by GZQREL are regarded
as partial disposal of the business of GZQREL and accordingly the related
portion of the asset revaluation reserve is released to the consolidated
income statement. As at 31st December 2017, the asset revaluation
reserve of GZQREL amounted to approximately HK$746,859,000 (2016:
HK$925,480,000).

27 Other Gains, Net

26 & @
et - (&)

(ii) BEEMRFRBREIHEEVBEEZE
HEE REMNKIGBEFSHESR AR
([E#0])69.5% 2 A FEWSBRIE S
f s o

R-ZETZLFERRBENTEREIASE
ERELAEARE BEXALEEZH
BAR - AKBEANBEBE(EAE—M
& & ARl B695%E &= 2 A F B M &= 4
2,180,096,000% S (E KR IE) EHE &
Hte2mBAGFABESHRHE -

ERHEHBIAFAEZNERSLER
HEH>XY BEEGRFEBEZABELD
AitEAGGRER - R=ZF—£F+
“AZt R BENEEEGREN
746,859,000/ 7T (= & — 7N 4 + 925,480,000
AL °

27 HftWam - FHE

2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THER FABTT
Dividend income from S N S =!
— available-for-sale financial assets —AHEEYBEE 141,511 129,250
— financial assets at fair value through profit ~ — R A FEFEBIEZTIEZ
or loss VMEEE 5,482 350
Government grants B #6 BY) 14,493 2,715
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value 3% A F{E & B 18 25 51 BR 2 B 1%
through profit or loss BEZANFEKE 47,808 97
Net foreign exchange losses charged in R REImRANL I ZE N
consolidated income statement B8 55
— net foreign exchange losses — BB (69,742) (24,680)
— exchange losses arising from foreign —BERNHINEEERD
currency borrowings capitalised b H &5 18 42,874 15,441
Provision for impairment of goodwiill BRI E R (459) (5,510)
Loss on investments wWEBE = (46,427)
Gain on disposal of land BB W 18,739 12,874
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair BEZRATEEBERYERY
value through profit or loss W% EE KRR 6,874 -
207,580 84,110
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28 Expenses by Nature

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses
and general and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

BHEE D Z2HX

MAXBREEXNA HERMEHERE
B AE—REITHRER MO :

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Advertising and promotion costs BEENREERX 94,875 156,790
Amortisation of land costs + th Bk AN 5 52,284 52,723
Auditor’s remuneration % 2B B & 10,965 9,953
Other professional fees HmmEEXEH 7,415 4,674
Cost of completed properties sold HEBEKME KA 7,119,168 10,158,010
Depreciation of properties and equipment MENEREBITE 174,584 176,064
Direct operating expenses arising from NTHENEEMEESX CEE
investment properties that Y
— generate rental income —EAHES KA 415,668 301,938
— did not generate rental income —WEEAHESWA 4,880 10,002
Employees’ benefits costs (including Directors’ g E @ FIK AN (B IEE EH &)
emoluments) (Note 29) (Hf#%29) 928,598 890,024
Loss on disposal of properties and equipment & %) % N &% & &8 8,324 735
Operating lease rental in respect of premises WX 2K EHER 14,294 16,800
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of JIE L BR ORE (B B 4, (13l )
accounts receivable 14,694 (9,875)

29 Employees’ Benefits Costs

29 EEEF A

2017 2016

—E—tHF —ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Salaries and allowances e KERM 588,230 573,470

Sales commission and bonus SHEM® RIEA 202,898 182,882

Pension costs BRIKE KA

— Defined contribution plans — TR REZ 137,460 133,684
— Provision for/(written back of provision —RERG ©BE(2#)

for) long-service payment 10 (12)

928,598 890,024

(@) Pensions — Defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under
the MPF scheme, each of the Group (the employer) and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of each of the employer
and employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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BIEBFHIMEABEAO R TS BEZ
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1,500 7T 2R LR 2 BB 8 Bk
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29 Employees’ Benefits Costs (Continued)

(@) Pensions — Defined contribution plans (Continued)

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees
in Mainland China. The Group’s employees make monthly
contributions to the plans at approximately 8% of the income
(comprising salaries, allowances and bonus), while the Group
contributes 12% to 22% of such income and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions beyond the
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

No forfeited contributions (2016: nil) were utilised during the year.
There is no forfeited contributions leaving available at the year-end
to reduce future contributions.

Contributions totalling HK$13,025,000 (2016: HK$5,799,000) were
payable to the fund at the year-end.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include two (2016: three) directors, whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments for the remaining three (2016: two) individuals are as
follows:

(@) BARE — EFMAREE

IRPBEAREZRFERMARE A&
BRERPEAEZEEEE —([HE
REB RN E - AKEREEAKE
WA(BIREFHE 2 RIEL) K98% % 7t
SMEREFT AREUREZFRA12%E
22%VEHH R o BRAELEE TN AEEY
BEHMUBERERENRET - BREY
ZERFEAEXNEREBE ZZHE
N

FRALEDLBOER(ZT—RF: FT)
B o B B OR W SR BRI & R AT it
58 P LA R 2 R SR A 3K

& 313,025,000/ 7T (= Z — 7N 4F : 5,799,000
B RREREMNTES -

b) EEEEFAL

REFAERERIARSFALIEERS
(ZE-—RF: ZR)EF - KFZ2HEE
REXF2 2z RER - Htf =% (=
E-RF MB)EMALZHEET :

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$000
FTERT FHETT
Salaries and allowances e MoEEh 6,616 5,059
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme & & ¥ iR ik © 51 2| > £ 2% 356 197
6,972 5,256
The emoluments fell within the following band: e N FIA TR :

Number of individuals

AB
2017 2016
—g—t% —T-AF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T & 2,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T % 2,500,000 7% 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T & 3,000,000 7% 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T & 3,500,000 7% 7T - 1

SEARKEEERAR T LFEER
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30 Benefits and Interests of Directors 30 EEFERES
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st HExE T —+t+tE+-_B=+—HItE
December 2017 is set out below: B ZBESFZMEFH AT :
As director (i) As management (ii)
EREZ() EAEEE (i)
Basic salaries,
allowances and
Name of director EENA Fees benefits-in-kind (i)  Employee benefits Total
EXEE RHER
ik B ) 2 (i) EEREF #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET FTERT FTET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Au Wai Kin BERLE - - 252 252
Mr. Bao Wenge BRI E - - 1,586 1,586
Ms. Chu Kut Yung KEBZLT - — 2,288 2,288
Mr. Chu Mang Yee KRAEKEE - - - -
Mr. Liao Ruo Qing BEERE - - 3,508 3,508
Mr. Xie Bao Xin HWEBLLE = - 1,599 1,599
— — 9,233 9,233
Independent non-executive BIYFHTES
directors
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David THESE 310 - - 310
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron BREeE kA& 310 - - 310
Mr. Ching Yu Lung TRINgE L& 310 - - 310
930 - - 930
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30 Benefits and Interests of Directors (Continued)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st
December 2016 is set out below:

30 EEFNZRER @

HE_ZT—XR"F+_A=Z+—8BL®F
=S = b T (T N

As director (i) As management (i)

EREE() 1E /8 32 & i)

Basic salaries,
allowances and

Name of director EEHR Fees  benefits-in-kind (i) Employee benefits Total
ERES 2R
e B W M % (i) EE®EA BEr
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THAT FAET TAET
Executive directors HTES

Mr. Au Wai Kin BERLE - — 252 252
Mr. Bao Wenge 8HE ST A — - 1,581 1,581
Ms. Chu Kut Yung KERZ L - - 2,290 2,290
Mr. Chu Mang Yee KAREAE - - - -
Mr. Liao Ruo Qing BERBRE - - 3,530 3,530
Mr. Xie Bao Xin WEELE — — 1,413 1,413
— — 9,066 9,066

Independent non-executive BIYFHTES

directors

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David THESE 300 - — 300
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron FREEE kA& 300 — - 300
Mr. Ching Yu Lung TRINEE ST & 300 - - 300
900 — — 900

During the year, Mr. Chu Mang Yee waived emoluments of
HK$240,000 (2016: HK$240,000).

Notes:

(i) The amounts represented emoluments paid or payable in respect of a
person’s services as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary
undertakings.

(i) The amounts represented emoluments paid or payable in respect of a
person’s other services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company or its subsidiary undertakings and included salaries,
allowances, discretionary bonuses and employer’s contribution to a
pension scheme.

(iii) The amounts include salaries, discretionary bonus, housing allowances
and employer’s contribution to a pension scheme.

(iv) During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2016: nil).

F N - K F K St A BN E B £ 240,00078 TT
(ZZE— 7N : 240,000 7T) °

fif et

0 EZ FAEREBAALRERNABKENE
AREERBHECNHENHE

(i) FHREREFALREEEARFHE
B A ) B E A AR 75 O A5 Sk R A
T BEHE R BBTEALEEIHE
R & & 81 H $E5K

i)y ZAEREHFS WEREAL BEERMEKE
FERIKRSFTEI A HER -
vy FA AEEHBEREEIAE  UEA

MR 51 A0 A 30 A AN 5= B I Y 52 R s X B
MATERE (=T —RF  §) -
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31 Finance Income and Costs

31 MBWARAR

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FAT
Finance income B 3 A
Interest income from banks and a joint RKEFETE—MHMEERAZ
venture FLEMA 43,918 79,439
Finance costs B 7% B AR
Interest expenses and other borrowing FMERTRHEMEERAK :
costs:
— loans from banks and financial —RITRPBREER
institutions (2,819,268) (2,899,794)
— corporate bonds and asset-backed —RREFREEXIRHES
securities (338,465) (219,732)
— senior notes —BEEE = (46,440)
Total borrowing costs incurred FTEs 4 2 BIE B KA (3,157,733) (3,165,966)
Less: Amount capitalised as part of the cost of J§ : BFRIEAHER Y E HRE
properties under development, RIREMERMERE
investment properties under B2 B KA 2 E A1
development and properties and A
equipment 3,157,733 3,165,966
Cost on early redemption of asset-backed REFELEEZRESF LKA
securities (Note 21) (K zt21) (5,242) -
Cost on early redemption of senior notes REBEBRELEZEEZKN = (132,484)
(5,242) (132,484)
Net finance income/(costs) IS UR A (B AN) S5 58 38,676 (63,045)

The weighted average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised
during the year ended 31st December 2017 was approximately 5.8%
(2016: 6.2%) per annum.

HE-_Z—+tE&E+-_A=+—8BIt&E
g B35 & AR 8 B R ) b0 SF 15 A A
R BE8E(ZE—RNF:62[E) -
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32 Taxation 32 ®iE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHExT T&T
Current tax N HA R 18
Hong Kong profits tax (Note (a)) BEEFER (K it @) 1,990 —
Mainland China corporate income tax (Note (b)) & B K FE > 2 P15 5t
(K17t ®) 864,639 817,917
Mainland China land appreciation tax (Note (c)) A1 B A [ + b 3% (& #¢
(K7E(c) 1,106,009 476,151
Mainland China withholding income tax (Note () & B K BEFE 0 FR 15 5t
(K2t () = 771
1,972,638 1,294,839
Deferred tax IEEF I8
Mainland China corporate income tax (Note (b)) /1 B A B 1 2 FT 15 %t
(K17t b)) 1,011,350 508,302
Mainland China land appreciation tax (Note (c)) /1 B A B + #b 1 (& F4
(K &t(c) (51,939) (20,354)
Mainland China withholding income tax (Note (d) 71 B oK [ Y8 $10 BT 15 %t
(K17t () 1,935 2,844
961,346 490,792
Taxation (Note (g)) B (K it e) 2,933,984 1,785,631

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until March
2035. Subsidiaries in the British Virgin Islands are incorporated
under the International Business Companies Act (now the BVI
Business Companies Act, 2004) of the British Virgin Islands, or the
BVI Business Companies Act, 2004 of the British Virgin Islands,
and are not liable to any form of taxation in the British Virgin Islands.

AAFIEREHEMERERE EE-F
TREFZAL -ABELXHEWE LR
TR ERABELHERBEENREGE
BB R E ¥R A A2004) - sk
BEXHESEBELBEEHELRE
2004 MY MBAIMNERNER Z
RERZESHIE -
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32 Taxation (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profit for the year ended 31st December 2017. No Hong Kong
profits tax was provided for the year ended 31st December 2016.

Mainland China corporate income tax

Subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are subject to
Mainland China corporate income tax at the rate of 25% for the year
ended 31st December 2017 (2016: 25%)).

Mainland China land appreciation tax

Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds
of sales of properties less deductible expenditures including costs of land,
development expenditures and construction costs.

Mainland China withholding income tax

Dividend distribution made by Mainland China subsidiaries and joint
ventures to shareholders outside of Mainland China in respect of their
profits earned after 1st January 2008 is subject to withholding income tax
at tax rates of 5% or 10%, where applicable.

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to
profits of the group companies as follows:

32 #HIE @)

Ex

(@)

BENEH

HE-_Z—tF+-_A=+—HLEFE"
EENBHORFANGBTERBEESNZ
16.65%sH IR - MEREBEE T — X F 1
ZA=1+—BLFEZEBNEHTRRE
&

REAREDEMEHR

BE-Z—tF+-_A=+—RALFE"
B R B K BE S % R 2 Y BB A R R R
25% 2 BERBMTFREAERRFEHR(ZF
— R4 25%) °

FR B A BE - 5t 3 B AR

O OKRE LR ER G L E B S
EHEMBRBNBR AT NEAL (BE it
BRA - ERAX REERAN)  RRERE
30% = 60% UK -

B REETR AT 15

REAEME AR RA SR E R B AR
NN RRRBEER =TT NF—H—H
18 BRER 2 4 F P 4E 2 B 8 20 IR 7R 42 5% 3
10% (AE ) 2 B R B BN 1SH ©

AN B BR B AT s A B AR MR S B R B 0 #E T
HAERRMNBEFECERSBIEREN
T~

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Profit before taxation % B A % A 8,745,804 5,628,305
Less: Share of profit of associates B R E A EE (2,408) (1,645)
Less: Share of profit of joint ventures WD IEE E R ENE F (86,701) (143,844)
8,656,695 5,482,816
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to 1% A & i [& 2 & A1) 8 F B (R Fii R
profits in the respective regions HEZHE 2,166,558 1,387,649
Income not subject to tax TRRBBA (78,178) (71,738)
Expenses not deductible for tax IR -4 29,177 57,740
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses HHBERERHIAEEIRE (13,212) (9,085)
Deferred tax asset not recognised AERELEHIBEEE 37,230 75,552
Land appreciation tax deductible for calculation of ~ AI 1R E At E TS A& 2
corporate income tax purposes + I E T (263,596) (113,949)
Withholding tax on dividend income from PRC FEREARTRAERAFZ
subsidiaries and joint ventures IR BUA 2 TR 1,935 3,615
1,879,914 1,329,834
Land appreciation tax T I E T 1,054,070 455,797
Taxation I 2,933,984 1,785,631

The weighted average applicable tax rate was approximately 25% (2016:
25%).

Annual Report 2017
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33 Earnings Per Share

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

33 ERER

X
BEREXRBMNIREARRBRERB A
FEA5 5 M BR A F AE BT B I
FHBREE -

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Profit attributable to equity holders of the RNATIRERB AL EF
Company (HK$'000) (F&mL) 5,796,385 3,868,433
Weighted average number of ordinary BE T T MR 2 pnE T E
shares in issue ('000) (F ) 2,225,560 2,227,872
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) RERZBF (FIRET) 2.60 1.74

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. Since there was

B3

AREEREERNE  CHEETENE
B Z NEF I BELAE  ARRAA
BEEEN CERAREZHER BN

no dilutive potential ordinary share for the years ended 31st HE - ZE—t+tFR-_ZE—XRF+-A=

December 2017 and 2016, diluted earnings per share is equal to

basic earnings per share.

T-HLEFEE WRBEAHFEHN LR
o At SREERNEGRERRN —

ﬁ o
34 Dividend 34 RE
2017 2016
—E —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.20 HR R B AR 2
(2016: HK$0.10) per ordinary share % 38 A% 0.207%8 7T
(ZZ—XE:0108T) 445,112 222,556

Final dividend of HK$0.20 per share in respect of the financial year
ended 31st December 2017 (2016: HK$0.10 per share) has been
proposed by the Board and is subject to approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The
financial statements as at 31st December 2017 have not reflected

this dividend payable.

EEECREREBEE T —t+tF 1+ - A
=+t BHULMBRFERMNKBHRE SR
0208 T(=ZF — A~ F:0108 L) ' %
BREAFKRRAEEREBAFAS it
- RZEBE—+F+_A=1+—HWOHTK
R AT AR BRI RS AR B o
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35 Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow 35 GEEERERME

Statement
(@) Cash generated from operations (a REEEXZHEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Profit before taxation %R B4 R T 8,745,804 5,628,305
Adjustments for: -
— Finance income — A (43,918) (79,439)
— Finance costs — B R AR 5,242 132,484
— Dividend income — BB A (146,993) (129,600)
— Share of profit of joint ventures —DIEEERRET (86,701) (143,844)
— Share of profit of associates — D{EEE R AlE (2,408) (1,645)
— Depreciation of properties and equipment  — ¥ 2 LR E T E 174,584 176,064
— Loss on disposal of properties and —HEMERKEEE
equipment 8,324 735
— Amortisation of land costs — + Hb B AN B £ 52,284 52,723
— Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of — B BR TR E RS,
accounts receivable ([E#) 14,694 (9,875)
— Fair value gain on investment properties —REMELFEKZE (5,003,235) (2,604,091)
— Fair value gain on financial assets at —EBEAVESEBIERIEKZ
fair value through profit or loss PBEEZAFEKTE (47,808) 97)
— Gain on disposal of financial assets at —BBERATEBBIER
fair value through profit or loss PR 2 B B E W e (6,874) —
— Gain on disposal of land —BRE I (18,739) -
— Net exchange loss —[EHEEFERE 26,868 9,239
— Provision for impairment of goodwill —HERERE 459 5,510
— Loss on investments —REEE = 46,427
Changes in working capital (excluding the HEEEYH(TREKRE
effects of acquisition/disposal of subsidiaries 1 & Kf & A &) M (& i, = %8 &
and exchange differences on consolidation): 4 &8RE 2 & £) :
— Properties under development for sale — A EEZERETYEN
and completed properties for sale AHHEE BB E 1,228,601 7,055,996
— Accounts receivable — FEUER X (62,629) (139,512
— Prepayments for acquisition of land — U BE £ #th 2 FE A BB (4,751) (12,802)
— Prepayments, deposits and other current  — FE{T 318 ~ 124 R E A
assets MBEE (92,665) (423,644)
— Accounts payable — EfTER® 1,705,525 (980,507)
— Land cost payable — B LA AN (40,532) (903)
— Deferred revenue — EEUA (3,389,808) (2,609,585)
— Accruals and other payables — FEETFRIA I Eo M FE (< 3IB 611,408 291,449
Cash generated from operations REES 7S 3,626,732 6,263,388
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35 Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow 35
Statement (Continued)

(b) Business combination

In August 2017, the Group acquired a 100% equity interests in
Wilcon Investments Limited and its subsidiary (“Wilcon”) for a
consideration of RMB370,000,000 (equivalent to HK$427,642,000).

GERESERERMT @

(b) X AE

RZE—tFNR AEEKEEEREL
REARLARAEREMBARNTRERZ] 2
LA #E - KRB A A R 370,000,000 7T (18
£ 427,642,0007 7T) ©

HK$’000
FAT
Net assets acquired: BEWNEEESE:
Investment property "B 544,595
Other liabilities Hih g & (116,957)
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 4
427,642
Satisfied by: AT 55X ER
Cash consideration BERE 377,058
Consideration payable R E 50,584
427,642
Analysis of the net cash outflow arising on acquisition: UWEEE A HEIR SR H DT ¢
Total cash consideration ReEREHE (377,058)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired PEREReLRRESEEYD 4
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEEANFRS RN (377,054)

The acquired business contributed revenues of nil and net profit of
HK$2,026,000 to the group for the period from 1st August to 31st
December 2017.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1st January 2017, consolidated
pro-forma revenue and profit for the year ended 31st December
2017 would have been HK$30,138,168 and HK$13,007,040
respectively.

R=B—tFNA—AE+=A=+-
B BREE AR B S RE BT
W &5 K 2,026,000 7T &) 48 F)

WKRER=ZE—tF— A —H#ET #HE
—E—+FE+-_A=+—BILEEHKSE
B Z W Kom i o 5l 230,138,168 7T
13,007,040 7T

SEARKEEERAR T LFEER
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35 Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement (Continued)

35 GEEERERMTE @

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from c) METHEEX2EEHER
financing activities
Due to Due to
Interest  Dividend related Duetojoint  Duetoan non-controlling
Borrowings payable payable  companies ventures  associate interests Total
Ef BN EA-8

#E EFFS

ENRE BEARNE AEARE BELARMA BAFENER L)

At 1st January 2017 RZT—t4#
—-R—H 44,752,223 288,938 - 476,471 3,253,214 6,170 504,071 49,281,087
Cash flows Reng
— inflow from financing activities —REEHIRA 19566473 - - - - - — 19,566,473
— outfow from financing activities ~ — B ZEB 2R E  (14471252) (3,181,608  (222556)  (280436)  (263,850) - - (18419,702)
Foreign exchange adjustment ERER 3,342,343 12,166 - 23,718 218,812 433 35,338 3,632,810
Other non-cash movements En¥Re — 3157783 222556 4,154 - - - 3384443
At 31st December 2017 RZZ—+F
“R=1+-H 53,189,787 277,229 - 223907 3,208,176 6,603 539,409 57445111
36 Contingent Liabilities 36 JAEE
() Financial guarantees not provided for in the financial @ FRAUBHRKRPIELBEEZTGE
statements are as follows: RN -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage mEEBAREEME AT
facilities granted to certain buyers of the EREBEZBERmA
Group’s properties RITHEE 2 AR 10,039,498 10,294,980
Guarantees given to a bank for bank R—HEEERRIRITEEM
borrowings of a joint venture MERITIEL 2 IR 1,790,161 1,905,222
11,829,659 12,200,202
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36 Contingent Liabilities (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities granted to
certain buyers of the Group’s properties represented the
guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged for certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms
of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by
these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the
banks and the Group is entitled to take over the legal title and
possession of the related properties. Such guarantees were
to be discharged upon earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate
ownership certificate which are generally be available within 1
year after the purchasers take possession of the relevant
properties; or (i) the full repayment of the mortgage loan by
the purchasers of properties.

The Directors consider that in case of default in payments,
the net realisable value of the related properties can cover the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage principals together
with the accrued interest and penalty (see also Note 3.1(b)).

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are involved in litigation
arising in the ordinary course of their respective businesses.
Having reviewed outstanding claims and taking into account
legal advice received, the Directors are of the opinion that
adequate provisions have been made in the consolidated
financial statements for the years ended 31st December 2016
and 2017.

36 HAEE @

(@)

(&)

PBEAKREMEZE TEREMR
BRERMARITEL ZERRKE
ETROBRBZEBREZER
DEBAAKSEMEZETER
i%ZE%%%°@E%%%W%

HREERBREBMNR K

BARREEENE T HBEREMT

Zﬁ*&ﬁh%$é@ﬂf#ﬂ
LA MAKEEERS W@%

RZEEMBREARMGRAE 2%
HEEMAERE (—RREFKER
HEEYER -—FAEDL)  HMZEF
%%m%%a%%%%&%gﬂwk
REERE) ZERBSER -

EERA WHABRNTRNIE
Ao REMENAEREFEEAR
ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ%&%$i@@§ﬁﬂ

Ko Z1 3R (78 A B 2 BT &£ 3.1(0)) ©
AEBNETHERRAZ2EAEF

EXBBRETPELNFD - LA

*ﬁ%ﬁ ﬁﬂﬁémﬁ&'§$
RE BE_FT-—"FR-F—t

$+ A=t BLFENGEEY

BHRREFELTREE -

BEAIREEAERAR T LEER
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RE MR MR (|
37 Commitments 37 EE
(@) Capital commitments (@) BEAREE
Capital expenditures at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred REERAMRAEEZEARABRZOT :

are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Contracted but not provided for BEI4E R BE
— Acquisition of land and equity interests in =~ — UgEE & T H + B 52
certain land holding entities 2 b N AR A HE 2 1,340,124 1,753,186
— Property construction costs — W EE R R 1,841,710 1,337,793
— Capital contribution to an associate — —EBERFZHE 256,343 239,550
3,438,177 3,330,529
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHEEHRE
The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of NEBGRZHEBHEEMEZ T8
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease KETHEMEMALLHESAE - BET
agreements. The future aggregate minimum lease payments under AGEEKESHEE  RARZEREMES
non-cancellable operating lease are as follows: WERELAR
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Amounts payable JE < $IE
— Within one year — —F R 10,261 4,392
— Within two to five years —MFEERFA 10,142 928
— After five years —hF#%& 35,565 33,235
55,968 38,555
(c) Future minimum rental receivable (c) RERREEWES
The Group leased out certain properties under operating leases. RNREBHREKLHEEAE FYWE - Kig
The future minimum rental receivable under non-cancellable A EsceleE s AR gREKES
operating leases is as follows: mR
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
— Within one year ——F R 1,535,337 965,842
— Within two to five years —MFEFERFNA 3,343,211 2,439,196
— After five years — hFE% 937,419 780,269
5,815,967 4,185,307
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38 Related Party Transactions

The Company is controlled by Mr. Chu Mang Yee, who owns
approximately 55.22% (2016: 55.01% to 55.22%) of the
Company’s shares during the year ended 31st December 2017.
The remaining shares are widely held.

The ultimate holding company is Sounda Properties Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

(@) The following significant connected

38 BEALXRS

AARHARAERECEES  EREBEE=-F
—+tF+-_A=+—BILtEEREAD
55.22% ( — & — /X 4F : 55.01% £ 55.22%)
KRR D - B TROBEMALTEZE
",ﬁ—o

RAREIRRE AN KB E LA S R MK
VHFEEXRERAA -

@@ TNIREBEATETZE

transactions were carried out with related BHEEBERTS
parties:
Sales of goods and services (Note) HEEmKR®%E (M)
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAT
Property management services to arelated 12t ¥ —MEEA T 2 W%
company B R 19,752 5,807
Property design services to a related company 2 ¥ — M EE A 7l 2 ¥ 2%
HET AR 127 99
Shop and office lease services to a related RET—HBEEAF 2EH R
company BAETHERE 2,002 1,904
Office lease services to related companies REFHEEARZHAETEE
PR 7 10,371 16,137
32,252 23,947
Purchase of goods and services (Note) BEERRR (KE)
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Property construction services from a related — 8] 3@ A RIIR (it 7 W) 12 55
company Bk 75 90,309 396,719
Property construction supervision services —HEE AR 2 ERE
from a related company EERRTE 1,167 506
Electricity installation, low voltage system and — S BE A AR 2 B H &
intelligent building system installation and £ PBERGELNBEEFER
consultancy service on budgeting and cost TERARBETIREEN
control for construction work from arelated 5k 2N 3% 1 7% 38 AR 75
company 6,341 36,798
Office lease services from a related company — BB AR REZHAE
HER® 6,625 7,708
Informatisation and computerisation related ~ — B AE QA TIRH 2 E B KR
services from a related company B8 RS 40,365 1,876
144,807 443,607
EERIREEERAT —E—tFFR
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38 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 38 BEALIRZ @
(@) The following significant connected (@ TIHARHEEEALTENTZE
transactions were carried out with related EEERS (&)
parties: (Continued)
Note: /WEE .
Office lease services are provided to Zhuijiang Life Insurance Company Limited (%k WMAETHERBERETFHRIAZSREBRHOER
STASRBEMNERAT) (‘Zhujang Life”), and Beijing Zhujiang Real Estate AAI(HRIAZBD) RIERKIFHMEREGRA
Development Company Limited (1t REKTEHER AR A ) (“Zhujiang Real A(HIEME]) -
Estate”).
Zhujiang Life is majority-controlled company, held indirectly, by the family KIASEAREEREE (KRR ERBRERLES
members and relatives of Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder and e@rFE(REE)REERLET (KA RESE2
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company) (“Mr. Chu”) and Ms. Chu EFRIRZTDEBNRBEERBEE KX —Mt
Kut Yung (Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company) (“Ms. ERKREMEEMBAEREEZ TRAZETZH
Chu”) together, namely Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Chu Wai Hong (the sons of T) KRR EEKREEZEARIAZE 2ER)
Mr. Chu and the brothers of Ms. Chu), Mr. Zhu La Vi (a brother of Mr. Chu and Rt E(REEZIHREIRRLZ T 2 ) R
an uncle of Ms. Chu) and Mr. Xie Bing Zhao (the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu and EREANLZEESEN AR KIRE AKX
an uncle of Ms. Chu). Zhujiang Real Estate is majority-controlled company, held BEMEE(RREEZFRAZX LT ZBL) BER
indirectly by Mr. Chu Wai Hong (a son of Mr. Chu and a brother of Ms. Chu). ERGZEIEHIZEAN AT -
Apart from the above, all other transactions were carried out with Guangdong B EXRaish BRBIIREAEABSERA A
Hanjiang Engineering Construction Limited (“Hanjiang”), is 99% owned by the (BT AREREE(RARERBERFESS
son of Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder and Chairman of the ITEIZFREAERLZT(RATESTSEEHE)
Board of Directors of the Company) and brother of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Deputy ZHABEEION% ZAF] -

Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company).

All the services mentioned above were charged in accordance with LR AR HEEHRBIZZN BRI
the terms of the underlying agreements. & o
(b) Amounts due from/to related parties were as (b) EW FEEALTZREN
follows: T :
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBTT
Due from a joint venture EW—MEEERAZHRE 42,230 34,738
Due from associates JFE L B & X R BUIR 211 197
Due from related companies (Note) JE W B 8 R R 3R B (B 7)) 7,713 3,190
Due to an associate FEA —REEE QA E 2 RIE 6,603 6,170
Due to related companies (Note) FES BB R R 2 3B (K it) 223,907 476,471
Due to joint ventures JENAZ AR ZFHIE 3,208,176 3,253,214
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38 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Amounts due from/to related parties were as

follows: (Continued)

As at 31st December 2017, all outstanding balances with related
companies, associates and joint ventures were denominated in
Renminbi, unsecured, non-interest bearing and without

predetermined repayment terms.

As at 31st December 2017, the Group also had accounts payable
of approximately HK$603,393,000 (2016: HK$585,989,000) due to
certain related companies (Note) in respect of property construction

(Note 20).

Note:

These related companies are owned by the son, the brother and the brother-in-
law of Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder and Chairman of the Board
of Directors of the Company) and brother and uncles of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Deputy

Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company).

(c) Amount due to non-controlling interests

The amount due to non-controlling interests represents
shareholders’ loans to subsidiaries from the non-controlling
interests, which are denominated in Renminbi and non-interest
bearing. The amount is not repayable within the next twelve
months. Certain portion of land has been pledged for the amount

due to non-controlling interests.

(d) Key management compensation:

38 BEAITRZ @

(b) B EBEALTZFHEM
INRNC )

RZEBE—+tF+_A=+—H HEEBERQ
BB RNA RAEERRZ BRI A
AREHE E8HF RERTEEBTEE
FKEf o

RZEBE—tF+=-_A=+—8 &~5H
NEEMNETHEERR(MT)WEESE
X TH #96083,393,00078 7o ( — & — /N F ¢
585,989,0007% 7t) (M 5E20) °

B

ZEMERRRREREE (AR AERBERFE
EERIRIZAT BEBERKRERAERLL
(ARRAIEZERER)ZRL  RARGELHES
Z A e

(c) BAFEEHMERS KA

F& < IF 428 | 14 42 a5 2 SRR 5 IF 12 I M
SR EARME L ZRRER - BRKEA
BAARBFERRE - EEAKELFRN
AR+ —EARERE--BoLHEHEN
FEIEHI MRS KRG A -

d EEEEEHRMH

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET &

Salaries and allowances 4 &EEL 12,338 13,988
Pension costs RARE A 483 588
12,821 14,576
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38 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(e) Undertaking provided by Mr. Chu Mang Yee,
the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company, to the Group in relation to the
acquisition of Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate
Limited*

In March 2010, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire
interest in Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited (“Panyu Zhujiang”)
from Hanjiang.

Panyu Zhuijiang possesses the right to develop a piece of land in
Panyu District, Guangdong, Mainland China. Hanjiang agreed to
perform and complete all necessary demolition and preparation
work to obtain the land use right certificate at its own expense. In
relation to the Group’s acquisition of Panyu Zhujiang, Mr. Chu
Mang Yee has undertaken to the Group to guarantee the due and
punctual performance by Hanjiang of its obligations in relation to
the land (subject to a maximum amount of RMB3,600 million). As
at 31st December 2017, Hanjiang was in the process of applying
the land use right certificates.

() Undertaking provided by Mr. Chu Mang Yee,
the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company, to the Group in relation to
acquisition of Believe Best Investments Limited*

In 2007, the Group completed the acquisition of 80% of the issued
share capital of Believe Best Investments Limited (“Believe Best”)
from Mr. Chu Mang Yee. Believe Best has, through its indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary (the project company), a piece of land for
property development in Chaoyang District, Beijing, Mainland China
(known as the “Jing Run Project”).

In relation to the Group’s interest in the Jing Run Project (through
its 80% interest in Believe Best), Mr. Chu Mang Yee, has (i) fully
guaranteed the bank loans which were used by the project
company for the demolition and relocation of the extra public
greenfield site peripheral to the Jing Run Project at the request of
the local government; and (i) undertaken to the Group to be
responsible for the excess amount, if any, being the difference in
the unit cost per square metre (including the demolition and
relocation fees for the extra public greenfield site and the land
transfer fees as compared with the original agreed valuation price
of Jing Run Project) for the gross floor area to be developed,
payable by the project company in respect of any increase in plot
ratio as the government may approve. The demolition and
relocation work on the extra public greenfield is ongoing and related
costs of approximately RMB1,493 million had been incurred by the
Group up to 31st December 2017 (2016: RMB1,493 million). Such
additional costs may be compensated by an increase in plot ratio
for the Jing Run Project, although government approval for increase
in plot ratio is pending.
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38 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(9) Acquisition of Sun Excel Investments Limited*

On 3rd November 2010, the Group entered into an agreement with
Farrich Investments Limited (“Farrich”), a related company, to
acquire 100% equity interests in Sun Excel Investments Limited (“Sun
Excel”) at a total consideration of RMB6,605,066,000. The
consideration would be satisfied by (i) cash of RMB2,313,787,000,
and (i) the issuance of 523,247,000 shares of the Company for
RMB4,291,279,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,387,332,000),
on the basis that the construction will be fully completed by Farrich

at its own cost.

The sole asset of Sun Excel is its 100% interests in Beijing
Chuanghe Fengwei Real Property Development Co. Limited (formerly
known as Beijing Chuanghe Fengwei Technology Investment and
Management Co. Limited) (“Project Co A”) and Beijing
Shengchuang Hengda Real Property Development Co. Limited
(formerly known as Beijing Shengchuang Hengda Technology
Investment and Management Co. Limited) (“Project Co D”). Project
Co A and Project Co D hold the land use rights of a piece of land in

Tongzhou District, Beijing, Mainland China (the “Project”).

The acquisition of Sun Excel was completed in October 2013 and
523,247,000 shares were issued by the Company. As at 31st
December 2017, cash consideration of RMB1,308,704,000 (31st
December 2016: RMB887,791,000) out of the total cash
consideration of RMB2,313,787,000 were paid, representing the
amount of construction work completed by Farrich. The acquisition
costs paid were recognised as investment properties under
development and prepayments for construction work (Note 16(ii)).

(h) Disposals of land use rights to Mr. Chu Mang
Yee, the Chairman of the Board of Directors of

the Company*

In May 2012, the Group entered into agreements to dispose of its
land use rights of two pieces of land in Panyu District, Guangdong,
Mainland China and Baodi District, Tianjin, Mainland China to Mr.
Chu Mang Yee, for considerations of RMB29,258,305 and

RMB2,500,000, respectively.

The transactions have not yet been completed as at 31st
December 2017. It is expected that the Group will recognise gain
on disposals, net of tax, of approximately RMB9,834,000 upon

completion of the transactions.

*

Company under the Listing Rules.

Represented connected transactions with connected persons of the

38 BEAITRZ @
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39 Company Statement of Financial Position

39 A4 A MBI K

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T T&T
Assets BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBARZIEE 21,882,351 20,837,294
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other current TN FIE - Ze REMTE
assets BE 44,903 917
Financial assets at fair value through profit BAFESBERINEZ
and loss T EEE 55,450 -
Cash and cash equivalents NWENIEESEEBY 35,374 125,226
135,727 126,143
Total assets BEE 22,018,078 20,963,437
Equity s
Share capital B& 72X 222 556 222,556
Reserves (Note) s (I aE) 17,986,578 17,187,206
Total equity R 18,209,134 17,409,762
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings BE = 3,449,758
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals and other payables JE 5T I8 2 H th FE T 5RIB 101,952 95,640
Current tax liabilities AHRIEEE 8,857 8,277
Borrowings BE 3,698,135 —
3,808,944 103,917
Total liabilities BEHAEE 3,808,944 3,553,675
Total equity and liabilities EEREEHRE 22,018,078 20,963,437
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39 Company Statement of Financial Position
(Continued)

Note:

39 AR T BRI T @

Bt ez -
Reserve movement of the Company KAE TGS
Currency
Share translation Retained
premium differences earnings Total
R EE BE¥ERESR REEF ast
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT FTAT
For the year ended BE-Z—t#F
31st December 2017 +TZA=+—-BLEE
Balance at 1st January 2017 RZE—tF—HA—H2Z
R 15,800,776 4,604 1,381,826 17,187,206
Loss for the year FEEE - - (183,595) (183,595)
Currency translation differences TR N E R - 1,205,523 - 1,205,523
Dividends paid ERRE - - (222,556) (222,556)
Balance at 31st December 2017 RZE—+F
+-A=+—BHz&% 15,800,776 1,210,127 975,675 17,986,578
For the year ended BE-_ZT—XF
31st December 2016 +ZA=+—BLEE
Balance at 1st January 2016 RZE—R"F—HA—H2
Feg S 15,861,535 1,165,183 928,143 17,954,861
Profit for the year FEHF — — 673,621 673,621
Currency translation differences ERENE8 — (1,160,579) — (1,160,579)
Repurchase of own shares i B AN & fR 19 (60,759) - 3,082 (57,677)
Dividends paid BEATARE — — (223,020) (223,020)
Balance at 31st December 2016 RIE—RF
TZA=t+—RAz&EH 15,800,776 4,604 1,381,826 17,187,206
EERIREEERAT T tFFR
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40 Details of Principal Subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December LNTTER-_Z—+tE+_HA=+—82

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017

2017: TEMBRARIRE:
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable Principal activities and
Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
NCIEE HMA LR EEERER ERTRARZRE SEEGREAEIL TEXBREBHH
Directly Indirectly
BEE GE:3
Hopson Development International British Virgin Islands, limited liability US$2,000 100% — Investment holding in Hong
Limited company Kong
AEERBEBERAR REEXESE BERELLA 2,000% 7T REBREER
Sun Excel Investments Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability US$2,600,001 100% — Investment holding in Hong
company Kong
AERERRRAA ERELZHES BREIRR 2,600,001 % 7T REBREER
Addup International Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$1 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
Kong
KBEEERAR BE BEREERA 1A REBRERER
Archibald Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability US$2 - 100% Investment holding in Hong
company Kong
BFEEXERLA RERELZES ARECRA 2ETT REBREER
Beijing Chuanghe Fengwei Real Mainland China, limited liability US$61,920,330 - 100% Property development in
Property Development Co. Limited company Mainland China
EtReGERFEHEREERRE REAE FREETALA 61,920,330 7T R B AR R Y%
Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability US$220,580,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
IEREEIT B ERE HREARE BRECTAR 220,580,0003% 7T R B RREEREYE
BRRAF
Beijing Hopson Longhui Restaurant Mainland China, limited liability RMB3,000,000 - 100% Restaurant management in
Management Company Limited company Mainland China
TREEREERERARRAA  HEAE ARECTAA AR #3,000,0007T R BEAREERER
Beijing Hopson Luzhou Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB1,793,370,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
EREEHNEHEREERRE HERE AREETAFA AR #1,793,370,000 7T RABIREERY
Beijing Hopson Shiguang Investment ~ Mainland China, limited liability RMB3,000,000 — 100% Investment holding in
Management Limited company Mainland China
IREERAREERERAF  FEKE BERETAA A %3,000,0007T PN Ry
Beijing Hopson Wangjing Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB364,990,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
LTREELREHEREARAR FRARE EREETAA AR #364,990,0007T BB RREEREDE
Beijing Hopson Xingye Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability US$31,600,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
TRE4BERMEREERAA HEAE AREETLA 31,600,000 7T RABREERYE
Beijing Hopson Yujing Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability US$165,760,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
EREEMEEHEREARAE FREKAE BRETAA 166,760,0005 7T RPBEREERD S
Beijing Longjia Runhe Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
LIRREBHEEHEREARAR FEAE BRETAA A #10,000,0007C RABREERDE
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40 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable Principal activities and
Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
NCEE: HMAE LB R EEERER ERTRAEZRE SEECREESL TEEBREEHH
Directly Indirectly
HE k=3
Beijing Longyuan Shunjing Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB20,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
TRERESFEHEREFRRA FREAE ERETAA A K #20,000,0007T RPBERREERYE
Beijing Shengchuang Hengda Real Mainland China, limited liability US$67,385,504 — 100% Property development in
Property Development Co. Limited company Mainland China
TREAEEEHEREARAR FEARE EREETAA 67,385,504 3% 7T RAEPBEAREERYE
Beijing Shengfenggi Architecture Mainland China, limited liability RMB2,000,000 - 100% Architectural design in
Consultant Company Limited company Mainland China
I RRBEEEREAGRLE FEKE EREEAR AR #2,000,0007C AR B K fE B TR 5
Beijing Xinjingrun Property Co., Ltd. Mainland China, limited liability US$444,540,000 — 80% Property development in
company Mainland China
ERFREREERAT FEIARE BEREMERQF 444,540,000 7T R B RREE#RYE
Beijing Yichuang Nuoyi Investment Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 — 100% Investment holding in
Management Company Limited company Mainland China
LTREBAFRREERERAA HFEAE EREETAA A #10,000,000 7T =N gy
Beijing Yihai Yinuo Investment Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 — 100% Investment holding in
Management Company Limited company Mainland China
ERBREBSHEREERBAERLDA HEKE AREELA AR #10,000,0007T KB REREER
Believe Best Investments Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability US$200 — 80% Investment holding in Hong
company Kong
EEREERAA HEELES BEREMLRA 200 7T REBREER
Chia Lung Group Company Limited Samoa, limited liability company US$6,500,000 - 100% Investment holding in Hong
Kong
EREEERLAA BEGE AREEAR 6,500,000% 7T REBREER
Dalian Hopson Fubang Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability US$32,747,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
REALERFHEERRAERRAR PEAE BREETAA 32,747,000% T RpBEARERRYE
Dalian Hopson Xingye Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
REGEAEEWEREARAR FEKRE BRETAT AR #50,000,0007C KB REERYE
Dynawell Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$10,000 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
Kong
BARERRAR BE BEREAEAH 10,0007 7T REBREER
Ever New Properties Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$2 ordinary HK$3 - 100% Investment holding and
non-voting deferred property investment in
shares (Note) Hong Kong
EMREXERAA BE BEREMLAR 2BTLEBRIET REBREZRRIRE
ERERETRN ES
(B 5t)
Funland Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability Us$2 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
company Kong
FREXERARA REEXESE BEREELA 2FTT REBREER

BEAREEERAA

T tFFR
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40 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable Principal activities and
Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
NGRS SRS R EEERER ERTRAEZRE SEECREESL TEEBREEHH
Directly Indirectly
HE k=3
Grand Avenue Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$22,500,000 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
Kong
DiEERE QA B BREARA 22,500,000 7T REBRERR
Guangdong Esteem Property Services  Mainland China, limited liability HK$5,000,000 — 100% Property management in
Limited company Mainland China
BRESMERBERAA FRIAR  BEREEAA 5,000,000 7T R B AREEEYE
Guangdong Hopson Dijing Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability US$37,500,000 - 100% Property development in
Co. Ltd. company Mainland China
EREEFEEMEBRAA FEKE BREEAA 37,500,000 7T RABREERYE
Guangdong Hopson Hongjing Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB200,280,000 — 100% Property development in
Estate Company Limited company Mainland China
BREEMRFEHEBRAR FRIRREE - BREMERA A K #200,280,000 7T R B RRE#RERYE
Guangdong Hopson Lejing Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB44,500,000 — 100% Property development in
Co. Limited company Mainland China
ERAAELEFHEBRRAR FREARE  BREEAA AR # 44,500,000 7T AR B A RE R Y%
Guangdong Hopson Minghui Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB41,500,000 — 90% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
EREEHABEMESRRAA FREAE  BREEAA AR #41,500,0007T RABEREERYE
Guangdong Hopson Yuehua Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB41,500,000 — 100% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
EREEMERMEERAA FEAE - BREEAR AR 41,500,000 7T RRBEREZREME
Guangdong Huajing New City Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB93,500,018 — 100% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
BERESHHFHEBRAT FEARE  BREEAA AR #93,500,0187C KA RREERDE
Guangdong Huanan New City Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB464,750,000 - 100% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
ERERNHAEHESRAA FREAE  BREEAA A E % 464,750,000 7T REPEBEREERNE
Guangdong Huanan Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB48,074,420 — 70% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
EREBFMERRAA FEAE - BREETAT AR ¥48,074,4207C KB REERYE
Guangdong Jinan Real Estate Limited ~ Mainland China, limited liability RMB65,084,340 — 90% Property development in
company Mainland China
EREEEMEARAR FEARE BREEAH AR #665,084,3407T KB REERNE
Guangdong New Tai An Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB19,100,000 — 100% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
ERFEZLEHEBRAR FEAE EREMEDH AR ®19,100,0007C NHBEREERDE
Guangdong Zhongfu Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,010,000 - 100% Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. company in Mainland China
BERTERMEREBRAA HREARE BRECTAR AR #10,010,0007C R ep B AR A B
Guangzhou Chuangda Investment Mainland China, limited liability RMB100,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
BMEEREERERAR HEAKE ARETAR AR #100,000,0007C R B RREEREDE

Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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40 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable Principal activities and
Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
NCEE: HMAE LB R EEERER ERTRAEZRE SEECREESL TEEBREEHH
Directly Indirectly
HE k=3
Guangzhou Hechuang Construction Mainland China, limited liability RMB200,000,000 — 100% Provision of construction
Company Limited company service in Mainland
China
EMEEIREFABERAR FR KR BREMERAA A K 200,000,000 7T BA o B A e 4 4 2 5%
R %
Guangzhou Hopson Cuijing Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB53,550,000 — 97% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
BMEERREHESBRAR FRIRREE  BREMERA A R % 53,550,000 70 R B AR REYE
Guangzhou Hopson Dongyu Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB42,500,000 - 100% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
BMEERFRIEBRAA FERE  EREEAR AR ¥ 42,500,000 7T R B RREEREDE
Guangzhou Hopson Junjing Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB221,619,440 — 95% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
BMEERSEHEBRAR FRRREE  BREMERAA AR 221,619,440 7T i PNGELE 3 S
Guangzhou Hopson Keji Garden Real  Mainland China, limited liability RMB133,340,000 — 95% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
BMEEMBRERMEGRLAF  FEKRE BRETAA AR % 1383,340,000 7T R RREERDE
Guangzhou Hopson Qinghui Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB42,287,624 — 100% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
BEMEEBEEHESRAR FERE  EREEAA AR 42,287,624 T KA AEERYDE
Guangzhou Hopson Qingyuan Water ~ Mainland China, limited liability RMB3,000,000 - 100% Water supply in Mainland
Supply Limited company China
BMNEEFRFKERDA FRARE  BREEAA AR #3,000,0007C A R B K K
Guangzhou Hopson Xingjing Business  Mainland China, limited liability RMB500,000 — 100% Provision of clubhouse and
Services Limited company residential services in
Mainland China
EMEEERBBERAT FREARE  BRETAA AR #500,0007T A B A B 12 & P 2
FERS
Guangzhou Hopson Yihui Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB131,420,019 — 100% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
EMEERERMESRAA FEAE BRETAT AR #131,420,0197C R REERYE
Guangzhou Hopson Yijing Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB82,040,000 — 99.5% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
BMEERREHESRAA FRAE  EREFERAA AR #82,040,0007T KA REERENE
Guangzhou Hopson Yujing Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB47,250,000 — 70% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
EMEEMEREHEERLDA FEAE - BREEAA AR 47,250,0007C KB REEREYZ
Guangzhou Huayue Longting Mainland China, limited liability RMB3,000,000 - 100% Restaurant management in
Restaurant Limited company Mainland China
EMEBEEERERAA HEAE - AREEAR A K #3,000,0007T R B REERE R

BEAREEERAA

T tFFR
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40 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

40 FTEMNBRARFHFRE@

Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable Principal activities and
Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
NGRS SRS R EEERER ERTRAEZRE SEECREESL TEEBREEHH
Directly Indirectly
HE k=3
Guangzhou Jiannan Property Mainland China, limited liability US$12,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
BMNEEREERERAT TREAE - BRETAA 12,000,000 7T R BERREERYE
Guangzhou Kengding Architecture Mainland China, limited liability RMB2,000,000 — 100% Architectural design in
Design Consultant Company company Mainland China
Limited
BMESEERAZAERDF PERE BEREETRA AR #2,000,0007C PR B R B Bk 5T R SR
Guangzhou Nonggongshang Mainland China, limited liability RMB2,170,243 - 100% Property development in
Construction and Development company Mainland China
Company Limited
BHNTRIFERFAZERAR FEXKE EREEAHF AR 2,170,243 7T RepBRREZ R Y%
Guangzhou Sanlian Huagiao Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB30,000,000 - 67% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
BM=BMEGEEERAR FEAE  BREEAA AR #30,000,0007T RABREERY X
Guangzhou Wanxiangying Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB1,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
BMTEREDEBERERAF  PEKRE BRETAA AR #1,000,0007T R B RREEREYE
Guangzhou Xinchangjiang Mainland China, limited liability RMB60,000,000 — 95.5% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
BMHRIZZABERLA FREARE  BREEAA AR %60,000,0007C R RREERDE
Guangzhou Yihui Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB37,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
ENmREEMEREARAF HEKE BREETLA AR #37,000,0007T REBEREERNE
Guangzhou Yijing Arts and Culture Mainland China, limited liability RMB500,000 — 100% Investment holding in
Company Limited company Mainland China
EMTERXEMERARAE FREKAE BRETAA A R #500,0007C P B KR % B 12
Guangzhou Yiming Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB43,800,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
BMEAEHEREERAA FEARE  BREETAA AR #43,800,0007C KA REERDE
Guangzhou Yisheng Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB562,500,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
EMNmaREHMEREARLF HFEKE BRELLA AR #562,500,0007C R REERYE
Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodu Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB535,500,000 — 99.5% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
EMRKIGHEHEBRAA FEAE - BRETAA A R % 535,500,000 7C R BEREERDE
Guangzhou Ziyun Village Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability US$36,400,259 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
EMEELEFHERRAR AR - BRETAH 36,400,259 7T KB REERNE
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40 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable Principal activities and
Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
NCEE: HMAE LB R EEERER ERTRAEZRE SEECREESL TEEBREEHH
Directly Indirectly
HE k=3
Hopeson Holdings Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$2 ordinary — 100% Investment holding in Hong
HK$10,000 non-voting Kong
deferred shares (Note)
AEEEERAR B BEREMERT 2B T A REBREER
10,0008 TR F 1
EIER (F172)
Hopson (Guangzhou) Industries Limited Mainland China, limited liability US$4,830,000 — 100% Property development in
company Mainland China
AE(BMBEEBERDA FRIRREE - BREMERA 4,830,000 7T R B RREERYE
Hopson Development (Consultants) British Virgin Islands, limited liability US$2 — 100% Provision of property
Limited company design and advisory
services in Hong Kong
BHEAIRE(BER)BRAF EBELES BEREERA 2FTT REBRBYERT R
B R
Hopson Development (Properties) Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$10,000 — 100% Property investment in
Limited Hong Kong
BHER(BRE)BERDA B BEREERA 10,0007 7T REBREME
Hopson Properties (China) Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability US$1 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
company Kong
SEFEEMERRAA RERR#HE AREEAA 17T REBREER
Huidong Zhongfu Real Estate Co., Ltd. Mainland China, limited liability RMB42,186,475.63 — 100% Property investment in
company Mainland China
BERPBEXFRRAA FRRMEE  BREERAT AR 42,186,475.637C R BERERENE
Huizhou Daya Bay New Coastal Mainland China, limited liability RMB100,000,000 — 60% Property investment in
City Development and Investment company Mainland China
Co. Ltd.
BMABENSRRTRRZIRE PEAE EREETRA A E#100,000,0007C R B KRR EME
ARAF
Huizhou Haolong Industrial Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property investment in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
BEMTREEXRRERAA FERE  EREEAF AR #10,000,0007C R B RREREME
Huizhou Hopson Xinneng Properties Mainland China, limited liability HK$50,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
BMNTEEEREEXERRA FEAE BREEAT 50,000,000 7T KRB REERY X
Huizhou Yapai Real Estate Company ~ Mainland China, limited liability RMB250,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
BMTRIEEIEER AR FRRREE - BREMERAA A R #250,000,0007C R B AR YE
Huizhou Yaxin Real Estate Company ~ Mainland China, limited liability RMB119,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
BEMTERFEHEERAR FRARE  BREEAA AE#119,000,0007T KA RREERDE
Ji Run Property Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$1,000,000 - 80% Investment holding in Hong
Kong
HHEEREARRAA BB BREAELA 1,000,000/ 7T REBREER

BEAREEERAA

T tFFR
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40 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable Principal activities and
Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
NGRS SRS R EEERER ERTRAEZRE SEECREESL TEEBREEHH
Directly Indirectly
HE k=3
Karworld Holdings Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$10,000 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
Kong
ENEEERAR B BREARA 10,0007 7T REBRERER
Kunshan Hopson Property Mainland China, limited liability RMB200,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
BLAEEFRHEREERAA FRIAR  BEREEAA AR #200,000,0007C R B RREERDE
Malaysian Teoghew Industrial Estate Mainland China, limited liability HK$25,000,000 - 55% Property development in
Development (Guangzhou) Ltd. company Mainland China
BMNEHALENERERRA FEKE BREEAA 25,000,000/ 7T RABREERYE
Max Clear Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company HKS$1 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
Kong
EFREFRAA EE - BEREERT 1A 7T REBREER
Nambour Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability US$2 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
company Kong
HEEXAERAA HEELZES BRELRA 2ETT REBREER
Ningbo Hopson Ci City Leisure Sports  Mainland China, limited liability US$10,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
ERAERBKNBREERAR FEKE EREFEAA 10,000,000% 7T R B REERYE
NCT|
Ningbo Hopson Kam City Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB150,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
BREERBFEHESRAA TREAE - ARAETAA AR % 150,000,000 70 R B RREERYE
Ningbo Hopson Ming City Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
BREERHFEWESRAR FRIARE  BREMERA AR #10,000,0007C R B RREERENE
Ningbo Hopson Real Estate Company  Mainland China, limited liability RMB220,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
BRELEIEEHEERAR FEAE BREEAA AR # 220,000,000 7T AR B RREEEDE
Outward Expanse Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands, limited liability Us$2 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
company Kong
BARKREERAR HEELES BERECRA 2% REBREER
Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Company ~ Mainland China, limited liability RMB100,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
EBERIEHERRRAR FREARE  BREEAA A E#100,000,0007T RABRREERDE
Plaza Royale Water Palace Convention Mainland China, limited liability RMB72,000,000 - 70% Hotel operation in Mainland
Hotel Tianjin Co. Limited company China
REFRRARBERRAR FEAR  BREMEAA AR #72,000,0007C AR B KRR & EE
Pomeroy Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability Us$2 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
company Kong
AKEEXERAA RERZHES AREEAA 2ETT REBREER

Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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40 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable Principal activities and
Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
NCEE: SRS R EEERER ERTRAEZRE SEECREESL TEEBREEHH
Directly Indirectly
HE k=3
Prestige Dragon Development Limited  Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$10,000 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
Kong
BEERERAA BB BREEAA 10,0007 7T REBREER
Right Strong International Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company HKS$1 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
Kong
ERBRERLA B BEREERAA 18T REBREER
Shanghai Anxu Warehousing Company Mainland China, limited liability RMB500,000 — 100% Warehouse in Mainland
Limited company China
FBRBRFEERLDA FEAE  BREEAA AR #500,0007T R B KRE B f#
Shanghai Dazhan Investment Mainland China, limited liability RMB3,050,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Management Company Limited company Mainland China
FERRREEEERAT FRIRREE - BREERAT A #3,050,000,0007C i SEICTPNEEE3YES
Shanghai Fanmei Architecture Design  Mainland China, limited liability RMB2,000,000 — 100% Architectural design in
Company Limited company Mainland China
FEBXEERTERAR FEARE  BRETAA AR #2,000,0007T AR BRRE T 5
Shanghai Hechuang Linhai Property Mainland China, limited liability RMB900,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
LEGARERHEREERAT HERE AREFLA A E 900,000,000 7T RABEREERDE
Shanghai Hopson Jinting Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
FEEEREFHEREERAR REAE BREELA AR #50,000,0007C RRBEKEZRME
Shanghai Hopson Property Mainland China, limited liability US$59,900,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
FERERHEREERAT FEARE  BREEAR 59,900,000 7T KA REERNE
Shanghai Hopson Sanlin Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB50,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
FEEE=BRHEREERAR HEKRE BRELLA AR #50,000,0007C KRB REERNE
Shanghai Longjia Properties Limited Mainland China, limited liability RMB20,000,000 — 100% Property development in
company Mainland China
LEREEEXFRAA FEAE - BRETAT A K #20,000,0007C R BERBEERD %
Shanghai Longmeng Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability US$44,370,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
FERBERMERBERLA HEAE - BREEAR 44,370,000% 7T KRB REERNE
Shanghai Sanxiang Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability Us$8,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
FPE=8FEZRERADA FEARE - ARELAR 8,000,000 7T N REERDE
Shanghai Shangshi Haiyun Properties  Mainland China, limited liability RMB800,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
FEFEBEBEXERAA FEAE - BRETAR A % 800,000,0007C KB REEREDE
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40 FTEMNBRARFHFRE@

40 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable Principal activities and
Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
NGRS HMAE LB R EEERER ERTRAEZRE SEECREESL TEEBREEHH
Directly Indirectly
HE k3
Shanghai Tongzhen Investment and Mainland China, limited liability RMB5,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Consultant Company Limited company Mainland China
FEREREZEABR AT TREAE - BRETAA A R #5,000,0007C R BERREERYE
Shanghai Yutai Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB400,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
FEHREHMERRERAR FERE BEREEAT AR #400,000,0007C KRB RREERYE
Shanghai Zeyu Properties Limited Mainland China, limited liability RMB50,000,000 - 100% Property development in
company Mainland China
LBEEFEEXRRAA FEAE BREEAA A R #50,000,0007C KRB REERYE
Shanghai Zhengze Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
FBERRMERR AT FRIRREE - BREMERA A K #50,000,0007T R B R EREYE
Shanxi Hopson Dijing Construction Mainland China, limited liability RMB956,865,000 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
LAGEFRERERAA FREARE  BREEAA A R # 956,865,000 7 KA REERDE
Shanxi Hopson Jiashi Investment Mainland China, limited liability RMB30,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
LWAREREREARAR FEAE  BREEAA AR #30,000,0007T NGy ES
Shine Wealth Consultants Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability US$1 — 100% Provision of consultancy in
company Hong Kong
SEERERAA REELES BEREMLRA 1E7T RE B R MR RB
Size Up Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$1 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
Kong
EHREERAF BE BEREERAT 1T REBREER
Solawide Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability Usg2 - 100% Investment holding in Hong
company Kong
SEREXERAA RERERHE AREEAA 2ETT REBREER
Suizhong Haisheng Tourism Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 — 51% Property development in
Development Corporation company Mainland China
ZTERREEXERARLR PERE BREEAF AR #10,000,0007C R BEREERD %
Sun Advance Investments Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability US$1 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
company Kong
HEREBERAT REELEE BEREMLRAA 15T REBREER
Sun Yick Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability uss$2 - 100% Investment holding in Hong
company Kong
HaBEXBRAH RBELZEE BEREMLEAA 2ETT REBREER
Suzhou Ruiyin Properties Limited Mainland China, limited liability RMB480,000,000 — 100% Property development in
company Mainland China
BMmRBEXBERAA PREAE - EREMELA A R % 480,000,000 7T RO BEREERDE

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017



Hojfes to J[he Consolicla]led Financial Sjra]lemenfs (coniinued)
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40 Details of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable Principal activities and
Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
NCEE: HMAE LB R EEERER ERTRAEZRE SEECREESL TEEBREEHH
Directly Indirectly
HE (k3
Tianjin Babo Real Estate Development  Mainland China, limited liability RMB30,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
RETEHRMERBEERAF HEKRE ERETAA A %30,000,000 70 RPBERREERYE
Tianjin Hopson Binhai Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB375,826,000 — 98.9% Property development in
Development Company company Mainland China
RECEBBEHEREARRAR HEAE EREETAA AR # 375,826,000 7T RAEPBEAREERYE
Tianjin Hopson Environmental Mainland China, limited liability US$500,000 - 75% Research and development
Protection and Energy Saving company of environmental
Technology Development Company technology and product
Limited in Mainland China
REA EIRRE AL 57 5 3 HEARE ARETAR 500,000% 7T FA HR B K e A B R B
BRAA RREM R E R
Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB280,000,000 - 92.3% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
REEERIGHERZEERRE HERE ARETAA A E % 280,000,000 7T KRB REERY %
Tianjin Jade Buddha Temple Museum  Mainland China, limited liability RMB200,000 — 100% Museum operation in
Management Company Limited company Mainland China
RETEZREHEBEYELEE HEAE ERETRA AR #200,0007C R B AREEEER
EEERARA By
Tianjin Meixin Architectural Design Mainland China, limited liability RMB3,000,000 — 100% Architectural design in
Company Limited company Mainland China
REEXTEERHBERAT FRIRREE  BREMERA A R #3,000,0007C il NEE e
Tianjin Ruiwan Investment and Mainland China, limited liability RMB115,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
REMEREERBR AT FREARE  EREERA AR #¥115,000,0007C KRB AREEREDE
Tianjin Royal Garden Hot Spring Mainland China, limited liability RMB20,000,000 — 100% Hotel operation in Mainland
Development Company Limited company China
REFKIFRRRAEERDA FRRREE - BREMERA AR #20,000,0007C AR B K e 5 B IR
Tumen Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability Us$2 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
company Kong
HREXEERAA HERELZES BREACRA 2% T REBREER
Trisum Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$5,000,000 — 100% Investment holding in Hong
Kong
LREEBRAR BE BREMELNA 5,000,0007% 7T REBREER
Value-Added Guangzhou Limited Mainland China, limited liability RMB8,000,000 - 70% Property development in
company Mainland China
BN iaARAR FRARE - BREEAA A & #8,000,0007C RABEREERDE
Zhejiang Kehua Digital Plaza Company Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 — 95% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
IR EHBESER AR FEARRE - BREEAA AR #10,000,0007C RREAEERDE
Zhongshan Hopson Haojing Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Estate Company Limited company Mainland China
FLTAEERREHEARLF HREAE - EREETAA A #10,000,0007C KA REERENE
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41
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40 FTEMNBRARFHFRE@

Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable Principal activities and
Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
NGRS SRS R EEERER ERTRAEZRE SEECREESL TEEBREEHH
Directly Indirectly
HE k=3
Zhongshan Hopson Hongjing Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Estate Company Limited company Mainland China
FILTEERREHEARAR PEKRE ERECRA A K %10,000,000 70 R BERREERYE
Zhongshan Hopson Xijing Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
FTEERERWERRAR FRIAR  BEREEAA AR #10,000,0007C R B RREERDE
Zhongxian International Company Mainland China, limited liability RMB2,250,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
HEBRBRERERAR FEAE BREEAA AR #2,250,000,0007C RABREERYE
Note: Btaz

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights and are not entitled to
any dividend or distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary
shares and thereafter one-half of the assets are distributable to holders of the

non-voting deferred shares.

BERERECRMMAIBEREZHE EE KR

EARSABEREREE =

DK B JE

100,000,000,000,0007%8 7T &2 7 Ik T & & B 35 &
AN BHREEZ ¥ ADRTEREEELER

MEBA-
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Details of Associates 41 BEQNTRFE
Place of Interest
Name Particulars of issued shares held incorporation Principle activities held %
P %
=L FEERTROFE o R B 32 3t B TEXB %%
Beijing BHL Logistics Limited Registered capital of Mainland China Property development 25
US$20,000,000
LRREMREXERAA 1 A% 75 20,000,000 2 7T BN 3 MEER
Guangdong Huasheng Cultural Registered capital of Mainland China Operation of school 40
Development Company Limited RMB5,000,000
BREEHEER AR A A K 55,000,000 7T LGN ZHER
BRAA
Tianjing Jingjin Financial and Registered capital of Mainland China Property development 30
Property Investment Company RMB300,000,000
Limited
ARERETRERRE AR AR A A R 300,000,000t A EIAFE MEER
BRAA



Nojfes to Hle Consoliclojfecl Financial Sjrojfemenfs (coniinued)
ARE B IS R AR MY R ()

42 Details of Joint Ventures 42 SENTHE

Place of Interest
Name Particulars of issued shares held incorporation Principle activities held %
Fi s
“28 FEERTROFE & 8 A 3L 3t B TEEB %%
Beijing Dongfangwenhua Registered capital of Mainland China Property development 60.98
International Properties Company  US$47,890,000 and property (Note (i)

Limited investment
ITRRANEEREX #E it B 75 47,890,000 % 7T SEPNG MEZLRKDERE (&)

BRAA]
Guangzhou Diyi Dyeing Factory Registered capital of Mainland China Property development 65
Company Limited RMB82,991,973 (Note (i)
BME—REHAER R AR A ARES2,091,9737T R E KR MEER (H & (i)
Guangzhou Dongtai Textile Registered capital of Mainland China Property development 65
Company Limited RMB28,570,000 (Note (i)
BNREGHBEXARAA AR AR A R 28,570,000 AR EIARE MEER (Bt (ip)
Notes: Hat -

@

(i

The Group is entitled to 57.14% of the voting power in the Board of
Directors of the joint venture while ordinary resolutions of the joint venture
require 75% of the voting of the Board of Directors.

The Group is entitled to 57.14% of the voting power in the Board of
Directors of the joint ventures while ordinary resolutions of the joint
ventures require 66.7% of the voting of the Board of Directors.

0

(i)

AEEHRBAELNASNI4NEETSRE
T fr

HoMmMAEDRR ZEBR
T5% R EHE -

EE- &

AEBEHRABALERASTI4%EETSRE

EMEEARZERIR
66.7% 1% ZHE o

BEAREEERAA

BRAEEE
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Consolidated Balance Sheets e MERR R
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
ZE—=F ZT—DNF ZT-—hF ZT—RFE ZE-—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHT FAT FHT FAT TER
ASSETS iE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land costs 1 Ak AR 1,928,700 1,869,029 1,976,377 1,776,499 = 1,846,674
Prepayments for acquisition of land 4 3 + 0 78 < X 18 135,305 134,852 126,980 118,927 127,264
Prepayments for construction work 2% T 2 JB{T3IE 1,340,636 1,480,246 587,141 28,682 -
Loan receivables U E - - - — 1,536,051
Properties and equipment EYYEY 4,105,363 4,060,382 3,958,050 3,486,335 = 3,724,771
Investment properties BEYHE 22,515,040 25,474,413 28935997 31,300,936 42,971,253
Goodwill S 42,528 42,386 39,912 31,818 33,552
Investments in associates REE AR ZIKE 158,257 158,290 148,579 140,747 153,106
Investments in joint ventures REBRAIZERE 5,599,225 8,102,176 7,778,864 7,424,805 = 8,035,057
Available-for-sale financial assets AEEENKERE 2,665,885 3,342,755 3,129,699 3,406,109 = 4,039,343
Deferred tax assets EXERIBEEE 295,185 341,466 402,162 495,525 740,160
38,786,124 45,005,995 47,083,761 48,210,383 63,207,231
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments for acquisition of land 4 8 + 0 78 <t A 18 10,273,666 10,241,218 9,658,469 9,058,323 10,079,270
Properties under development AEREZERESP
for sale LIES 55,122,056 50,742,439 49,836,168 44,761,847 42,112,261
Completed properties for sale At E 2 BEK
VES 21,412,298 28,277,161 25,196,674 21,233,257 27,358,063
Financial assets at fair value through & A FEFEBER
profit or loss FIER 2 B TS B E 12,146 13,607 13,101 83,584 174,852
Accounts receivable JFE i B X 406,179 385,076 425,296 542,974 630,653
Loan receivables JE W B 5K - - - - 299,075
Available-for-sale financial assets HEETBERE - - - - 220,000
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ FERTZUE « 14 &
current assets HithmE & E 2,553,024 2,300,768 2,497,694 2,749,500 = 3,879,004
Due from a joint venture el —fE & &R A
;A - - 32,031 34,738 42,230
Due from associates JIE Yo B 2 A B FRB 32,882 223 210 197 211
Due from related companies FEU A& N B kI8 6,440 9,984 3,899 3,190 7,713
Pledged/charged bank deposits BHER HRRIT
73 1,189,562 1,223,534 676,049 261,215 405,842
Cash and cash equivalents HeLhESEEY 5,389,295 5,486,993 4,753,340 6,053,733 = 5,396,990
96,397,548 98,681,003 93,092,931 84,782,558 90,606,164

Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)

GREMBRREK @

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E—=F ZT—NF —T-HF TR F ZE—t#F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAET FET FHET FET FTERx
LIABILITIES af
Current liabilities RBEE
Accounts payable JE& T BR3 7,728,568 8,746,455 7,354,186 5,715,064 = 7,881,015
Land cost payable JIE {5t £ 3 B AR 533,335 88,832 83,092 44,104 5,327
Borrowings BE 9,472,831 12,638,362 11,188,721 9,538,378 15,562,973
Deferred revenue EIEUA 15,544,864 10,290,304 11,937,499 8,667,718 5,766,727
Accruals and other payables JERTRIE R E
JE 4 7008 2,090,449 3,184,658 3,177,798 3,167,043 = 3,979,917
Due to an associate JER— R E A F 2
g 7,020 6,996 6,588 6,170 6,603
Due to related companies JEfTRE A E 2 FIR 101,939 88,232 596,329 476,471 223,907
Due to joint ventures ERALATZHIE 2,368,135 3,112,088 3,473,505 3,253,214 3,208,176
Current tax liabilities REHRBEEE 5,025,763 4,364,813 3,863,892 3,834,562 5,035,298
43,772,904 42,520,740 41,681,610 34,702,724 41,669,943
Non-current liabilities *kRBEE
Land cost payable JIE 5t 1 3 B AR 61,418 61,212 57,638 86,827 92,830
Borrowings e 29,900,660 36,747,468 35,516,944 35213845 37,626,814
Due to non-controlling interests T IE IR S R 2
Z A 573,493 571,574 538,205 504,071 539,409
Deferred tax liabilities BB EE 5,718,011 5,800,566 5,863,904 6,080,408 7,646,741
36,253,582 43,180,820 41,976,691 41,885,151 45,905,794
Net assets EESE 55,157,186 57,985,438 56,518,391 56,405,066 66,237,658
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable RRRREREA
to the Company’s equity holders JE 15 A AN % 6 1
Share capital P& A 224,537 204,392 223,412 202 556 222,556
Reserves i 52,521,442 55375974 54,112,981 54,194,334 63,871,569
52,745,979 55,600,366 54,336,393 54,416,890 64,094,125
Non-controlling interests JE 20 i) 1 R S 2,411,207 2,385,072 2,181,998 1,988,176 = 2,143,533
Total equity e 55,157,186 57,985,438 56,518,391 56,405,066 66,237,658
SEHAREEARAT T LE55R
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Consolidated Income Statements GEWRER
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-=F “F-WNF —FT-hF —F-RF —B—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FAT FHT FAT TER
Revenues &= 15,648,207 17,044,862 12,845,184 16,255,697 13,823,946
Cost of sales HERR (9,660,856) (11,793,197) (9,683,196) (11,776,266) (8,738,475)
Gross profit E7 5,987,351 5,251,665 3,161,988 4,479,431 5,085,471
Fair value gain on investment REMERNTFERR
properties 540,606 1,222,228 1,334,369 2,604,091 5,003,235
Other gains/(losses), net Hilzs /(Bi8) - %8 283,848 137,322 (37,481) 84,110 207,580
Selling and marketing expenses HERTISERE R (544,241) (383,522) (494,310) (413,440)  (328,673)
General and administrative expenses — & & 17 B & (1,411,121)  (1,389,354) (1,296,371)  (1,218,331) (1,349,594)
Finance income BF 75U A 31,069 65,267 96,709 79,439 43,918
Finance costs 81 15 B AR - - (79,311) (132,484) (5,242)
Share of (loss)/profit of associates 4 {5 Bk & A 7
(E518),/i4 7 (1,226) 564 (484) 1,645 2,408
Share of profit of joint ventures Paklah= XN i 1,423,387 91,023 154,196 143,844 86,701
Profit before taxation & 5 B v A 6,309,673 4,995,193 2,839,305 5,628,305 = 8,745,804
Taxation I\ (2,475,187) (2,067,257) (1,257,267) (1,785,631) (2,933,984)
Profit for the year FE&EHN 3,834,486 2,927,936 1,582,038 3,842,674 = 5,811,820
Attributable to: FE1h -
Equity holders of the Company RRARERAA 3,852,073 2,947,301 1645942 3,868,433 5,796,385
Non-controlling interests JEiE M A 2 (17,587) (19,365) (63,904) (25,759) 15,435
3,834,486 2,927,936 1,582,038 3,842,674 = 5,811,820
Dividends fi% & — — 223,020 222,556 445,112

Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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